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1. Name of Property
historic name N/A
other names/site number  Independence Historic District

2. Location - . ; : ts
street & number lﬁﬂ not for publication

\_/,’
=
od)

city, town Independence INA vicinity
state Oregon code OR county Polk code 035 zip code 97351
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[Z] private [:] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
X ] public-local [x ] district 159 117 buildings
[] public-State [Isite 1 sites
D public-Federal D structure structures

[ object objects

160 117 Total
Name Rf related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/ / listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification / )

I /|

As the designated authority under the National

nomination [_] request for determination of
National Register of Historic Places and meet
In my opinion, the property XImeets (g

umentgtion standards for registering properties in the
ocedyral and| professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
ional legister criteria. DSee continuation sheet.
L
Signature of certifying official  Deputy Statle Historic/ Préservation Officer Date 1-9-39
Oregon Historic Preservation Office
State or Federal agency and bureau \

\
\
-—

In my opinion, the property [ meets [_]does not me&t the National Register criteria. [ see continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I|.zh’9feby. certify that this property is:
entered in the National Register.
[ ] see continuation sheet. i MJQ . M&’. 91/- j/ / /6’1
[ ] determined eligible for the National v ' ;
Register. [ see continuation sheet.
[Jdetermined not eligible for the
National Register.

[ Jremoved from the National Register.
[:]other. (explain:)

{Sd\) Signature of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic

Commerce/Trade Commerce/Trade
Agriculture Agriculture
Education Religion
Religion Education

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Late Victorian
_lLate 19th & 20th Century Revivals
_Late 19th & Early 20th Century

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation _Concrete, brick
walls wood

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

See Continuation Sheet.

[X]see continuation sheet
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The Independence Historic District is a large, irregular-shaped area
located in the east section of town of Independence. The district

is located in Township 8S, Range 4W, Section 21, 44, 45 in Polk
County, Oregon. The district is composed of four plats; Thorp'sAddi-
tion tc Independence (1878), Hi11's Town of Independence (1879),
Patterson's First Addition (1881), and Hill's Addition to the Town

of Independence (1889). The district covers a thirty-nine block area;
inciuding both commercial and residential properties. One historic
site, Pioneer Park, is also included in the nomination. The commer-
cial section of the district is along South Main Street from 'B' Street
to 'D' Street. The residential section of the district extends beyond
'D' Street south along South Main Street to 'I' Street, near the
Independence city limits. The majority of the residential section

of the district lies west of South Main Street, one tax Tot beyond
Ninth Street. There are 265 individual tax lots in the district and
267 total properties classified in the district. Some properties

take up more than one tax lot. There are 22 vacant properties within
the district. The district includes 61 Primary Significant Contribut-
ing buildings dating from the earliest period of development through
1904; 86 Secondary Significant Contributing buildings dating from
1905-1940; 52 Historic Non-Contributing buildings; 32 Compatible Nen-
Historic Non-Contributing buildings; and 14 Non-Compatible Non-Contri-
buting buildings. There are also 12 contributing garages within the
district. A detailed explanation of the classification system is on
page 4.

Setting

Independence, Oregon has a current population of 4,209. It is situated
west of the Willamette River in Polk County, Oregon. The topography
of the area is fairly regular; sloping down toward the river on the
eastern boundary. The town is Tocated along Highway No. 51, twelve
miles southwest of Salem. The district takes up a large portion of
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of the town encompassing 98.7 acres. The area surrounding the district
is made up of simple family homes, constructed during and after the
historic period. Monmouth Street and South Main Street make up the spine
of the historic district, intersecting at a central point in the down-
town. There are a number of large street trees which line the residential
streets within the district.

Boundaries

The factors in determining the boundaries for the Independence Historic
District are based on the interrelationship of historical, visual, and
physical factors. The original Settlement patterns and plats near the
Willamette River and Ash Creek were taken into consideration. Many of
the residential buildings included within the district were the homes
of commercial property owners. The direct historic relationship between
these commercial and residential buildings adds to the significance of
the district. The visual factors which include building types, styles,
and uses and were evaluated. Building groupings, setback, height, and
material used in construction were also studied. Physical factors con-
sidered in boundary determination included waterways, development of
major streets and railroad right-of-way, tax lot division lines, and
city limits.

The Independence Historic District is irregularly bounded on the north
by Butler and 'B' Streets. The eastern boundary is one tax lot deep
along Main Street, extending to the north side of 'I' Street, near the
southern edge of the city limits. From 'I' Street, the boundary
continues north one tax lot west along the alley to 'E' Street. Between
Second and Sixth Streets the boundary line extends south irregularly
going as far south as 'G' Street before going north and continuing west
one tax lot deep until Seventh Street. At this point the block between
Monmouth and 'D' Streets is included. The western boundary line is de-
fined by one tax lot west of Ninth Street on the south side of Monmouth
Street, and Ash Creek on the north side of Monmouth.

The northern section of the district is associated with the Thorps Addi-
tion to Independence. The historic commercial area of the City starts
at 'B' Street and South Main Streets. The eastern boundary defines a
change in land use and topography. Large street trees on the southern
section of South Main unify the streetscape and define the eastern
boundary. The southern edge along Monmouth Street is defined by the
continuity of size, style, and age of homes. Monmouth Street is a major
spine of the district and creates a visual corridor. The western edge
of the district is defined by a change in architectural character, land
use, the Southern Pacific Railroad right of way, and Ash Creek.
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Architectural Character

There are a variety of building styles represented in the Independence
Historic District, spanning late Nineteenth and Twentieth century archi-
tecture. Contributing building styles include: Italianate, Queen Anne,
Stick Style, Commercial, Colonial Revival, American Renaissance, Bunga-
low, Craftsman, Spanish Colonial, Vernacular.

Both residential and commercial buildings were constructed during the
primary building period between 1969 and 1904. These buildings repre-
sent the Italianate, Queen Anne, Stick and Commercial styles; many of
these buildings reflect a vernacular interpretation of these styles.
The residential buildings in this period of development are generally
1-2 stories in height, sided with horizontal shiplap or weatherboard.
The windows are multipaned, double hung shash with simple or decorative
surrounds, The details on the porches of buildings constructed during
the primary period range from elaborate turned spindle work to more
simple posts and balustrades.

The commercial buildings constructed during the primary period are
generally 1-3 stories in height. The exterior siding material is stone,
stucco, or brick. These buildings generally have flat roofs with a
parapet wall or false-front. Many of these buildings have storefront
alterations, the upper stories on these buildings, however, remain in-
tact.

After 1904, the Bungalow Style, Craftsman, Spanish Colonial Revival and
later Vernacular buildings became more popular than the earlier styles.
Characteristics of the Bungalow and Craftsman Style include low pitched
gable roofs with wide, overhanging eaves, enlarged brackets, decorative
purlins, large simple porch posts, and the use of stucco, shingles and
brick in addition to weatherboard siding. Characteristics of the
Historic Period Styles include a combination of adaptations from previous
periods, reflected in embellishments of window and door detail, and the
use of a combination of building materials.

The commercial buildings within the district that date from the secondary
building period of development are characterized by 1-2 stories in height
and the use of brick and stucco for exterior surfacing material. There
is a lack of detail on the later concrete buildings from this period.
Many of the alterations to the buildings include resurfacing and changes
to the storefront facades. The original commercial area of the district
encompasses a three block area of tightly grouped slot buildings along
South Main Street.
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There is one contributing site within the district, the Pioneer Park,
located at the end of 'C' and Seventh Streets. There are twelve con-
tributing garages associated with residences in the district. A contri-
buting feature within the district is the number of alleys between the
blocks aligned in a north and south direction.

There have been two historic building surveys completed for the City
of Independence prior to this project. The City was first included in
an Historic Building Windshield Survey which was completed in August,
1980. A Cultural Resources Inventory for the City was completed
November, 1984. At this time the contract was amended to allow for
further research and the preparation for an historical narrative. The
final inventory document was finished June, 1985. There were, however,
fifty contributing buildings not included in this inventory which had
to be surveyed as part of the historic district project. The final
repcrt for the 1984 Inventory included a recommendation for historic
district boundaries. These boundaries were reviewed, studied and modi-
fied as necessary for the Independence Historic District National
Register document. As a result of the Inventory, the Mayor appointed
an Ad Hoc Committee on Historic Preservation in March, 1985. The City
of Independence established an Independence Preservation Commission in
June, 1986. An ordinance relating to the protection of Primary and
Secondary contributing buildings within the City was also adopted in
1986. A non-profit organization, the Independence Historic Preserva-
tion Corporation was also formed that year.

The classification of the properties within the Independence Historic
District are below. The classification criteria for contributing and
non-contributing buildings within the district is based on a number of
considerations including: building style, type and number of altera-
tions, building materials, setback and number of stories. There are
159 contributing and 117 non-contributing buildings within the district.

Vs Primary Significant Contributing: Structures are classified as
Primary Significant Contributing if they were built in or before
1904, and reflect the building styles and traditions characteristic
of this period of development. These buildings represent the
primary period of construction and development in Independence from
initial settlement through 1904. The town, in a rich agricultural
area, was a primary shipping point for supplies and produce along
the Willamette River.

2 Secondary Significant Contributing: Structures are classified as
Secondary Significant Contributing if they were built in or between
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1905 and 1940. Also buildings from the primary building period
are classified as Secondary if they have been altered so they
reflect styles from the secondary building period. These build-
ings represent the secondary period of construction when the City
of Independence grew as a result of the increase in hop produc-
tion and the advent of the automobile.

3« Historic Non-Contributing: Structures are classified as Historic
Non-Contributing if they were built during either the primary or
secondary periods of construction but have been so altered over
time that the contributing elements (siding, windows, massing,
entrances, and roof) have been lost or concealed. If their con-
tributing elements were restored, these buildings could be re-
classified as Primary or Secondary Significant.

4, Compatible Non-Historic Non-Contributing: Structures are classified
as Compatible Non+=Historic Non-Contributing if they were built after
1940 but are compatible architecturally (i.e. scale, materials,
use) with the significant structures and the historical character
of the district.

5. Non-Compatible Non-Contributing: Structures are classified as Non-
Compatible Non-Contributing if they were built after 1940 and are
incompatible architecturally (i.e. scale, materials, use) with the
significant structures and the historic character of the District.

6. Vacant: Properties are classified as Vacant if there are no build-
ings sited on them (i.e. vacant lots, alleys, parking lots).

The properties within the Independence Historic District are listed on
the following pages.
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1

ADDRESS: 211 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 1400
OWNER: Bruce Tuma LOT: 1

222 N. Broad Street #10
Monmouth, OR 97361

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: F3

PLAT: Hill’s Independence STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: 1885 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is asymmetrical in plan and has a flat
roof which slopes toward the rear, and a parapet wall. The building is constructed of brick
with partial brick pilasters. A brick foundation supports the building. The windows are
fixed sash with decorative muntins on the north elevation. There are accordion doors to the
west and an offset corner entry. There is a dentil belt course along the east and south
elevations. The windows have been altered, the chimney at the parapet wall has been
removed and track doors have been added to the west elevation. The building faces
southeast on the comer of Main Street and "C” Street and is in fair condition.

The bank was built by J.S. Cooper in 1885. This building was Independence’s first bank
and was said to be " one of the most compact and neatly furnished and equipped office
buildings in the state, furnished with the latest improved chronometer lock safe, and a fine
large fire proof vault which has the best doors of any deposit vault in the valley”. J.S.
Cooper also constructed the Cooper Block located at 206 S. Main in 1895. Cooper, a "
prominent business person,was active in the banking business, hop industry and politics.
The building later served as a tavern, the Post Office from 1901 until 1913 and
Charbonneau’s Meat and Grocery store.

2
ADDRESS: 215 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 1500
Contributing
OWNER: Warren and Wanda Gibbs LOT: 2
321. N. Gun Club Rd.
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca.1916 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

(Same building as 223, 227 S. Main Street.)
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3,4
ADDRESS: 223, 227 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  History Non- TAXLOT: 1600, 1700
Contributing
OWNER: Steven and Leticia Gal LOT 3,4
2659 Liberty Rd
Dallas, OR 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 34 28AB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1916 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story commercial building is rectangular in plan
and has a flat roof. Roman brick siding clads the bulkhead and wood shakes sheath the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane
commercial with new aluminum frames. There is a projecting shingle falsefront mansard
roof which is a later addition. The storefront was altered ca. 1960 and the brick bulkhead
was installed in 1951. The building faces west on Main Street and is in good condition.

The building is divided into three stores and has had a number of tenants. The center store
(223 S. Main) has been in continuous use as a barber shop since 1916. It was originally
occupied by Red William's Barber Shop and in 1927 it was renamed the Modern Barber
Shop by Forman Huntley. Cliff Harden bought the business in December 1950 and still
occupies the building. The northernmost store (215 S. Main) was a shoe store for a long
time and is now occupied by a mountaineering store. The southernmost store (227 S.
Main) was occupied by a number of restaurants including Nedreys and Hazel’s Cafe.
Clyde Wunder and Charles Wilson remodeled the building for a restaurant in the 1940’s.

5
ADDRESS: 235 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 1800
OWNER: Mary Lou Bartosz LOT: 2
770 Glen Creek RA.NW
Salem, OR 97304
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Moderate
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DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a falsefront capped with tile. Stucco and a vertical wood panel sheath the
exterior. The windows are fixed pane commercial, and there is a recessed entry way. The
storefront has been altered and vertical wood panels added. The building faces east on
Main Street and is in fair condition.

An historic photo shows the building as being occupied by a meat market around 1910. It
retained it’s historic function through the years. Holecheck Meat Market occupied the
building from 1935 until 1950. At one time Nedrey’s restaurant was located in the

building.
6
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 1902
OWNER: BPOE #1950 LOT: NA
289 S. Main Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
7
ADDRESS: 259 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 1903
Contributing
OWNER: John and Pauline Piper LOT: 3
182 Connecticut Ave. SE
Salem,0OR 97301
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1959 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a falsefront. An awning is on the main elevation. The building is constructed of:
brick. The windows are fixed pane commercial. There is a mural of pioneer scenes on a
wall to the north of the building. The building faces west on Main Street and is in good
condition.
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The site was previously occupied by Ma Ray Restaurant . The current building is occupied
by John Piper's Barbershop.

8
ADDRESS: 265 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 2000
Contributing
OWNER: Ruth P. Fulmer LOT: 3
1140 Parkway Dr. NW
Salem, OR 97304
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: F3
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1915 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story commercial building is rectangular in plan
and has a flat roof and a parapet wall. The building is constructed of brick with an
uncoursed stone bulkhead. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows
are fixed pane commercial and the retail base has been altered. A raised brick "W”
embellishes the front elevation which has a brick cornice and drip course. There is a full
width shake shed awning on the facade,which is an alteration to the building. The building
faces west on Main Street and is in fair condition. )

The building has retained its historic use as a tavern since it was built around 1915.
Various taverns have occupied the building including Frank Smith’s Tavern and the Club

Tavern.
9
ADDRESS: 289 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 2101
Contributing
OWNER: Elks Lodge #1950 LOT: 4
289 S. Main Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: 3 )
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Modem Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1980 USE: Fraternal Lodge

ALTERATIONS: None



NP8 Form 10-900-a OM8 Approvel No. 1024-0018
(e-29)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 Page 10

DESCRIPTION: This two story lodge building is square in plan and has a flat roof with an
angled cornice. The building is constructed of brick. A concrete foundation supports the
building. There is a porthole window and an arched window on the main elevation. The
porthole window has a stained glass Elks Lodge insignia. The building has raised brick
arches and an arched entry way. The building faces west on Main Street and is in excellent

condition.
10
ADDRESS: 301-319 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2200
OWNER: Lyon’s Lodge #29 LOT: 1

/o L.B. Howard

210 Stadium Dr. S.

Monmouth, OR. 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AB BLOCK: F4
PLAT: Hill’s Town SEYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1892, 1898, 1914 USE: Cominercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is L shaped in plan and has a flat
roof. The building is constructed of brick and is supported by a brick and concrete
foundation. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with segmental arches
and label moldings. The retail base has been altered. There is a soldier pattern brick belt
course and brick pilasters on the main elevation. The flat canopy is supported by turned
posts and has a turned balustrade on the upper level. The building faces west on Main
Street at the intersection of Monmouth-Independence Highway. The building is in good
condition. :

The original portion of the Masonic Lodge was built in 1892 and the second story was used
by the Lyon Lodge No. 29, Ancient Free and Accepted Masons, the second oldest fraternal
organization in Polk County. The first meeting of the lodge was held December 2,1859 in
which the lodge was named after the first Worshipful Master, Lemuel Lyon, a dry goods
dealer who helped form the Masonic Lodges in Oregon and California. In 1902 the first
floor was used as an agricultural implements store and in 1913 a moving picture theater is
indicated on the site later. A hardware store occupied the first floor. Two additions were
made to the building; the central portion was built in 1898 and the northernmost portion
was constructed in 1914.
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ADDRESS: 413 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT:
Contributing
OWNER: Harlan Conkey LOT:
820 NW Front #614
Portland, OR 97209
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE:
ALTERATIONS: Major

200

5
Vemacular
Residential

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions. It has a truncated gable roof with gable dormers which is covered with
composition shingles. Fire retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are paired and tripled one over one double hung
wood sash and fixed pane. There is an entry porch with a hip roof and boxed columns.
There are exposed rafters. There is a large addition to the south and the porch is also a later
addition. The building faces west on the comer of Main Street and ”D” Street and is in fair

condition.

Early residents of the building were the Cravens, who occupied the building around 1902.
Cravens owned the Craven Building located at 226 South Main and operated a

confectionary store in the building for years.

12
ADDRESS: 435 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT:
OWNER: Joseph Wright Haugstad LOT:

, 435 S. Main Street

Independence, OR.97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: Ca.1888 USE:
ALTERATIONS: Minor

300

F5
Vemacular
Residential/
Commercial

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan and an
intersecting gable roof with a catslide rear extension. The roof material is composition
shingle. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the south wing and second floor of the front gable;
narrow tongue and groove siding sheath the north wing and first floor of the front gable. -
There are cornerboards with caps. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
with projecting comice. There is a vertical panel door and a glazed horizontal panel door.
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The corner entry porch has a hip roof and is supported by turned posts. The corner entry
was added c. 1895. The building faces west on Main Street and is in good condition.

The building was constructed by Cooper in 1888. A later occupant was Gid Newton, who
resided in the building in the 1920’s. Newton owned a hop yard in the area.

13
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 400
OWNER: Richard O. Brust, M.D. LOT: NA
1309 Rhoda Lane
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
14
ADDRESS: 485 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 500
OWNER: Martin and Bemnice Fratzke LOT: 4
Delayne Paulsen
669 "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1930 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one story garage is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof with a
stepped side parapet. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports
the building. The windows are fixed pane. There are two sets of garage doors. The
building faces west on Main Street and is in poor condition.

This building has retained the original function as a garage/repair shop since its
construction around 1930. Frances Holt owned the building in 1937 and operated a
garage. Lyle Storey owned the building in the 1940’s to the 1950’s when it was sold to
Martin Fratzke.
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15
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION:  Vacant TAXLOT: 800
OWNER: Erling and Helen Haugsted LOT: NA
69850 Hwy. 111 #5
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
16
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 900
OWNER: Erling and Helen Haugsted LOT: NA
69850 Hwy. 111 #5
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA ‘
17
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 1000
OWNER: Erling and Helen Haugsted LOT: NA
69850 Hwy. 111 #5
Rancho Mirage, CA 92270
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28AC BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA GARAGE: Contributin
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18
ADDRESS: 838 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 13600
OWNER: Beatrice A. Wolfe LOT: 2

838 S. Main Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 20

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate GARAGE:  Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with an
extension to the rear. It has a gable roof with a projecting gable entry and gable dormer.
The roofing material is composition shingles. Asbestos shingles cover the original siding.
A concrete foundation supports the residence. The windows are one over one double hung
wood sash. The front door is panelled and glazed, flanked by fixed sidelights. The porch
and projecting gable have elephantine square supports set on battered concrete pedestals
with ionic caps. There is a pergola on the east elevation and a polychrome brick end wall
chimney. There are large rafters and oversized bargeboards on the main elevation. The
building faces east on Main Street and is in excellent condition.

There is a two car contributing detached garage with shiplap siding and a battered concrete
raised foundation. The building is covered with a hip roof with intersecting twin gables on
the front elevation. Brackets decorate the gable ends. The garage is associated with 8 14
and 838 S. Main Street. ;

The building was constructed by Alma and Arch Sloper in 1914. Arch Sloper was bor in
Independence in 1879. He married Hattie Miller in 1908. Arch and brother Buzz operated
a farm six miles south of Independence and also owned a hardware store in Independence
with Bill Cockle. The Slopers resided in the building from 1914 to 1919 when they
returned to farming. Sloper designed the Sloper Hop Plow which was used extensively by
the leading hop growers of Oregon, Washington and British Columbia. Other hop
machinery that Sloper developed include an electric hop bailer, hop spraying equipment, a
hop hoeing machine, hop drying fans and a hop duster.

19

ADDRESS: 814 S. Main Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 13500
OWNER: Tom and Charlene Girard LOT: 1

814 S. Main Street
Independence, OR. 97351
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ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 20

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan . It has an
intersecting gable roof and a gabled dormer with flared eaves covered with composition
shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the
concrete foundation. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash, and
casement windows in the dormer. There is a rectangular bay window on the main
elevation. There is a recessed full length porch with a segmental arch tie beam, massive
square posts and solid balustrade. There are also exposed notch-end rafters and unusual
flared bargeboards on this elevation. The building faces east on the comer of Main Street
and "H” Street and is in excellent condition.

The residence was built by William H. Cockle around 1914. Cockle established a
partnership with Chester Sloper, his brother-in-law, and opened the Sloper Bros. and
Cockle hardware store in downtown Independence.

20
ADDRESS: 786 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 9300
OWNER: Richard G. Hirsch LOT: 4

P.O. Box 265

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hills’ Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding and shingles above the belt
course on the gable ends sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building.
The windows are nine over one double hung wood sash and multi-light casement. There is
a polygonal bay window with a shed roof. The main entry has an door reflective of the
Arts and Crafts era with narrow vertical lights. The recessed full length porch has large
square supports and a solid balustrade. The building faces east on the corner of Main
Street and "H” Street and is in good condition.

There is a one car compatible detached garage which is covered with wood shingles. A
watertable caps the concrete foundation.
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The building was built by Arch Sloper, a contractor in Independence, for the Dr. MclIntire
family in 1914. Mclntire was a well known physician in Independence who eventually
became President Franklin Roosevelt’s personal physician.

21
ADDRESS: 760 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 9200
OWNER: James and Marlene DeForest LOT: 3

760 S. Main Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 34 28BD BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1916 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
wide overhanging eaves, exposed rafters, purlins and brackets. The roofing material is
composition shingle. Aluminum siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are paired double hung wood sash with six over one
and six over six lights. There are two sets of multi-light French doors on the east and
south elevations. The house has a concrete block porch with a balcony above and a porte
cochere with massive square posts on concrete bases. The weatherboard siding has been
covered with aluminum siding. The building faces east on Main Street and is in good
condition.

There is a detached garage in a compatible style built in 1948. The building is a one car
garage covered with a gable roof and clad with weatherboard. Brackets decorate the gable
ends. A carport is attached to the south side of the residence.

The building was originally built by the Kooch family. Kooch was a barber in town. Lyle
Storey occupied the building in the 1940s and owned a garage on 485 S. Main Street.

22

ADDRESS: 115 "G” Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 9000
Contributing

OWNER: Paul and Mildred LOT: 1

Worthington
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115 ”G” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 24BD BLOCK: 11

PLAT: Hill’s Addition STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: 1956 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has a hip roof covered
with wood shakes. Wood shingles and vertical board siding sheath the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane. There is an
attached garage on the west end of the residence. The building faces north on the corner of
"G” Street and Main Street and is in good condition.

23
ADDRESS: 688 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 8700
OWNER: George and Alice Reddell LOT: 4

688 S. Main Street '

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 10
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1913 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions. It has a gable roof with a shed roof dormer on the east elevation. The roofing
material is composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding and shingles on the gable ends
sheath the residence. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one
over one double hung wood sash and there is a polygonal bay window with a shed roof on
the south elevation. The main entry has an oval glazed window in the door. The recessed
front porch has a solid balustrade and is supported by wooden Doric columns. There are
decorative scroll cut rafters and brackets along the gable ends. The extension on the rear is
a later addition. The residences faces east on the comner of Main Street and "G™ Street and
is in good condition.

The building was originally owned by the Dickenson family who were farmers in the area.
Queen and Bill Wood, a mechanic, were occupants of the building in the 1920’s.
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24
ADDRESS: 644 S. Main
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 8600
OWNER: Adela Hermmandez LOT: 3

644 S. Main

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 10
PLAT: Hill's Addition to Indep STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is square in plan and has a gable
roof with paired gable dormers. The roof is covered with composition shingles. Narrow
weatherboard siding and wood shingles sheath the exterior with a belt course between
them. The porch has paired porch posts. There are exposed rafters and brackets. The
building faces east on Main Street and is in fair condition.

An early occupant of the building was Elmer Addision. He lived in the residence in the
1920s and operated Elmer Addision’s furniture store in downtown Independence. Later
occupants included the Hulberts, farmers on property south of town, and the Vanderfeens.
Mr. Vanderfeen was an employee with Pacific Power.

25
ADDRESS: 614 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Primary TAXLOT: 8500
OWNER: Ken and Ann Larsen, LOT: 1,2

Lucille Hill

614 S. Main Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 10
PLAT: Hill’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: 1869 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has an intersecting gable roof with a hip roof extension. Composition
shingle is the roofing material. Shiplap siding with comerboards sheaths the exterior. A
concrete pier foundation has been added to support the residence. The windows are paired
one over one double hung sash with a projecting comice. There is a vertical panel and
molded glazed door. The porch is covered with a hip roof which is supported by Doric
columns and has a solid balustrade. The second story of the house was added c. 1905.
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The south wing and rear extension are also both additions. The building faces east on the
corner of Main Street and "F” Street and is in good condition.

The building is associated with Henry Hill, the founder of the town of Independence
located south of Ash Creek. Hill came to Independence in 1847 and filed his Donation
Land Claim south of Ash Creek. After a devastating flood of 1861, which destroyed the
original town of Independence which was located north of Ash Creek, residents of "Old
Town” persuaded Hill to plat a new town on higher ground on his DLC. The new town
site was forty acres of land, south of Ash Creek and bordering the Willamette River on the
east. The building is probably the oldest structure on South Main Street. Henry Hill was
born in Jefferson County, New York and came west in 1847 to claim land. Henry married
Martha Ann Virgin in 1854 and began to farm and raise stock. Hill was one of the first to
grow hops in the area and had a love for race horses. He built a race track in town which
was located at "I” Street and Third, Fourth, and Fifth. Henry died in 1904. The house has
remained in the ownership of the Hill's family since that time.

26
ADDRESS: 588 S. Main
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 3900
OWNER: Richard and Mary Roscoe LOT: 4

6820 Corvallis Rd

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Hill’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is irregular in plan. It has a hip roof with
intersecting front and side hip roofs covered with composition shingles. Undulating fire
retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the building.
The windows are two over two double hung wood sash and six pane fixed. There is an
arched entry way and a bay window on the main elevation. A metal skirt has been placed
over the top of the foundation. The building faces east on the corner of Main Street and
"F” Street and is in fair condition.

The building was occupied by George Girard in the early 1920’s and 1930’s. Girard was
part owner of the Club Tavem.
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27
ADDRESS: 564 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 3800
OWNER: Deborah Oppel LOT: 3

564 S. Main Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 8428BD BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is U shaped in plan and has an intersecting
gable roof with parallel gables which is covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding
sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
double hung wood sash with nine over one and twenty-four over one lights. The building
has wide eaves, exposed rafters and purlins. The building faces east on South Main Street
and is in excellent condition.

The building was occupied by George Ploub at one time. Ploub owned a repair shop in
downtown Independence.

28

ADDRESS: NA

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 3700

OWNER: City of Independence LOT: NA
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 1

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA

YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA

ALTERATIONS: NA

29

ADDRESS: 510 S. Main Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 3600

OWNER: Violet Dunckel LOT: 1

510 S. Main Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Hill’s Addition STYLE: Vernacular
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YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is irregular in plan and has an intersecting gable
roof with composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane. There is a shed
roof porch with tapered boxed porch posts on the front elevation. The building was
resided and the windows altered ca. 1980. There is an attached garage as part of an
extension on the west side. The building faces east on the corner of South Main Street and
"E” Street and is in good condition.

The building was occupied by Edward Dunckel. Dunckel started the Dunckel Laundry and
operated the business for many years in Independence. Ray and Vnolct Dunckel later took
over the laundry and operated it until the early 1980’s.

30
ADDRESS: 478 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 300
OWNER: Edward Dunckel LOT: 3.4
Fariborz Paksevesht
478 S. Main Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca.1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is L shaped in plan and has an intersecting gable
roof with a gabled wall dormer. The roof is covered with composition shingles. Wide
shiplap siding finished with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. The windows are paired
one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is an octagonal
vertical panel door with transom light and a multi-light door flanked by sidelights. The hip
roofed porch has a solid balustrade and is supported by battered posts. The original front
porch was replaced in 1922 and the porch on the west elevation was closed in. A small
fruit room was added to the northwest corner of the house as well as a new door and
sidelights. The building faces east on the corner of South Main Street and "E” Street and is
in fair condition.

There is a detached garage.
The building was occupied by Edward and Stella Dunckel in 1920 Edward and Stella
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were married in 1915 and owned and operated the Dunckel Apartment which are located on
the corner of 2nd and "D” Streets. They also owned the Independence Laundry located on
"E” Street which they operated until Edwards’ death in 1950. Ray Dunckel, Edward’s
son, took over the laundry and ran it until the early 1980’s.

31
ADDRESS: 434 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 200
OWNER: State of Oregon LOT: 2

Peter Willing

151 Edwards Rd

Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is square in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof and composition shingles. Undulating fire retardant shingles sheath
the exterior. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash covered with
aluminum storm windows. The bellcast gable roof entry porch has brick battered porch
piers topped with paired wooden posts. The gable ends and porch gable end have
decorative ornaments. There are brackets and a molded barge board. There is a belt
course separating the upper one half story from the lower story. The porch has been
partially enclosed and the building resided. The building faces east on South Main Street
and is in good condition.

This building was constructed by Buzz Sloper in 1914. Sloper was born in Independence
in August 1883 and married and Prushia Newton ca. 1904. The Slopers lived on a farm
six miles south of town until 1914 when Buzz, his brother Arch and William Cockle
purchased the Hanna Hardware store on South Main Street, and changed the name to
Cockle and Sloper Bros. Hardware. Buzz Sloper died June 10, 1950.

32

ADDRESS: 414 S. Main Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 100
OWNER: Gladys Glasson LOT: 2

Gordon and Lila Brouse
414 S. Main Street
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Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 14

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with a slightly bellcast gable dormer, a hip dormer and fire retardant shingles.
Undulating fire retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A wooden watertable with a molded
cap tops the cast stone foundation. The windows are paired one over one double hung
wood sash and fixed pane. There is a rectangular bay window. The gable entry porch has
brackets and cast stone and wood boxed porch posts. The roof has exposed rafters and
brackets. There is a stone chimney. The front porch has been enclosed with fixed pane
windows. The building faces east on the comer of South Main Street and "D” Street and is
in good condition. '

There is a detached garage located to the west in a compatible style with stone on the side
elevations.

The building was constructed by the Cooper family around 1914. Other occupants include
Dr. O’Donnell and Gladys and Clifford Glassen. The Glassens were occupants from about
1945 until the 1960’s. The stone work on the building is probably the work of Clyde

Williams.
33
ADDRESS: 386 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 4300
OWNER: Richard Wildfang LOT: -

9255 Hoffman Rd

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1935 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is L shaped in plan and has a flat
roof. Stucco sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are large fixed pane commercial. There is a rounded corner entrance with a
projecting metal awning on the main facade. The storefront has been altered and the
attached garage to the west is a later addition. The building faces east on the comer of
South Main Street and ”D” Street and is in fair condition.
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Jim Hart’s Ford Agency was located in the building from 1936 until 1960. Oscar Slaussen
bought the building from Hart in 1960 and ran a tire business in the building until the

1970’s.
34
ADDRESS: 370 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 4200
OWNER: Carl Twiss, Agt LOT: 3

Arthur and Beth Mills

262 N. Stadium Street

Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1930 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story vacated building is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof
with a pointed parapet. Stucco sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are boarded up. There is a large garage door on the north side of
the front elevation. The building faces east on South Main Street and is in fair condition.

The building was occupied by Nig Mills’ Auto Repair Shop and A. C. Thomas Hardware
Store in the 1930’s. Mills garage was in continuous operation until about 1965. Other
businesses located in the building include Fisher’s John Deere Farm Equipment Shop, a
meeting hall for the Elk’s Club and was later used as a used furniture store owned by Fred
Kosel. The building is currently used for storage.

35
ADDRESS: 302 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Primary TAXLOT: 3700
OWNER: Key Bank of Oregon LOT: 1,2.3,
P.O. Box 399
Albany. OR 97321
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Italianate
YEAR BUILT: 1891 USE: Commercial

ALTERATIONS: Moderate
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DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan. It has a flat
roof with a parapet wall and a square tower. The building is sheathed in stucco with a cast
stone belt course. A brick foundation supports the building. The windows are round
headed one over one double hung wood sash with a keystone motif. The arched windows
on the first floor have stained glass transom lights. There is a diagonal full height entry bay
with a tent roof and ionic pilasters. A pedimented gable with scroll and globe motif
projects from the full comice with block modillions along the second story. The roof of the
tower is pyramidal and covered in a diamond pattern metal material. A drive in bank has
been added to the rear of the building. Two window bays and the original entrance were
enclosed on the north elevation. The walls on the north and east elevation were stuccoed
The building faces east on the corner of South Main Street and Monmouth Street and is in
excellent condition.

The building was constructed in 1891 by Salem architect Walter D. Pugh and built by the
firm of Jackson and Hutchin for a cost of approximately $12,000. The Independence
National Bank was established in 1889 by H. Hirschberg, a prominent Independence
businessperson. Hirschberg was bom in Germany and came to the United States with his
nephew in 1870. He was the president of the bank until his death in 1925 and was one of
the wealthiest men in Polk County upon his death. The 1919-20 Polk County Directory
indicates that the upper story of the building was rented out to Dr. Otis Butler, the local
physician. The bank changed hands after Hirschenberg’s death, succeeded by C. A.
McLaughlin, a local hops grower. The bank later became the First National Bank. The
building was renovated in 1966 and changed its name to the Citizen’s Valley Bank. Key
Bank currently occupies the building which was entered on the National Register of
Historic Places in 1986.

36
ADDRESS: 148 Monmouth
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 2900
Contributing
OWNER: Paul D. Young LOT: 4
148 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca.1920 USE: Health Care
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story doctor’s office is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof
with a brick stepped parapet. Board and batten siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane. A roof overhang projects
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approximately four feet from the front elevation. The exterior has been altered and resided,
and windows removed. The building faces south on Monmouth Street and is in fair
condition. There is an alley to the west.

37
ADDRESS: 296 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2800
OWNER: Margorie Taylor LOT: 4

451 Second Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1884 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet wall. The building is constructed of brick with a mock flagstone retail
base. A concrete and brick pier foundation supports the building. The retail base has a
recessed entry. There isa decorative blind arcade on the front elevation. A storefront
added to the south elevation was later covered over. The mock flagstone was added in
1962 and the canopy was removed from the building. A neon "Coca-Cola” sign hangs
from the southeast comer of the building. The building faces east on the comer of South
Main Street and Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

The building was built by financiers H. Hirschberg and Rosedorf around 1884. The
Sanborn Map indicates that an agricultural merchandising store was located in the building
in that year. Hirschberg was a prominent businessperson and built the Independence
National Bank in 1889. By 1888 a hardware store had replaced the agricultural store and a
small addition was added to the rear. Max Goldmen owned a grocery store which was
located in the building in 1913. The Sylvester Drug store occupied the building in the
1930’s and was purchased by Ed and Leila Taylor in 1944. The drug store has been an
important gathering place for the citizens of Independence and still retains a soda and lunch
counter. The store also has an extensive collection of authentic Coca Cola trays, believed
to be one of the larger collections in the country.

38
ADDRESS: 284 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 2700

OWNER: John and Marjorie Pfaff LOT: 4



OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
NPS Form 10-900-2
(@-28)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 7 Page _27

240 S. 4th Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3

PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1913 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a low
pitched gable roof with a parapet wall. The building is constructed of brick with T-1-11
below the brick comice and a wide brick bulkhead. A concrete and brick pier foundation
supports the building. Cormner pilasters project above the roofline. The windows in the
retail base have been altered. The building faces east on South Main Street and is in good
condition.

The building has had many tenants over the years which include Violet's Dry Goods in the
1920s; the Busy Bee Cafe and Lacey’s Bakery in 1940: and Pfaff’s Insurance in the

1960’s.
39
ADDRESS: 268 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Primary TAXLOT: 2600
OWNER: Al Opplinger LOT: 3

265 S. 3rd

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Italianate
YEAR BUILT: 1888 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a prominent bracketed cornice. The building is sheathed in stucco. A brick
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
with alternating square and round heads. There are brackets between the cornice and string
course. The retail base has been altered and a multi-light transom which read ”Sloper’s
Hall” has been removed. The building faces east on South Main Street and is in good
condition.

The Opera house was built by L.W. Robertson in 1888 for a cost of $10,000 and was the .
focal point of many cultural events. The second floor of the building served as a public hall
during the 1890’s and was used by the local schools until the city auditorium was built.

The building was supplied with 500 wooden seats for viewing the various plays and operas
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Many noted performers came to the hall. There were hand painted scenery curtains in the
hall which were painted by a Portland artist. The hall was also used for boxing and
wrestling matches and was the site for the annual com festival. The first floor was used as
various businesses including Francis Krieg’s hardware store in the 1890’s. The building at
one time was called Sloper’s Hall.

40
ADDRESS: 250 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 2500
OWNER: Kent and Shirley Bauersfield LOT: 2.3
265 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’s Addition STYLE: American Renaissance
YEAR BUILT: 1925 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story commercial building is rectangular in plan
with a flat roof which slopes to the rear and a parapet wall with a Union Jack motif. The
flat roof is covered with tar paper. The building has a brick bulkhead and stucco walls. A
wood and concrete foundation supports the building. There is an aluminum frame retail
base. There is an arcade of multi-light arched windows above the fixed metal canopy. The
canopy has been added and the retail base altered. The building faces east on South Main
Street and is in good condition.

The Farmer’s State Bank was built in 1925 and remained in business until the depression
of the 1930’s. The Farmer’s State Bank was established in 1912 and was originally
located in the Sperling Building. The Bank moved to 250 S. Main shortly after the
building was finished. Calbreath’s grocery occupied the building for a number of years
until it was sold to Mr. Bauersfield in 1962 and used as a jewelry store until 1982.

41
ADDRESS: 240 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 2400
OWNER: D.K. Christopher, Etal LOT: 2
: PO Box 232
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial



NP8 Form 10-900-a OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018
(8-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _7 Page _29

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1930 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet and a corbelled cornice. Stucco sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane commercial with aluminum
frames. There is a recessed entry way. Aluminum framed windows have been added to
the storefront. An awning has also been added to the front elevation. The building faces
east on South Main Street and is in good condition.

An early business located in the building was a restaurant and bakery owned by Jim
Oberson in the 1930’s. The building was divided into two stores in the 1940’s and its
occupants included O.J. Kramer’s haberdashery and Calbreath’s Grocery.

42
ADDRESS: 226 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 2300
OWNER: Bruce and Phyllis Stuwe LOT: 1,2

Ken L. Coffman Co.

883 E. Main Street

Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Commercial -
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan with a rear
extension it is covered with a flat roof which slopes to the rear. A parapet wall is seen on
the front elevation. The building is constructed of brick and has end pilasters. A concrete
block foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double wood hung
sash capped with segmental arches with label moldings. There is a belt cornice and a drip
corbel cornice. The retail base has new weatherboard and single pane windows. A central
arcade entrance was added in 1985. The building was originally one story and had a
wooden false front facade. The second story was added probably ca. 1913. The building
faces east on Main Street and is in good condition.

The 1888 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map indicates that the building was occupied by a book
and stationary store operated by W.H.and Robert Craven on the first floor. By 1902 the )
first floor had been divided into a millinery and shoe store. In 1903 William H. Craven
became the proprietor of a book and stationary store located in the building. By 1913
Craven had enlarged the building to make room for a soda fountain and candy and cigar
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counter. The upper story called Campbell Hall was used by a fraternal organization as a
meeting hall. William Craven served two terms as the mayor of Independence (1908-09)
and was elected to the city council. He belonged to the Chamber of Commerce and held all
the chairs of the Independent Order of Odd Fellows. Calbreath’s Grocery and William’s
Drug occupied the building in the 1930’s. The building functioned as a bowling alley in

the 1940’s.
43
ADDRESS: 206 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2200
OWNER: Cooper’s Roost Ass., LOT: l

John Celli

206 S. Main Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof which slopes to the rear with a decorative parapet wall. The building is constructed of
polychromatic brick on the upper stories and has a plain brick retail base. The windows are
one over one double hung wood sash with a lunette and decorative arches, and oriel
windows on the north elevation. A polygonal bay window flanked by recessed panels is

in the octagonal tower which is located in the southeast comer of the building. There are
also stained glass windows in the tower and decorative stone caps on the front elevation.
The building was extensively remodeled in 1978. The building faces east on the comer of
South Main Street and "C” Street and is in excellent condition.

The J. S. Cooper building was built in 1895 and was constructed of local brick from John
R. Cooper’s ( no relation) local brickyard. J. S . Cooper was born in Missouri in 1841
and came to Oregon in 1863 and became a very prominent businessperson in
Independence, establishing himself in the banking business. But in 1900 he gave up the
banking business in favor of hop growing. Cooper was very politically active and was a
delegate to the national Republican convention in 1888. In 1905 he represented Polk and
Lincoln Counties in the legislature. J.S. Cooper married Frances Graves of Independence,
the daughter of an early Independence pioneer C.B. Graves. The Coopers had three
children. J.S. Cooper died in Portland on July 5, 1921.
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44
ADDRESS: 194 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 1500
OWNER: Dean Weaver LOT: 4

184.S. Main Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Italianate
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1884 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof which slopes to the rear and a parapet wall. The building is sheathed in stucco with a
wood retail base. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over
one double hung wood sash with decorative segmental arches. There is an ornate masonry
label with a keystone. Decorative cast iron pilasters flank the retail base and there are
panelled chimney pots. This building faces east on the comer of "C” Street and Main Street
and is in excellent condition.

The 1884 Sanbom Maps indicate that the first floor of the building was occupied by a
general merchandise store and the second floor was used as a Masonic Hall. By 1902 the
IOOF Fraternal order occupied the upper floor and a dry goods store replaced the general
merchandise store on the first story. The building retained its usage as a dry goods store
under Kenneth Williams ownership until in 1940.

45
ADDRESS: 184 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 1400
OWNER: Mabel Smith LOT: 4

66 S. 4th Street

Independence, OR.97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1884 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story building is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof with a
parapet on the front elevation. The corbelled comice projects slightly and caps a recessed
spandrel panel. Cast iron pilaster decorate the comers. The transoms have been enclosed
above the store fronts. The strorefront has been slightly modified. The building faces east
on S. Main Street and is in good condition.
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According to the 1884 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map the building was occupied by a drug
store. By 1892 a jewelry store shared the retail space. The building was later occupied by

a grocery store.
46
ADDRESS: 174 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 1300
Contributing
OWNER: Virginia and Robert Banks LOT: 34
Lucian and Paula Baker '
290 55th NW Street
Salem, OR. 97304
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1884 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story commercial building is rectangular in plan
with a rear extension. There is a low pitched gable roof with a parapet wall and capitals.
The building is sheathed in stucco and has an altered retail base. There is a long multi-light
transom window and decorative cast iron pilasters flank the recessed entry. The building is
facing east on South Main Street and is in excellent condition. '

The Sanborn Maps indicate that a hardware store was located in the building from 1884
until 1888. By 1890 a dry goods store replaced the hardware store and was located in the
building until 1902. Helen Kirkland was an early owner of the building and owned Tom’s
Smith’s Grocery Store which was located in the adjacent building. The building has been a
tavern and pool hall since 1930.

47

ADDRESS: 154 S. Main Street

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 1200
Contributing

OWNER: American Veteran EOT: 2.3

Bi-Centennial Post 1176
154 S. Main Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2



OMB Approvel No. 10240018
NPS Form 10-900-a
(e-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 Page _33

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a corbelled parapet. The building is constructed of brick and has a wood retail
base. There is a double row of multi-light transom windows above a cement block bay.
The entry is recessed between full height pilasters and the cornice is sheet metal. The retail
base and front elevation have been altered. The building faces east on South Main Street
and is in fair condition.

The 1884 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map indicates that a grocery store was located in the
building. By 1890 Bice and Calbreath owned and operated a furniture store in the
building. The 1888 Business Directory indicates that Seth W. Allen operated a furniture
store in the building after Bice and Calbreath. In 1913 Clint Moore and Dean Walker
operated a fumniture store on the southern half of the building and a stoves, crockery and
tinware store was located on the northern half, The business was owned by Addision and
Moore in the 1920’s and then by Addison from 1935 until 1958. Byers Fumiture was
located in the building in the late 1950’s and 1960s.

48
ADDRESS: 144 S. Main Street TAX LOT: 1100
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- "LOT: 2
Contributing
OWNER: Dan Weaver
P.O.Box 36
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story commercial building is rectangular in plan with a rear
extension. There is a truncated gable roof with a parapet wall. Composition shingle
covers the brick exterior.. The building is constructed of brick and cement block on the
second story. The retail base windows have a wood frame and the upper story has
aluminum sash windows. There are full height brick pilasters and a recessed comner entry.
The retail base and front elevation have been altered. The building faces east on Main
Street and is in fair condition.

The original owners of the building in the 1880’s were Mr. Belt and Mr. Whitaker. They
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operated a furniture business in the building until about 1900. Remnants of a painted sign
on the north elevation reads: "Whitaker Furniture.” A Chinese restaurant was located in the
building in the early 1900's.

49
ADDRESS: 114 S. Main Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 1000
OWNER: Jim Thomassen, LOT: 1.2

Arthur and Lorett Stewart

114 S. Main

Independence, OR. 97531
ASSESSOR MAP: 34 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill’'s Town : STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: 1913 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This three story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof which slopes to the rear. There is a decorative parapet inscribed with the”Sperling
Building.” The building is constructed of brick and has pilasters with decorative caps. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are boarded over double hung
wood sash on the upper stories and a retail base on the ground floor. There is a narrow
course above the retail base and a brick bulkhead with wood window frames and cast stone
coping on the northeast comer. A comice has been removed and the retail base altered.
The building faces east on the corner of "B” Street and South Main Street and is in good
condition.

The Sperling Hotel was built by Albert Sperling in 1913 after a fire destroyed the Little
Palace Hotel which was located on the southeast corner of 2nd and "C” Street. The
building was originally named the Lerona Hotel after Sperling’s two daughters Leona and
Rowena. The Sperlings came from North Dakota in 1910 and settled one and one half
miles north of Independence where they operated a meat market and slaughter house. The
hotel was a very prominent structure in town and had a bank, dining room, lobby, baker
and sample room on the first floor. It was also equipped with steam heat. By 1925 the
hotel was under the management of Moss Walker, a prominent citizen in the area, and was
renamed the Beaver Hotel. The building has housed numerous businesses over the years
and is still a prominent building in town.
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50
ADDRESS: 109 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 2100
OWNER: Mary Anne Luginbuhl LOT: 8

2153 N. Wygant Street

Portland, OR. 97217
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is square in plan with additions. It
is covered with a gable roof with gabled wall dormers and composition shingles. Asphalt
shingies cover narrow shiplap siding. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are paired one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting comice. There
is a gabled porch with tuned posts and decorative sunburst pattern. The gable ends have
woodwork in a sunburst pattern. There are decorative paired carved brackets and a
corbelled chimney. The building faces west on the corner of South Second Street and ”B”
Avenue and is in good condition.

The original owner of the building was Albert Sperling, a well known carpenter and house
painter in Independence around the turn of the century. Sperling probably built the
residence himself. The Sperling family built the Sperling Hotel which is still standing at
114. S. Main Street in downtown Independence.

51
ADDRESS: 159 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 2000
Contributing
OWNER: Ruth P. Fulmer LOT: 5,6
1140 Parkway Drive, NW
Salem, OR. 97304
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1930 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story garage is irregular in plan and has a mansard roof with
wood shingles. Corrugated metal siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
supports the building. The windows are aluminum framed eight over eight double hung
wood sash and fixed pane. There is a carport in the front and a garage door on the north
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side of the west elevation. The building has been resided and the mansard roof with wood
shingles is a later addition. There is a series of wooden carports on the north side of the
building. The building faces west on the corner of South Second Street and ”C” Street and
is in good condition.

The site was previously occupied by a second hand shop, furniture shop and crockery
store, and a confectionary and cigarshop. The current building has been an auto repair
shop since it's construction in the 1930’s.

52
ADDRESS: 150-158 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 1600
" OWNER: Steven and Leticia Gail LOT: 5,6
2659 Liberty Road
Dallas, OR 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1913 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet. The side walls are concrete and the front facade is clad with brick. A
corbelled brick cornice is located above a recessed band of buff brick panels. Awnings
cover the fixed pane commercial windows on the main elevation. The pink brick bulkhead
flanks a recessed entry with aluminum doors. The building faces south on "C” Street,
adjacent to an alley to the east. The building is in good condition.

Early tenants include Ed Owen’s and Dick Gaines’ Pool and Cigar Store. Foster’s
plumbing occupied the building in the 1940’s and 1950’s.

53
ADDRESS: 164 ”C” Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 1700
OWNER: Steven and Leticia Gail LOT: 5,6
2659 Liberty Road
Dallas, OR. 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Commercial
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ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet. Buff brick with a coffered facade sheaths the exterior. The bulkhead
is clad with vertical tongue and groove siding. A fixed pane window and transom
windows are on the front elevation. Green carrara glass and a fixed awning decorate the
storefront. The carrara glass and retail base are alterations to the original structure. The
building faces south on "C” Street and is in good condition.

The Independence Post Office originally occupied the site in the 1880’s and 1890’s. Other
early uses of the site include a barber shop and a printing shop. The present building was
occupied by Clifford McBeth, a plumber, in the 1930’s and Foster's Plumbing in the
1940’s. Ben Johnson and Coquolette were the masons for the building and were
responsible for the masonry work on a number of the early buildings and sidewalks in the
Independence area.

54
ADDRESS: 170 ”C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 1800
OWNER: Steven and Leticia Gail LOT: 5

2659 Liberty Road

Dallas, OR. 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2 :
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet. The building has a brick facade with a drip cornice. There are narrow
vertical lights in the retail base. The retail base is an alteration to the original structure. The
building faces south on "C” Street and is in good condition.

La Belle beauty Shop was located in the building from the 1930’s to the 1950’s. The
building was sold to Janet Schlag in 1959 or 1960.

55

ADDRESS: 174 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 1900

Contributing
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OWNER: Steven and Leticia Gail LOT: 5
2659 Liberty Road
Dallas, OR. 97338

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 2

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major ‘

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof with a parapet. A wood shake pent-roof marquee and panelled comice decorate the
front elevation. The building is sheathed in stucco. A fixed pane window is located in the
retail base. The pent-roof marquee and retail base are later additions. The building faces
south on "C” Street and is in good condition.

The building was occupied in the 1940’s by Dean Walker. Walker had his hop office in the
building and was a prominent person in Independence. He served as a State Senator for

years.
56, 59
ADDRESS: 155 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 3600, 3601
OWNER: American Legion Post LOT: 3 .
784 River Drive
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Vacant
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
parapeted roof. The building is constructed of concrete block with brick pilasters on the
front facade. Transom windows are located above the plate glass storefront windows. The
bulkhead is constructed of concrete block. A wooden entrance door is on the west
elevation. The building faces north on "C” Street, adjacent to an alley to the east. The
building is in fair condition

The present site of the building was occupied by the Red Front Saloon which was owned
by J. R. Cooper from the 1890’s through the turn of the century. The telephone company
offices originally occupied the present building from around 1925 to 1950’s. The building
was later used as a meeting place for the local Boy Scout troop.
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57
ADDRESS: 165-185 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT:
OWNER: Ken and Patricia Larsen LOT:
P.O. Box 305 :
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE:
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

Commercial
Commercial

DESCRIPTION: This one story building is rectangular in plan and has a flat parapeted
roof. Window openings, which are boarded over, are located in the two bays. The
building is constructed of concrete with a brick front facade. Raised brick in a geometric
design embellishes the front of the building. Alterations include the removal of a portion of
the rear wall and modification of the bulkhead. The building faces north on "C” Street and

is in fair condition.

The Independence Post Office was located in the building in the 1930s. Other occupants
in the 1940’s included a grocery store, meat market, bakery, a liquor store and a second

hand store.
58, 61
ADDRESS: 269-283 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT:
OWNER: Robert D. Fitts LOT:
6080 Wigrich Rd.
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1930 USE:
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

3400, 3401
7 and 8

3
Commercial
Commercial

Another entrance and separate business is located on the south portion of the building. The
building faces west on the comer of South Second Street and "C” Street and is in good
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condition.

The building was constructed by Ross Nelson, around 1930. Nelson was a very
influential person in Independence and served on the board of trustees for the First National
Bank. He was also the owner of the Isis Theater in downtown Independence.

60
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 3602
OWNER: N/A LOT: NA
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
62
ADDRESS: 178 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 3100
Non-Contributing
OWNER: Kenneth and Patricia Larsen LOT: 5
S.J. and M.M. Phaff
530 D" Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Highway Commercial
YEAR BUILT: 1964 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story garage is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
wood shakes. Vertical board siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports
the building. There are three garage doors on the east elevation and two entrance doors.
The building faces south on Monmouth and is in good condition.

63
ADDRESS: 168 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAX LOT: 3200

Non-Contributing
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OWNER: ' Kenneth and Patricia Larsen LOT: 5

S.J. and M.M. Phaff
530 "D” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 3

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Highway Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1965 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story gas station is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof.
Stucco sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows
are fixed pane. There are two garage doors on the west side and windows on the east side
of the front elevation. The building faces south on Monmouth and is in good condition.
There is an alley to the east.

64
ADDRESS: 175 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 4800
Non-Contributing
OWNER: Marc H. and C.A. Nelson LOT: 8
990 Cupids Knoll Rd.
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Highway Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1960 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story gas station is irregular in plan and has a flat roof. The
building is constructed of concrete. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are fixed pane. There are two garage doors on the east elevation and a band of
windows on the west elevation. The bui Iding faces north on Monmouth Street and is in
good condition.

65

ADDRESS: 317-329 S. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 4700
OWNER: Chris and Lloyd Muller, LOT: 7

John and Joyce Depweg
329 S. Second Street
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Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1938 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is rectangular in plan and has a flat
roof. The building is constructed of concrete. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are large, fixed pane commercial with aluminum frames. There is
a recessed entry with a transom window. A projecting wood shingle canopy on the west
elevation was a later addition. The building faces west on South Second Street and is in
good condition.

The north portion of the building was used as the Post Office in 1947 and later, in 1957, it
was occupied by Pacific Power and Light. Clyde Wunder and Roy Morris reportedly
constructed the building. The southern portion of the building was occupied by a tire and
gas station in 1945.

66, 68
ADDRESS: 150 "D” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 4400, 4600
Contributing
OWNER: Indep Machine and Mfg LOT: 5
Ron Harter
150 "D” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill's Town. STYLE: Other
YEAR BUILT: 1937 USE: Industrial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story industrial building is rectangular in plan and
has a gable roof of corrugated metal. Corrugated metal siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are aluminum sliders and sixteen
light windows on the rear elevation. There are garage doors on all elevations. The
building has been resided and some windows and doors enclosed. There is a small storage
shed to the west. The building faces south on "D” Street and is in fair condition.
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67
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION:  Vacant TAXLOT: 4500
OWNER: Independence Machine and LOT: 172 Lt. 5 and 6
Manufacturing Co.
150 "D” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 4
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
69
ADDRESS: 163 "D” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 700
Contributing
OWNER: Wanda Whelchel LOT: 7
2709 NE Clackamas Street
Portland, OR 97232
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Ranch ,
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1960 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence has a gable roof. Fire retardant shingles and
weatherboard siding sheath the exterior. The windows are fixed pane with three (lites).
The recessed front porch has plastic supports. The building faces north on ”D” Street and

is in good condition.

70

ADDRESS: NA

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT:
OWNER: N/A LOT:
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: NA USE:

ALTERATIONS: NA

800

1/2 Lts. 7 and 8
5

NA

NA
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71
ADDRESS: 451 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 600
OWNER: Marjorie Taylor LOT: 172 of 7
451 S. Second Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This residence hasa steep gable roof with wood shingles. There is a
wide frieze at the roofline. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are one over
one double hung wood sash with fixed multi-pane on the first story. Fluted pilaster flank
the front entrance. Shutters have been added and there is a shed addition to the north
elevation. There is a new stepped fireplace on the south elevation. The building faces west
on South Second Street and is in good condition.

The building was originally located on the comer of Second and "D” Streets before it was
moved to its present location. Dean Girard resided in the building from about 1927 to the
1960s. Girard was part owner of the Club Tavern.

72
ADDRESS: 461 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 500
OWNER: Charles King and LOT: 6

Richard and Barbara Patton

461 S. 2nd Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Vermacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan with additions
and has a steeply pitched intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. Wide shiplap .
siding sheaths the exterior, ending with comerboards and caps A concrete block
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
with a projecting cornice. The gable roof extends to cover a porch with slightly battered
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porch supports. The porch balustrade has been replaced. The building faces west on
South Second Street and is in excellent condition.

Don and Maude Barton resided in the building for a number of years. Don had a barber
shop on S. Main Street in Independence.

73
ADDRESS: 489 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 400
OWNER: Norman and Leo Schaublin LOT: 5

P.O. Box 5169

Salem, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 5
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Apartments
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions. There is a truncated hip roof with exposed rafters covered with composition
shingles. There is a central gable dormer on the front elevation. Shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete foundation. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash. There is a porch covered with a hip
roof and supported by square wooden posts on the front elevation. The building faces
west on the corner of South Second Street and "E” Street and is in good condition.

The Dunckel Apartments was originally built as a school in 1880. It represents the oldest
school building remaining in Independence. Sometime prior to 1902 the building was
moved from the original site on the NE corner of 4th and "C” Streets to its present site on
the comer "E” and 2nd Streets. The building was purchased by Edward and Stella Dunckel
and converted and enlarged into the Dunckel Apartments around 1920. They also owned
the Independence Laundry located on "E” Street.

74

ADDRESS: NA

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 900

OWNER: City of Independence LOT: 4
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 6

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA
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YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
75
ADDRESS: 2nd and D-Hop Warehouse
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 901
OWNER: Southern Pacific Industrial LOT: 1-4

Development
201 Mission Street
San Francisco, CA. 94105

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 6

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Industrial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888, Ca. 1910 USE: Vacant
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story warehouse is rectangular in plan and has a low pitched
gable roof with overhanding eaves and exposed rafters. Shiplap siding sheaths the
exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete foundation. The windows are six light
fixed pane and four over four and six over six double hung wood sash. There is a cupola
on the roof. The freight doors on the west elevation are of vertical board siding capped
with a projecting hood. There is a shed addition to the east covered with metal siding. The
warehouse to the south is a later addition. The building faces east on East Second Street.
There is an alley and open lots to the west. The building is in poor condition.

This one story warehouse, which is a later addition to the warehouse to the north, is
rectangular in plan and has an aluminum bellcast triple gable roof. Vertical wood siding
sheaths the exterior. A vertical wood skirt covers the foundation. The windows are
boarded up and a sliding door remains. The building has exposed rafters. It faces east
between "D” Street and South Second Street and is in poor condition. There is a railroad
crossing adjacent to the building to the east.

The hop warehouses located on Second Street between "D” and "E” Streets ar the only
remaining utilitarian buildings in Independence directly associated with the hop industry.
The northern portion of the building was constructed around 1888 as storage facilities for
the baled hops before being sold. A majority of the farmers in the area stored their hops in
These warehouses. The warehouses were located adjacent to the railroad line and depot.



OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018
NPS Form 10-900-a
(8-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 7 Page __47 _

76
ADDRESS: 203 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 4900
Contributing
OWNER: William L. Puntney LOT: 1
1620 Candlewood NE
Salem, OR 97303
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Commercial
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story commercial building is irregular in plan and has a flat
roof. Vertical board siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are fixed pane commercial.
There is a transom light above the entrance and a cut away side entry on South Second
Street. The building has been resided and a wood shingle overhang added. There are
storage sheds with flat roofs and vertical board siding to the rear. The building faces north
on the corner of Monmouth Street and South Second Street and is in fair condition.

The Independence Lumber Yard was originally located in the building for many years.
Later uses of the building include a saw shop and a battery shop.

7

ADDRESS: 240 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 5800
Contributing

OWNER: City of Independence LOT: 4
240 Monmouth Street

_ Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Northwest Regional

YEAR BUILT: 1968 USE: Government

ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story City Hall building is irregular in plan and has a low
overlapping gable roof. The building is constructed of concrete. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are aluminum sliders and fixed pane. The west end
has Fire Department doors, and there are two fire truck doors to the rear. There is an _
overhang with exposed boards. The windows have been altered. The building faces south
on the comer of Monmouth Street and South Second Street and is in good condition.



NPS Form 10-900-a
(6-28)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number ___” Page _48

OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018

78
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT:
OWNER: City of Independence LOT:
240 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: NA USE:
ALTERATIONS: NA
79
ADDRESS: 216 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT:
Contributing
OWNER: Emest and Lolita Varner LOT:
1958 Mistwood Dr. NE
Salem, OR 97303
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: 1961 USE:
ALTERATIONS: None

5600

8
Commercial v
Government

DESCRIPTION: This one story Post Office is rectangular in plan and has a flat roof with a
flush cornice. The building is constructed of brick. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are fixed pane in triplets. There is a recessed entry and concrete
block decoration on the main facade. The building faces east on the corner of South

Second Street and "C” Street and is in good condition.

80

ADDRESS: NA

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT:
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson LOT:

158 Second Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28 BA BLOCK:
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE:

6700
4

9
NA
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YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
81
ADDRESS: 158 S. 2nd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6600
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson LOT: 23
158 S. 2nd Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP; 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1899 USE: Residential
- ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is asymmetrical in plan. It has a flared hip roof
which is crested with a small gable peak, and with an intersecting pedimented front gable.
The roof is covered with composition shingles. There are hip roof wings. Tongue and
groove siding with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed
sash with lattice work. The hip roof porch has exposed rafters. There is a corbelled
chimney. A concrete porch stoop replaces the original wooden porch. The building faces
east on South Second Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was owned for a number of years by the S.B. Walker family. The Walker’s
were prominent hop growers in the area. The Walker's son R. M.Walker became the
president of the First National Bank of Independence and was Mayor from 1918 to 1925.
Walker’s other son Dean, served as Senator in the State Legislature for many years The
house remained in the Walker family until 1924 when it was sold to the Schwabauer

family.
82
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 6500
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson etal LOT: 2
295 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
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ALTERATIONS: NA

83

ADDRESS: 116 S. 2nd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6400
OWNER: Ken and Delores Brinkerholf LOT: 1

116 S. 2nd Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9

PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with partial return is covered with composition shingles. There isa
gable dormer on the west elevation. Weatherboard siding and fishscale shingles on the
gable ends sheath the exterior. The panelled friezeboard has a cannonball motif. A
concrete and brick foundation supports the building. The windows are paired and tripled
one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice, and casement. There is a
rear porch covered with a hip roof which has chamfered supports, decorative brackets and
a turned balustrade. A polygonal bay window has been added to the east elevation. The
building faces east on the corner of South Second Street and "B” Street and is in excellent
condition.

There is a contributing one story carriage house with tongue and groove siding and a gable
roof attached to the residence. The folding garage doors are multi-paned fixed windows on
the top portion and panels on the bottom.

The building is associated with the Kirkland family who were an early prominent family in
Independence. Justinian W. Kirkland was a businessperson, civic leader and mayor of
Independence from 1888 to 1889. Kirkland was born in Missouri on February 15, 1828
and served in the Confederate army during the Civil War. A fter the war he settled in
Montana and worked in the mining and freighting business. In 1869 Kirkland moved to
Polk County and engaged in farming near Rickreall. He moved to Independence in 1885
and became involved in real estate. The Kirklands built a residence on the southwest
corner of 2nd and "B” Street in 1889 and, in around 1900, they constructed this structure.
Kirkland’s first wife was Katherine Johnson, who died in 1891 and his second wife was
Sarah Douty. Justinian was president of the board of trade of Independence and was
involved with the Masons, Odd Fellows and Knights of Pythias.
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84a.
ADDRESS: 261 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 7100
Contributing
OWNER: Mary and Clifford Harden LOT: 8
261 "B” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: 1962 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof with composition shingles. Asbestos siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are aluminum glass sliders. The residence
faces north on "B” Street and is in good condition.

84b
ADDRESS: 111 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 7100
OWNER: Clifford and Mary Harden LOT: 8

261 "B” Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan. It hasan
intersecting gable roof with a shed roof dormer and composition shingles. Weatherboard
siding with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the
building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with projecting cornices,
on the south elevation. There is a porch covered with a hip roof which is supported by
square posts and a solid balustrade. The shed roof dormer and hip roof porch are later
additions, c. 1910. The building faces west on the corner of South Third Street and "B
Street and is in excellent condition.

Early residents of the building were the Hinkle family. Emma Hinkle was born in the
building in 1896.
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85
ADDRESS: 135 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 7000
Contributing
OWNER: Albert and Mary Ann Henry LOT: 7
135 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan. It has an
intersecting gable roof with boxed eaves and a partial retum and covered with composition
shingles. Undulating fire retardant shingle sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed
pane. The entrance has glass block sidelights. The building was extensively remodeled in
ca. 1907 and in 1950. The building faces west on South Third Street and is in good
condition.

The building was occupied by Dean Craven from 1904 to around 1911-12. Craven
worked at R.M.Wade Hardware in Independence. Elmer and Hazel Addison were long
time residents of the building and remodeled the building in the 1950’s. The Addisons-
were owners of the Addison Furniture Store on Main Street in Independence.

86
ADDRESS: 284 "C" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 6900
Contributing
OWNER: Harold and Fran Engblom LOT: 5,6
284 "C” Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a
bellcast multi-hip roof with shed roof comers on the east and west elevations. Asphalt
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shingles cover the original siding material. There is a concrete foundation. The windows
are double hung wood sash and many have been replaced. There is a decorative frieze
board and brackets which encircle the roof line. The gabled entry porch has a solid
balustrade. Alterations include the dormers which were added c. 1920 and the asphalt
shingles. The building faces north on the corner of South Third Street and ”C” Street,
and is in good condition.

The building was constructed in 1885 by A. Hodgins Kosterman. Later long time
residents of the building included Dr. and Mrs. George Knott. Dr. Knott was a respected
physician in the community for many years.

87
ADDRESS: 264 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 6800
OWNER: Lyon Lodge #29 Masons LOT: 5,6

Jose and Luz Gutierrez

264 "C” Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 9
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with a rear
extension. There is a gable roof with wide eaves, exposed rafters, and a shed roof dormer
with exposed rafters. Weatherboard sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the
cast stone foundation. Double hung wood sash, multi-pane casement and fixed pane
windows decorate the front elevation. There is a rectangular bay window on the east
elevation. The wide glazed front door has sidelights. The full width porch has a cast stone
balustrade and pedestals with squat, rectangular supports. The building faces south on the
corner of "C” Street and South Third Street, and is in excellent condition.

The building was constructed in 1914 by Clyde and Clara Williams. They owned the
Williams Drugstore which was located in the J. S. Cooper Building until 1930. The house
remained in the Williams family until it was sold ca. 1963.

88
ADDRESS: 255 "C" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 6300
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OWNER: Elmore G. Agena LOT: 7,8
Liane Moser and Heidi Agena
255 "C” Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1902 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is irregular in plan. It hasa
truncated hip roof with a projecting front gable and partial retum. The roof material is
composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding and shingles on the gable end sheath the
exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete pier foundation. The windows are
elongated one over one double hung sash with a projecting cornice. A hip roof porch with
jigsawn brackets, turned posts and balustrade is recessed into the main volume of the
building. The building faces north on ”C” Street and is adjacent to an alley to the east .
The building is in fair condition.

This building is significant for its association with Francis A. Patterson, a prominent early
citizen of Independence who was known for his stock-raising and farming interests in the
state and his political affairs. Patterson was born in 1835 in St. Clair, Illinois and came
west with his family in 1852, first settling in California. In 1857, the Pattersons moved to
Oregon claiming 160 acres near Rickreall where they lived until 1881. At that time
Patterson bought 320 acres of land adjacent to the town of Independence to the west and
laid out two additions: Patterson’s and Patterson’s 2nd. He also owned a farm one half
acre south of Independence. Patterson was very active politically, serving in the state
legislature for two terms (1880 and 1882) and was appointed by the speaker of the house
as chairperson of a committee to receive President Hayes. He was also a stockholder,
promoter and president of the Independence-Monmouth Railroad for three years. Patterson
married Caroline Tatum in 1859 in Kings Valley, OR. in subsequent years had ten
children. Caroline and Francis Patterson retired in the residence in 1902 which they
remodeled and rebuilt. Other occupants of the building include Thema Talent,who owned
and rented the building at one time, E. A. Weddle and the Troxels.

89
ADDRESS: 263-269 "C' Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 6200
o Contributing
OWNER: Brenda M. Cutting LOT: 7,8
9290 Parker Road

Independence, OR. 97351
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ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is irregular in plan and has a truncated hip roof
with a projecting front gable with partial return. The roof material is composition shingles.
Shingles with a frieze and frieze brackets sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are four over four double hung sash on the south
elevation and a full height rectangular bay projects from the front elevation. Decorative
panels flank the rectangular bay windows. A flat roof porch with a decorative frieze and
turned posts projects from the entry way. The rear door is composed of vertical panels.
Alterations include new shingle siding, a replaced balustrade on the front porch and new
fixed pane windows. There are also several additions to the rear elevation. The residence
faces north on ”C” Street and is in good condition.

M.W. and Flora Mix, and Francis and Caroline Patterson, both prominent citizens of
Independence were former owners of the building. Francis Patterson platted two additions
in Independence and was very active politically in the state, serving two terms as a
legislator. He was also a shareholder and President of the Independence-Monmouth
Railroad.

90
ADDRESS: 287 "C” Street TAX LOT: 6100
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-
Contributing
OWNER: Lyle and John Sansom, LOT: 7,8
Wallace Gray
287 "C" Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with full return and a skirt roof. The roof is covered with
composition shingles, and has a decorative chimney. Vinyl siding and tongue and groove
on the south elevation sheaths the exterior. A brick foundation supports.the residence. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash. A rectangular bay window with a flat
roof projects from the north elevation. Alterations include the bay window, the front porch
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and the addition of a wrought iron balustrade. The building faces north on "C” Street and
has an adjacent alley to the east. It is in excellent condition.

A resident of the building in about 1925 was Mrs. Flora Mix. The building was rented to
Vemor and Belle Gowen in the 1950’.

91
ADDRESS: 265 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 6002
Contributing
OWNER: Kent and Shirley Bauersfield LOT: 6
265 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: 1971 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has a hip roof with a
projecting hip roof and composition shingles. Wood shingles sheath the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are paired hoppers and fixed
pane. There is a recessed entry. The building faces west on South Third Street and is in
good condition. '

There is a one car garage in a compatible style to the north. The building has a hip roof and
is clad with fire retardant shingles.

92

ADDRESS: NA

CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 6000

OWNER: N/A LOT: Portion Lts. 7 and 8
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA

YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA

ALTERATIONS: NA
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93
ADDRESS: 260, 290 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 6001
OWNER: Non-Contributing

Maxine and Philip Orange LOT: 5

6120 S. 13th St

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Highway Commercial
YEAR BUILT: 1957 USE: Commercial
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story office building is rectangular in plan and has a mansard
roof with composition shingles. Vertical siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are
aluminum sliders and fixed pane. The building has slender columns with brackets. The
building faces south on the corner of Monmouth Street and South Third Street and is in
good condition.

94
ADDRESS: 256 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 5900
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson LOT: 5

295 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 8
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
composition shingles. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports
the building. The windows are nine over one double hung wood sash. There is a pent
roof entry. The building faces south on Monmouth Street with a alley located to the east.
and is in poor condition.

The building replaced an earlier structure and was built by Edna and Wilber Youtzy in
1925.
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95
ADDRESS: 261 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Historic Non- TAXLOT: 5400
Contributing
OWNER: Bruce and Phyllis Stuwe LOT: 7,8
261 Monmouth
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
exposed rafters, covered with composition shingles. Fire retardant shingles sheath the
exterior. The windows are double hung wood sash with twelve over one lights. There is a
shed roof front porch with wrought iron posts. The shutters, end wall chimney and front
porch are all additions. There are also additions to the rear. The building faces east on
Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

This building was originally owned by A. J. Reiss who operated a variety of businesses in
Independence including an agricultural and implement store.

96
ADDRESS: 275 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 5501
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson LOT: 7,8

295 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Eastlake
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has an intersecting
gable roof with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap with comerboards sheath the
exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete block foundation. The windows are one
over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is a polygonal bay
window on the east elevation. The front door is panelled and glazed with a transom light..
The hip roof entry porch has a spindle frieze, brackets and a turned balustrade. There is a
corbelled chimney and the gable ends have decorative spindle work. Additions were made
to the structure in 1892 and 1902. There is an attached shed. The building faces north on
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Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

The building has had several owners throughout the years. Some of the occupants include
Ivy Thomas, Paul DuChein and Phil Orange. Orange was an optometrist in Independence
and lived in the house from 1953 to 1970 when it was purchased by the DuCheins.

97
ADDRESS: 285 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 5500
OWNER: Dalvina Robinson LOT: NA
295 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Colonial Revival
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1939 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan and has a gable
roof with three gable dormers on the front elevation and a shed roof dormer on the rear
elevation. The roof material is composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are six over six double hung wood sash . The front door has sidelights. There is
a pedimented entry porch with four classical columns with capitals on the main elevation.
There is a round window in the pedimented gable entry. The building has been resided and
the garage is a later addition. The building faces north on the corner of Monmouth Street
and South Third Street and is in good condition.

A. L. and Ivy Thomas built the residence in 1939. Albert Thomas owned and operated a
hardware store located in the Masonic building for many years and served as Mayor of
Independence from 1929 to 1936. Albert died in 1947. Ivy Thomas was born in Burton,
Oregon and moved to Independence at the age of six. She taught elementary school and
high school for more than thirty years and was very active in the Women'’s Club, the
Eastern Star Lodge and the Daughters of the Nile. Ivy died in 1985 at the age of one
hundred and three. The Albert and Ivy Thomas Educational Trust Fund was set up after
the Thomas’ deaths to help students in Independence.

98
ADDRESS: 360 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 10800
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OWNER: Margrit Bartley etal and LOT: 3

Vance and Lucille Vanwoert

P.O. Box 5

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1927 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a low pitched
intersecting gable roof with wide eaves, exposed rafters and composition shingles. The
exterior is covered with weatherboard siding with a slightly flared base. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane and casement windows in
bays. There is a polygonal bay window on the south elevation. The projecting gable roof
porch has truncated stuccoed supports. There is a stuccoed chimney. The building faces
east on South Third Street and is in excellent condition.

There is a two car garage associated with the structure. The building has a gable roof and
is covered with weatherboard.

The building was constructed by Ira Mix, the president of the First National Bank of

Independence.
99
ADDRESS: 340 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Primary TAXLOT: 10600
OWNER: Independence Women’s LOT: 1,2

Club

340 S. 3rd Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Gothic Revival
YEAR BUILT: 1882 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story club house is rectangular in plan and has a steeply pitched
gable roof with brackets covered with composition shingles. The exterior is covered with
narrow shiplap siding and square staggered butts in the upper gable end. Concrete piers .
support the building. The windows are paired lancet one over one double hung wood sash
with a recessed cross on the keystone. The north elevation has a full height polygonal bay
window. There is a lancet transom above the panelled and glazed entrance. There is a blind
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Gothic arch in the north elevation. The fifty foot steeple has been removed and a chimney
added. The building faces east on South Third Street and is in good condition.

The building was originally built as a church by the Presbyterian congregation in 1882, and
was located on the corner of 4th and "D” Streets. In February 1914 a group of
"progressive” women formed the Independence Women'’s Club with the goal of fixing up
and enhancing the community. In 1924 the Presbyterian Church was given to the
Women’s Club to be used as a meeting place. The building was also used for parties,
receptions and weddings. Some of the original officers included Jessie Cooper, Mrs. Joe
Hubbard, and Grace Swope. The building was moved to its present site in 1928 and is still
owned by the Women'’s Club.

100
ADDRESS: 311 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 10601
OWNER: City of Independence LOT: 1
240 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Colonial Revival
YEAR BUILT: 1929 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one story public library is rectangular in plan with a rear addition
and has a gable roof with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior.
A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are six over six double hung
wood sash with a projecting comice and panelled shutters. There is a Palladian window on
the east elevation. A projecting pedimented entrance with partial returns is on the north
elevation. The solid entry door is flanked with multipaned sidelights and pilasters. A
lunette shaped fanlight is above the door. The rear extension is an addition. The building
faces north on the corner of Monmouth Street and South Third Street and is in excellent
condition.

The Independence Public Library was designed by Portland architect Harold D. Marsh and
constructed by Charles Smiley, an Independence contractor. The building was completed
October 25,1929 at a cost of $5600, not including the architects fees. The site for the
library was donated by the Women’s Club and a majority of the building costs were
financed by the taxpayers. The library had a fireplace, a reading room measuring 30 x 48 _
feet and an executive and work room measuring 18 x 20 feet. Many of the furnishings and
books were donated to the library by prominent Independence families. The building
remains virtually unaltered.
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101
ADDRESS: 341 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 10700
Non- Contributing
OWNER: Manuel Velasquez LOT: 1
PO Box 53
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: 1974 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and is covered with a tiled
gable roof. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are aluminum sliders and fixed pane. There isa two
car garage attached to the west end. The building faces south on Monmouth Street and is in
good condition.

102
ADDRESS: 330 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 10102
OWNER: Independence/ Monmouth LOT: 4
P.O. Box 75
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Spanish Colonial
YEAR BUILT: 1874 USE: Religious
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story church is rectangular in plan with additions. It is covered
with a gable roof of composition shingles. There is an octagonal bell tower on the east
elevation. Wide shiplap siding with cornerboards sheaths the exterior, the bell tower is
covered with shingles. A watertable caps the wood skirted foundation. The windows are
multi-light double hung wood sash and stained glass with round heads. There is a cornice
above the front door with a panelled frieze. The bell tower has a dentil course and a
bracketed cornice. There are arched openings above with label moldings and pilasters.

The front doors have been replaced and an extension added to the west elevation. This
addition has a shingle gable roof, narrow tongue and groove siding, and a porch with
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turned posts. The steeple was added in 1910. The building faces east on the corner of
Monmouth Street and South Third Street and is in good condition.

The church is perhaps the earliest church building in Independence and was originally used
by the Methodist congregation. The lot was donated to the trustees by Henry Hill in 1874
and the church was constructed under the direction of Reverend N. M. Skipworth.
Skipworth came to Oregon from Louisiana in 1874 and served as the first pastor in the new
church building until 1879. The building remained in the ownership of the Methodists until
1905 when it was put up forsale. The church was sold to the Roman Catholic Church in
1910. At that time an apartment addition was added to the west side of the building and the
original steeple was replaced by a bell tower. The building remained in the Catholic
Church ownership until 1968 when it was sold to a private party. The building is currently
being used by the Nazrene Church and was entered on the National Register of Historic
Places in 1986.

103
ADDRESS: 260 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 10000
OWNER: Roger and Annie Stene LOT: 3

260 S. 3rd Street .

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13 .
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is rectangular in plan with an addition to the
west elevation. It has a wood shingle gable roof with a bracketed gable, wide bargeboards,
exposed rafters and brackets. Shiplap siding and shingles in the upper gable ends sheath
the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the building. The windows are one
over one double hung wood sash with a small upper sash on the ground floor and a
projecting cornice. The hip roof porch has a central gable and a solid balustrade, with
square panelled posts. There is a corbelled chimney. The gable on the west elevation is an
addition. The building faces east on South Third Street and is in good condition.

104
ADDRESS: 224 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 9900

OWNER: Rose Bryan Englehaupt LOT: L 2
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224 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: 1909 USE: Duplex
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
exposed purlins and bargeboards. It is covered with composition shingles. Twin gabled
wall dormers project from the roof line. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are paired one over one double
hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There are multi-light french doors at the port
cochere and main entrances. A flat roof porch with battered posts and exposed rafters
covers the main entrance. The second floor has an end wall enclosed porch. The exterior
stairs on the south elevation were added, c. 1960. The building faces east on the corner of
South Third Street and "C” Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was originally owned by J.S. Cooper, a prominent businessperson in
Independence. Cooper developed numerous properties throughout the city including the
J.S. Cooper Block. Cooper was elected major of Independence from 1904 to 1905.
Another prominent resident of the building was Dean Walker. The Walker’s were hop
growers, owning one of the largest hop yard in the area. The Walker’s son R. M.Walker
became the president of the First National Bank of Independence and was mayor from
1918 to 1925. Walker's other son Dean, served as Senator in the State Legislature for

many years
105
ADDRESS: 190 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 9400
OWNER: Barbara Martin LOT: 4

389 S. Main Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28 BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill’s Town Addition STYLE: Stick Style
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is asymmetrical in plan with a rear addition, and
has an intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding
and fishscale shingles covers the exterior. A brick foundation supports the building. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash. The porch is covered with a hip roof
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which has a pedimented gable at the entrance, tumed posts, a turned balustrade and jigsawn
brackets. The building faces east on the corner of South Third Street and "C” Street and is
in fair condition.

The building was possibly built by a Mr. Baldwin. Later occupants included the Amsberry
in 1941, John and Barbara Martin in the 1950’s and Francis and Helen Keig in the 1960’s.

106
ADDRESS: 160 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 9300
Contributing
OWNER: Lloyd and Ulrike Halverson, LOT: 3
Judith Ann Eagle
160 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: International
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1950 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is irregular in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof with composition shingles. Undulating fire retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung
wood sash and glass block. There is an attached flat roof garage associated with the
residence. The building faces east on South Third Street and is in good condition.

107
ADDRESS: 138 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 9200
OWNER: Neil Wood and LOT: 2

Alton and Catherine Boe

138 S. 3rd Street

Independence, OR.97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residence
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is T shaped in plan with a rear addition and has
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an intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. Shiplap siding with corner pilasters
covers the exterior. Brick piers support the building. The windows are paired one over
one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice and a picture window. The back
door has round headed panels. There is an interior corbelled chimney. The comer entrance
has been enclosed and a picture window has replaced the original rectangular bay window.
The building faces east on South Third Street and is in fair condition.

There is a two car garage associated with the structure. The building is covered with a
gable roof and clad with shiplap siding.

The building was occupied by the McDonald family in 1941. McDonald operated a tire
store on Main Street in Independence.

108

ADDRESS: 112 S. 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 9100

OWNER: City of Independence LOT: 1
Independence, OR, 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 24 28BA BLOCK: 12

PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Queen Anne

YEAR BUILT: 1888 USE: Museum

ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story museum is asymmetrical in plan and has a multi-gable
roof with a rectangular tower covered with composition shingles. Brick sheaths the
exterior except for the gable ends which are covered with decorative shingles. Wide
shiplap siding sheaths the tower. A brick foundation supports the building. The windows
are mostly round headed one over one double hung wood sash. There is also a stained
glass fanlight and stained glass windows. The double doors are tall and narrow with
vertical panels. There is a bracketed shed roof at the tower entrance. The top portion of the
tower was removed in 1975 and the basement and north wing were added in 1916. The
building faces north on the corner of South Third Street and ”B” Street and is in excellent
condition.

The building was constructed in 1888 for the First Baptist Church. The church was
organized in 1869 in Kings Valley (Benton County) by the Reverend John W. Osbourne.
The congregation first meeting place was located in a school house on the McElmurray
farm and a building on the Alexander farm. The new building was began in 1888 and
completed in 1889 at a cost of $4,000. The building is the only brick church in the
Independence area. The City of Independence purchased the building in 1975 and
converted it into the Independence Heritage Museum.
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109
ADDRESS: 86 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 8500
OWNER: Jerry and Sharon Clinton LOT: 4

86 S. 3rd Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1915 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with exposed rafters, wide eaves, brackets and composition
shingles. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed sash with a
projecting cornice. There is a polygonal bay window on the south elevation. The porch
which is covered with a gable roof,, has large rectangular supports. The building faces east
on the corner of South Third Street and "B” Street and is in excellent conditicn.

The building was constructed in 1915 by Charles Taylor, a barber. Later occupants were
Jim and Edra Coon who owned the Club Tavern in downtown Independence.

110
ADDRESS: 62 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 8400
OWNER: Frank and Nellie Carrillo LOT: 3

62 S. 3rd Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1888 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding with
corner pilasters sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the building.
The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is
a shed roof porch with square posts and a solid balustrade which is a later addition. The
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brick foundation has been replace with concrete block. There is shed to the northwest of
the residence. The building faces west on South Third Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was owned by the Clodfelters in 1886. Clint Moore moved into the building
around 1908 through 1950. Moore was the Mayor of Independence from 1916 to 1918.

111
ADDRESS: 364 1/2 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 8300
Contributing
OWNER: Cockroach Construction Co." LOT: 3
P.O. Box 447
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1940 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has an intersecting
gable roof. The building is constructed of concrete blocks. The windows are fixed pane
with four and six lights. There is a garage which has been closed up with boards. The
building faces west on the alley between South Third Street and South Fourth Street and is
in good condition.

112
ADDRESS: 32 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 8200
OWNER: Jennie and William White LOT: 2

32. S. 3rd Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill’'s Town Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT; Ca. 1918 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with wide eaves, exposed rafters and decorative brackets on the bargeboard.
The roof material is composition shingle, and there is a shed roof dormer. Tongue and
groove siding finished with comnerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
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supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with
vertical muilions in the upper sash and leaded glass. There is a recessed porch with
battered porch piers and a solid balustrade. The building faces east on South Third Street
and is in excellent condition.

There is a contributing one car garage associated with the residence. The building is
covered with a gable roof and clad with shiplap siding. The panelled garage doors swing
outward.

The building was constructed by Charles Smiley for the Willard Craven family in 1918.

Craven ran the Craven and Huff Hardware store on Main Street for many years. Willard
Craven was the Mayor of Independence from 1908 to 1909.

113

ADDRESS: 24 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 8100
OWNER: William Kazakoff LOT: 1

24 S. 3rd Street
Independence, OR.97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate ‘ '

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan and has a gable
roof with gabled dormers covered with wood shingles. Wide shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. The windows are one over one double hung sash with a
projecting cornice, and have been altered. A porch, covered with a hip roof, extends
across the front elevation. The gabled dormers were added c. 1920 and the porch
enclosed. The building faces east on the comer of South Third Street and "A” Street and is
in fair condition.

The building was occupied by William Kazakoff in the 1950s. Kazakoff was a floor
refinisher in town. The building is currently occupied by William's son Pete.

114

ADDRESS: 16 S. 3rd Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 8000
OWNER: Lela Newton, LOT: 172 Lt. 1

Eloina and Alex Morales
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16 S. Third Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vermacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1938 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
composition shingles. Weatherboard siding covers the exterior. The windows are one
over one double hung wood sash with aluminum storm windows. A large fixed pane
window has been added to the front elevation. A small porch projects from the front
elevation and is embellished with tumed porch post. A side entrance is located on north
elevation. The building faces east on the comer of South Third and "A” Street and is in
good condition.

The building was constructed by Buster Schofield around 1938. Later occupants in the
1940s were Roy and Eloise Morris. Morris was an insurance agent in Independence.

1135
ADDRESS: 41 S. 3rd Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 7800
OWNER: Comelia Opplinger, LOT: 7,8
Marilyn Cogswell, Agt.
41 S. 3rd Street
Independence. OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 10
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has an intersecting
gable roof with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding with comerboards sheaths the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed sash, some
are multi-light. There is a double gable pent roof over the front porch, supported with
square posts, a solid balustrade, and scuppers. Finials decorate the gable peaks. The north
and south wing and the porch are later additions. The building faces west on South Third
Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was occupied by Elsie Bolt in the 1940s. Bolt was an elementary teacher in -
Independence. Later residents included Mary Donaldson, a teacher and Fred Calet, a

lawyer.
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116
ADDRESS: 289 "A” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 7900
OWNER: Robert and Karin Schumann LOT: 8

2339-3 Patterson Dr.
Eugene, OR 97405

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 10

PLAT: Hills Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1938 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof with composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane divided
horizontally into four panes. There is a round window on the west side of the main
entrance. The building faces north on the corner of A" Street and South Third Street and
is in good condition.

The building was constructed by Marvin Pipers in 1938. Piper was a lumberman in the
area and lived in the residence until the 1950s. The subsequent occupant was Joe Craehan,
the owner of the Mt. Fir Lumber Yard.

117
ADDRESS: 15 Log Cabin Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 3800
OWNER: Jeanette Currier LOT: 8

Jeffery Boyd

15 Log Cabin Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 7
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story building is T shaped in plan. It has a gable
roof with an intersecting front clipped gable and gable dormer. The gable end of the front
elevation is brick and the north and east ell are clad with narrow shiplap siding. Windows
are elongated two over two double hung wood sash. The windows in the gable end of the
front elevation are capped with a brick label hood mold. The porch extends across the front



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-28)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _7 Page _72

elevation and is covered by a hip roof, which is supported by tapered boxed posts. The
building faces west at the corner of Log Cabin and ”A” streets and is in fair condition.

The original owner of the building was a Mr. Ervine. Oscar Moore was the Chief of Police
in the 1920’s -1930’s, was a former resident of the building.

118
ADDRESS: 16 Log Cabin Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 5700
OWNER: Wilber and Edna Youtzy LOT: l

P.O. Box 353

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp’s Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1912 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with a gable dormer. The roof has exposed rafters, purlins and
diagonal braces. The gable end is covered with fishscale shingles. Narrow weatherboard
sheaths, finished with cornerboards, covers the exterior. Windows are one over one
double hung wood sash and fixed pane with multi-paned diamond panes on the top
portion. Aluminum storms have been added to the windows. The concrete foundation is
capped by a watertable. Boxed porch posts support the front porch which is covered by a
hip roof. The building faces east on the comer of ”A” and Log Cabin Streets and is in
good condition.

The building was constructed about 1912 by E. W. Sloper. Sloper’s father, Henry, and
grandfather, I. M., built the first saw and grist mill in Independence. E.W. Sloper grew
hops on a large ranch south of Independence.

119

ADDRESS: 46 Log Cabin Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 5800
OWNER: Howard and Stills Altermalt LOT: 2

215 E. Clay Street
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
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YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan with an
intersecting gable roof. The roof has a wide rakeboard, composition shingles, and jigsaw
cut brackets. Narrow shiplap siding with comer pilasters sheaths the exterior. A concrete
block foundation supports the building. The windows are paired one over one double
hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. The front porch is supported by chamfered
posts and covered with a hip roof. Alterations include some window modifications and a
new chimney. The building faces North on Log Cabin Street and is in good condition.

This building was originally located on the corner of "A” and Walnut Streets. The building
was moved to its present location by Mr. Gooch in 1910. Gooch was a hop farmer in the

area.
120
ADDRESS: 70 Log Cabin Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 5900
OWNER: Karen and Edward LOT: 3
Waggoner
70 N. Log Cabin Steet
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp’s Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1912 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with a gable dormer and composition shingles. Asphalt shingle over narrow
shiplap siding sheaths the house. A concrete foundation supports the residence. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed sash with a polygonal bay
window on the south elevation. Battered porch posts support a recessed front porch which
extends the length of the front elevation. The residence has a symmetrical facade. The
building faces east on Log Cabin Street and is in excellent condition.

The Werline family built and occupied the building from 1917 until the 1960’s. George
Werline was a hop grower. '
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121
ADDRESS: 92 Log Cabin Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 6000
OWNER: Tyrus and Virginia Cronk LOT: 4

92 Log Cabin Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1906 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with composition shingles. The roof has bracketed eaves and exposed rafters.
Fire retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building.
The windows are one over one double hung wood sash. There is a panelled front door
with beveled glass. The hip roof front porch has tapered boxed porch posts and a solid
balustrade. There is a planter box incorporated into the front porch. The windows have
been altered and the building resided. There are two gable roof storage sheds to the west.
The building faces east on the corner of Log Cabin Street and Butler Street and is in good
condition.

The building was occupied by Ward Butler in 1918. Butler was an insurance agent with
the New York Life Insurance. The Harpole family bought the building from the Butlers
and resided there until 1943 when Ray Haener bought the building. Millie and Lewis .
Kelley moved into the residence in 1951.

122
ADDRESS: 85 Walnut Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6100
OWNER: Thomas J. Walrod LOT: 5

85 Walnut Street

Independence, OR.97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is square in plan and has a truncated hip roof
with composition shingles. The residence has been resided with asphalt shingles. A

concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung
wood sash and have been altered on the south elevation. There is a hip roof porch with
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exposed rafters, plain square posts and an open balustrade. The building faces west on the
corner of North Walnut Street and North Butler Street and is in good condition.

The building has had many residents over the years including D. A. Hodge, O.A.
Kreamer, B.L. Rockwell, and J.J.Williams. Kreamer owned a jewelry and men'’s clothing
store on Main Street between "C” and Monmouth Streets.

123
ADDRESS: 71 Walnut Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 6200
Contributing
OWNER: Arthur and Ehrman Ward LOT: 6
71 Walnut Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp’s Addition STYLE: Vermacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof.
Wide shiplap siding with cornerboards and shingles in the gable ends sheath the exterior.

A pumice block foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double
hung wood sash. There is a panelled and glazed door with a double panel transom window
on the front elevation. There is a shed roof porch with a projecting gabled entry. The
porch on the north elevation has been removed, a foundation added and the chimney
replaced. The building faces west on North Walnut Street and is in fair condition.

The original owner of the building was D.A. Hodge who bought it from J.S. Cooper.
Letters addressed to Hodge found in the attic date from the the 1880’s. J.G. and Lottie
McIntosh owned and lived in the residence for a number of years shortly after the turn of
the century. Mclntosh was the principal of the grade school and his wife Lottie Hedge was
a member of the pioneer Hedge family, prominent hop growers in Independence. Artand
N.Ehrman Ward bought the building in the 1920’s from Casmo Guylo. Art Ward was
born in Independence at 210 Williams Street December 3, 1900. The Wards were dairy
farmers who sold cream to the Independence Creamery. Art began working as a janitor at
the Farmer's State Bank and later worked at the bank as a teller, bookkeeper, and Notary
Public. During the depression he secured a job at a hardware store and later worked as a
bookkeeper for the Horst Co. Hop Farms. Ward worked at Francis Holt Machine Shop
until his retirement in 1974.
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124
ADDRESS: 37 Walnut Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 6300
OWNER: Patrick and Kathryn Stillson LOT: 7

37 Walnut Street

Independence, OR. 97351 -
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with an
intersecting gable roof covered with shingles. Narrow shiplap siding with cornerboards
sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
leaded glass fixed pane with a projecting cornice which replaced the original windows.
There is a projecting bungalow era front porch with square posts and a solid balustrade on
the front elevation. The original posts supporting the building have been replaced with a
concrete foundation. There is an addition on the north elevation, a new chimney and the
second story and front porch were added sometime after 1913. There is an outbuilding
associated with the property. The building faces west on Walnut Street and is in excellent
condition.

The original owners of the building were the Hodge family, who bought the newly
completed house from D. B. Taylor around 1890. Mr. Hodge moved to Independene from
Canada in the 1880’s and was manager of the Charles K. Spaulding Logging Co. fora
number of years. He also was the city librarian in 1911-12.

125
ADDRESS: 350 "A” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 6400
John and Kim Caulfield LOT: 8
350 "A” Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Gothic Revival
YEAR BUILT: 1886 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story church is rectangular in plan and has a front facing gable
roof. A second gable roof projects from the front elevation which covers the entrance.
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Wide shiplap siding, finished with comerboards, sheaths the exterior. A wooden
watertable caps the concrete block foundation. Four over four double hung wood sash
Gothic arched windows are located on the west elevation and six over six double hung sash
windows are on the east facade. There is a flat arched entry portico and paired panel
entrance doors which are flanked by bulls eye windows on the front facade. Alterations to
the building include a shed roof addition on the east elevation, concrete entrance stairs, a
recent addition of a balustrade and the. removal of the steeple. The building faces south on
the comer of North Walnut and "A” streets and is in good condition.

The Christian Church was built in 1886 by members of the congregation for a cost of
$2,000 and was originally located on the corner of 3rd and "D” streets. It was later moved
to it’s present location and used by the Pythian Sisters. It was eventually converted into a
private residence.

126
ADDRESS: 357 "A” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 8900
OWNER: Julio and Diana M. Leos LOT: 8

Juanita Copeland

357 "A”Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has a gable roof with a projecting gable and gable dormer. The roof material
is composition shingle. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
supports the building. The windows are paired one over one double hung wood sash with
a projecting cornice. There is a hip roof entry porch with exposed rafters and brackets.
Aluminum windows have been added. The building faces north on "A” Street and is in
poor condition.

This building was occupied by Homer Ruch in the 1920’s and 1930’s.
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127
ADDRESS: 15 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 9000
OWNER: Geraldine Oltmanns and LOT: 8
Larry Oltmanns
415 S. 4th Street
i Independence. OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingles. The exterior is covered with
narrow shiplap siding with corner pilasters. A brick pier foundation supports the building.
The windows are shortened one over one double hung wood sash, and four over four
double hung wood sash on the east elevation. The hip roof porch has square posts with
simple caps, and a solid rail. The porch has been partially enclosed. There is a shed roof
addition. There is a shed with board and batten and narrow shiplap siding associated with
the structure. The building faces west on the corner of South Fourth Street and "A” Street
and is in fair condition.

128
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 8800
OWNER: Lloyd and Adelin Oltmanns LOT: 7
41 S. Fourth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
129a.
ADDRESS: 41 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 8700
Contributing
OWNER: Lloyd and Adelin Oltmanns LOT: 7

41 S. 4th Street
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Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with a bellcast gable and exposed rafters. The roof is covered with
composition shingles. Fire retardant shingles sheath the exterior. A wood skirt covers the
foundation. Aluminum sliding windows have replaced the original windows. The front
porch has a hip roof and is presently boarded over. The building is currently undergoing
major remodelling. There is a carport to the east which is a later addition. The building
faces west on South Fourth Street and is in poor condition.

The building was occupied by Maershall Pengra in 1920 until the early 1930’s. Pengra
was the manager of the Independence Sand and Gravel Company.

129b.
ADDRESS: 386 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 8700
Contributing
OWNER: Helen Walker LOT: 5
386 "B” Street '
Independence, Or. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 11
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan with additions and has a
hip roof with composition shingles. Shiplap and vertical siding sheath the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are paired and tripled one over
one double hung wood sash and fixed pane. The building has undergone major alterations
to the front elevation including the addition of brickwork and stairs, ca.1950. There is an
attached carport and garage to the north of the residence.

130 ‘
ADDRESS: 358 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 8600
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OWNER: George V. and Alice Reddell LOT: 56

688 S. Main Street

Independence OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan with additions and has a
gable roof covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding and shingles on the gable
ends sheath the exterior. Wood skirting covers the foundation. The windows are new
fixed pane with a projecting cornice. The porch has a projecting gable roof and battered
porch posts with recessed panels. There is jigsaw woodwork on the barge boards and
brackets at the eaves. The building faces south on "B” Street and is in good condition.
There is an alley to the east of the residence.

The building was occupied by the Godfrey family in the 1920s. Godfrey was the
postmaster of Independence at the time. Later occupants include Frank Bush, a farmer,
and the Carbaray family.

131
ADDRESS: 357 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 9800
OWNER: Ben Franklin Savings /Loan LOT: 8

Vickie Klein, Agt.

357 "B” Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan. It has a
jerkinhead roof with a front gable, exposed rafters and is covered with composition
shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding with comerboards and shingles in the upper story,
cover the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are twenty-
four over one double hung wood sash with projecting cornices. The front entrance has a
panelled door. The gable porch has squat boxed porch columns with capitals and
decorative brackets. The building faces north on "B” Street and is in good condition.

There is a contributing two car garage with a gable roof and narrow weatherboard siding
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associated with the residence. The structure has a multi-paned panel garage doors.

The building was occupied by D.P. McCarthy from the 1920’s until the 1930’s. McCarthy
owned a hop yard on the east side of the Willamette River. Jim Hart resided in the building
in the 1950s. Hart owned the Ford dealership which was located at 386 S. Main Street.

132
ADDRESS: 385 "B” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 9700
Contributing
OWNER: State of Oregon LOT: 8
Edward and Patricia Stineff
833 N.High St.,
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: 1971 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has an intersecting gable
roof covered with asphalt shingles. Vertical channel siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows have aluminum surrounds. The
building faces north on the corner of "B” Street and South Fourth Street and is in good

condition.

133

ADDRESS: 388 "C” Street

CLASSIFICATION: Non- Compatible TAXLOT: 9600
Non-Contributing

OWNER: John and Laura Moothart LOT: 1/2 Lts.5 and 6
388 "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1948 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has a flat roof.
Asbestos shingles cover the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
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windows are fixed pane. The front entrance is flanked by sidelights. There is an attached
garage on the east elevation. The building faces south on the corner of "C” Street and
South Fourth Street. The building is in good condition.

134

ADDRESS: 360 "C” Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 9500
Contributing

OWNER: Robert and Geraldine Brownell LOT 5
360 "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 12

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract

YEAR BUILT: Ca.1942 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is square in plan with additions. It is covered
with a hip roof of composition shingles and a projecting hip roof entrance. Weatherboard
siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
fixed pane, six over six double hung sash, and a porthole window. There is an attached
garage to the east. The building faces south on "C” Street and is in good condition. There
is an alley to the east.

135
ADDRESS: 363 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 10500
Contributing :
OWNER: Morris and Mona Barker LOT: 7,8
363 "C"” Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR: Ca. 1892 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan. It has a hip roof covered -
with composition shingles. Shiplap siding covers the exterior. A concrete block
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung sash in
pairs and triplets. The chimney has been encased with wood siding and a brick patio
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added. The building faces north on "C” Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was originally occupied by E.F. and Addie Whitaker, the owner of a fumiture
store in downtown. The Walkers, Guy and Kate, resided in the building from 1924-25
until 1940. Walker was a hop worker.Carrie Quarsdors was an occupant in the 1940s.

136
ADDRESS: 389 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 10400
Contributing
OWNER: Barbara Martin LOT: 8
389 S. "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
steep gable roof with boxed eaves covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete block
foundation. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with projecting
cornice and fixed pane. There is a projecting gable entry porch with partial return. There is
a shed roof addition to the rear. The residence has been altered several times. Aluminum
storm windows have been added. There is an attached garage with panelled doors, and a
carport on the west elevation. The building faces north on the comner of "C” Street and
South Fourth Street and is in excellent condition.

Early occupants of the building were the Whiteaker family. The house has had several
occupants including Charles and Lennie Irvine in the 1930’s, John Black in the 1940’s,
Walt and Alta Smith in the 1960's, and the current owner is Barbara Martin, who bought
the building in 1970. During John Black’s occupancy the building was extensively

remodeled.

137

ADDRESS: 386 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 10300
OWNER: Morris and Mona Barker LOT: 5,6

386 Monmouth Street
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Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residence
ALTERATIONS: Moderate GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingle. Weatherboard siding with
comerboards and caps sheaths the exterior. A brick foundation supports the building. The
windows are two over two double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is a
full height polygonal bay window with turned pilasters on the south elevation. Above this
is a gable omament. The entrance to the house is through a panelled door with a transom
light and projecting comice. The entry porch has wrought iron cresting and a lightning
rod. A tower on the southwest comer of the house blew down in 1962 and board and
batten siding was added to the rear extension. Twao tall brick chimneys with corbelled caps
were removed. The residence faces south on the comer of Monmouth Street and South
Fourth Street and is in excellent condition.

A contributing two car garage is located north of the residence and is covered with a gable
roof. A gable ormament decorates the gable end. The building is clad with shiplap siding.

The residence was built by J. A. Wheeler around 1880. Lucy Ann and John Wheeler were
both from New York and first appear in Oregon in the 1880 census. Wheeler was the
general manager of the Prescott and Vaness Sawmill in Independence and operated a
blacksmith shop on Main Street for many years. Wheeler was very active politically and
served on the City Council. The residence remained in the Wheeler family until 1902.
Later occupants include Glen and Carolyn Smith. Smith was an employee of the Farmer
State Bank on Main Street and was Postmaster of Independence from 1933 to 1957. The
building was entered on the National Register of Historic Places in 1986.

138
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 10200
OWNER: Morris and Mona Barber, LOT: 1/2 Lts. 5and 6
Dean and Linda O’Donnell
386 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA

ALTERATIONS: NA
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139
ADDRESS: 363 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 11200
OWNER: Robert and Bonnie Brainard LOT: 7,8

363 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1905 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan. It is
covered with a low pitched intersecting gable roof supported by purlins and diagonal
brace. The roof is covered with composition shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding
sheaths the exterior except for the second story gable which is clad with fishscale shingles.
A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung
wood sash with a projecting cornice. There are bay windows on the east and west
elevations. There is a sleeping porch on the second story of the north elevation. Itis
defined on the exterior by a flat arch with projecting comice and square posts. There is a
recessed wraparound porch with square posts on the first story. The gable peak has a
decorative bargeboard and purlins. The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in
fair condition.

There is a outbuilding with wide shiplap siding associated with the residence. It is covered
by a gable roof. Directly south of the outbuilding is a small one car garage which is
covered by a gable roof and clad with shiplap siding. The two buildings are attached.

The building was occupied by William Craven, a prominent businessperson in
Independence. Craven was mayor of the town from 1908 to 1909 and owned the Craven
Building on Main Street. Craven operated a confectionary store in his building. A later
resident of the building was Elmer Bamhart who served as mayor of Independence from
1946 to 1949.

140

ADDRESS: 389 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 11300
Contributing

OWNER: Landen Daniels LOT: 7.8

James Helton
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3590 Eola Dr.

Salem OR 97304
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan. It has an
intersecting gable roof with composition shingles and a gable dormer on the north
elevation. Narrow shiplap siding with comerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung sash with a
projecting cornice. There is a slightly projecting entrance with a round headed door
opening on the main elevation. The entrance has been altered, a picture window added to
the north elevation, and the porch enclosed on the west elevation. The building faces north
on the corner of Monmouth and South Fourth Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was constructed in 1900 by Dr. Otis Butler, a well known doctor in
Independence, for his son and daughter-in-law, Maurice and Laura Otis. Dr. Otis lived
across the street at 411 Monmouth. Maurice was a dentist and had his office on South Main
Street in Independence.

141
ADDRESS: 365 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 11100
OWNER: Lydia Kosel LOT: 6

P.O.Box 425

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a truncated hip
roof with a frontal gable covered with wood shingles. Narrow shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. Vertical paving stones support the building. The
windows are multi-light casement. There is a sunburst ornament in the gable end and a
wide barge board with paired brackets at the eaves. The windows have been replaced ca.
1930, and the porch enclosed. The building faces west on South Fourth Street and is in
good condition.
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There is a one car garage associated with the structure. The garage has a gable roof and is
covered with shiplap siding. Alterations to the structure include plywood garage doors.
The building was occupied by Bill Ramey in the 1940’s.

142
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 11000
OWNER: Mary May and Gordon Gordon LOT: 5
21510 Bear Creek Rd.
Bend, OR 97701
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 14
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
143
ADDRESS: 363 "D” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 2300
Contributing
OWNER: Doris and Richard Case LOT: 1/2 Lts.7 and 8
P.O. Box 404 )
Aquora, CA 91301
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 15
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
overhanging eaves. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
supports the building. The windows are aluminum sliders. There is a recessed porch with
square posts on the front elevation. The roof has been altered.

There is a two car garage with a bracketed gable roof, shiplap siding and a folding door.

144
ADDRESS: 389 "D" Street _
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 2400

OWNER: Betty and Bernard Lewis LOT: 7,8
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389 "D” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 15

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story building is rectangular in plan and has a truncated hip roof
with a small intersecting front gable. A wide frieze board, with decorative brackets,
extends around the perimeter. There are paired one over one double hung wood sash
windows on the east and west elevations. The exterior is sheathed with variegated shingle
siding. A concrete block foundation supports the building. The front porch projects from
the main volume of the house and is covered by a gable roof. Exposed rafter ends and
purlins embellish the porch roof, which is supported with boxed posts. Alterations include
residing (ca.1920), the replacement of the front bay window, and a new foundation(1983).
The building is located on the corner of ”"D” Street and South Fourth Street and is in good
condition.

The building was occupied by A. G. Foster in the 1930s. Foster was the Mayor of
Independence from 1940 to 1941 and a depot agent at the Southem Pacific Railroad depot
in Independence.

145
ADDRESS: 461 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 2200
Contributing
OWNER: Indep-Mon CH Nazarene LOT: 1
PO Box 95
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
jerkinhead roof with an intersecting front and side gable. Undulating asbestos shingles
sheath the exterior. The windows are fixed pane. There is a bay window and an arched
recessed entry way. There are miniature brackets above the belt course and a corbelled end
wall chimney on the north elevation. The building has been resided and the windows
altered. There is a one story gable roof storage shed associated with the residence. The
building faces west on South Fourth Street and is in good condition.
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The building was occupied by Cecil Messenger in the 1930’s. Cecil was the Station Master
at the Independence Depot and Mrs. Messenger worked in the First National Bank in
downtown Independence.

146
ADDRESS: 485 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 2100
OWNER: Manuela and Leoncio Reyna LOT: 172Lt. 5
485 S. Fourth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 15
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEARBUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a hip roof with a front intersecting
gable roof covered with composition shingles. The gable ends are covered with fishscale
shingles and brackets embellish the eaves. Shiplap siding, finished with corner boards,
sheath the exterior. Windows are one over one double hung wood sash and are covered
with aluminum storms. The windows are capped with cornices. A watertable caps the
concrete foundation. The recessed porch is supported by tumed porch post. The building
faces west on the corner of South Fourth and "E” Streets and is in good condition.

147
ADDRESS: 368 "E” Street :
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2000
OWNER: Victor Moore LOT: 5

P.O.Box 76545

Los Angelos, CA.
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 15
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1875 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and hasan -
intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingles. The rear extension has a gable
roof. Weatherboard siding and cornerboards with caps sheath the exterior. A post and
beam foundation supports the building. The windows are narrow one over one double
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hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. The doors are panelled and glazed. The porch
posts have been temporarily removed on the front porch. The building faces south on ”E”
Street and is in fair condition.

148
ADDRESS: 482 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2800
OWNER: State of Oregon LOT: 4

Public Warefare Division

482 S. 4th Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a truncated hip
roof with flared eaves and brackets. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are
elongated one over one double hung wood sash with decorative cornices. There is a
polygonal bay window with a hip roof and corner pilasters on the east elevation. The front
door has a blind transom light. There is a hip roof porch with plain posts on the front
elevation. The corbelled chimney pot has been removed. The building faces east on the
corner of South Fourth Street and "E” Street and is in fair condition. :

The building was originally owned by a Mr. Weber. A later occupant was Ollie Beck, a
relative of Sidney Newton, a local Independence historian.

149

ADDRESS: 440 "E” Street

CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 2900
Non-Contributing

OWNER: William Hirschy LOT: 172 Lt. 4
9735 SW Hall Blvd. #36
Tigard, OR 97223

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1965 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: None
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This one story building is rectangular in plan and has a side facing gable roof covered with
composition shingles. Vinyl weatherboard siding sheathes the exterior. The windows are
hoppers. A recessed carport is located on the west side in the building. The building faces
south on "E” Street and is in fair-good condition.

150
ADDRESS: 458 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 2700
Contributing
OWNER: Clinton and Sandy Boylan LOT: 3
458 S. 4th Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK:. 16
PILAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 18935 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a
multi-gable roof with composition shingles. Wide shiplap siding with cornerboards
sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the building. The windows are
single and paired one over one double hung wood sash with decorative muntins. The front
elevation has a fixed pane window. There are french doors on the north elevation. There
is a sunroom on the southwest corner of the house. The double arched entry was added in
1985 and the fenestration altered. The building faces east on South Fourth Street and is in
excellent condition.

The original owner of the building was Eley Fluke. The 1913 Business Directory indicates
that Fluke operated a grocery store from 1913 to 1920 with his partner Mr. Johnson.

151
ADDRESS: 436 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAX LOT: 2600
OWNER: William and Elaine Breyer LOT: 2
104 Windsor Dr.
San Carlos, CA 94070
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16
PLAT: Hill's Town Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1908 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: None



o 10000 OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-89)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 Page _ 22

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is a modified L shaped plan and is covered with
an intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding with
comnerboards sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete foundation. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is a
diamond paned window on the north elevation. The wraparound porch has turned posts.
The building faces east on South Fourth Street and is in fair condition.

The building was originally owned by W. L. Bice. Bice operated Calbreath and Bice
furniture store on Main Street in Independence from approximately 1903 to 1910.

152
ADDRESS: 413 "D” Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 2500
OWNER: Jay Hollowell LOT: 1
P.O. Box 403
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Spanish Colonial
YEAR BUILT: 1928 USE: Religion
ALTERATIONS: Moderate, addition 1960

DESCRIPTION: This two story building is rectangular in plan and has a pedimented gable
roof. Stucco sheaths the exterior and composition shingles cover the roof. The building is
supported by a concrete foundation. Windows are composed of glass overlaid with paired
round-headed window openings and stained glass windows on the side elevations. There
is a round blind arch above the vertical plank door. Dentils, belt courses and miniature
blind arcades decorate the front elevation. Decorative arches, Ionic columns and a circular
stained glass window embellish the entry way. Buttresses support the side elevations. The
rear wing is an addition c. 1965. The building faces east on the corner of "D” Street and
South Fourth Street and is in excellent condition.

The Calvary Presbyterian Church was founded in 1881 and one year later the first church
building was completed in July at the corner of 4th and "D” Street in Independence. In
1925 plans for a new church were under way due to an increase in the congregation.
Funds for the new church were left by C.A. McLaughlin in his will in memory of his wife,
Lola. McLaughlin was the president of the First National Bank and owned a farm north of
Independence. In 1927 the church’s building committee authorized the new building. The
original church building was offered to the Women’s Club for their meeting hall for $1.00
if they moved it off the site. The building was moved to Third Street directly south of the
City Library where it is still in use by the Women's Club. The new church building was
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dedicated to Lola and C.A. McLaughlin in 1928 and cost approximately $21,600 to build.
The Christian Education Unit was added to the original structure in 1956 at the 75th
anniversary celebration. In 1978 the church joined the Wesley Methodist Church to form
the Christ’'s Church Methodist-Presbyterian United.

153
ADDRESS: 446 "D" Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 11700
OWNER: Julis Tallent LOT: 4

446 "D” Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28 BA BLOCK: 17
PLAT: : Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

This one story building is rectangular in plan and has a jerkinshead roof. The exterior is
clad with shiplap siding. The foundation is concrete and capped by a watertable. The
windows are one over one double hung sash windows. A small hood covers the porch
stairs. The building faces south on "D” Street. An alley is to to west. The building is in
good condition.

A small one car garage covered with a gable roof'is located to the north in the alley.

154
ADDRESS: 386 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 11600
Contributing
OWNER: Lydia Kosel LOT: 4
PO Box 425
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 17
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1905 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is T shaped in plan and has a hip roof.
Asbestos shingles and shiplap siding on the rear ell, sheath the exterior. The windows are
one over one double hung wood sash and fixed pane. There is a decorative frieze board
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with vertical boards on the rear ell. Alterations to the building include: the addition of
aluminum storm doors and windows, the replacement of the front window and new siding.
There is a house attached to the building on the west side. The building faces east on South
Fourth Street and is in fair condition.

The building was occupied by Bill Byers in the 1920's. The Kosel’s moved into the
building in 1959. The Kosels owned a used furniture store and shoe repair in downtown

Independence.
155
ADDRESS: 364 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 11500
Contributing
OWNER: M. Kay Langesen LOT: 3
364 S. 4th Street
Independence, OR. 97531 BLOCK: 17
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a hip roof with
composition shingles. Asbestos siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are casement,
and five over one double hung wood sash. There is an enclosed porch with casement
windows. An attached garage is to the north. The building has undergone major
alterations; the front porch was closed in c. 1940. The building faces east on South Fourth
Street and is in fair condition.

The building was occupied by Nick and Velma Veerstag at one time. Velma’s family
owned a farm one half miles south of Independence on Bush Road.

156

ADDRESS: 411 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 11400
OWNE_R: Constance Hewitt LOT: 1,2

Elizabeth and Merritt Hewitt
411 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 17
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PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: East Lake
YEAR BUILT: 1890-91 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a
multi-gable roof with shingles. Shiplap siding with cornerboards and a wide bargeboard
sheath the exterior. A brick foundation supports the building. The windows are one over
one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice and with a decorative motif. There
are segmental arch windows on the north and east elevations. The front door has
decorative panels and one light. A screen door with spindlework is still intact. The wrap
around porch has tumed posts, spindlework and brackets, and is set diagonally at the
corner. There is an attached carriage house. The building faces north on the corner of
Monmouth Street and South Fourth Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was constructed by Ardella and Otis D. Butlerin 1890-91. Otis Butler was a
prominent physician and civic leader and served as mayor from 1902-1903. Dr. Butler
was born in Monmouth, Oregon in 1862, the son of Nancy Murphy and Orville Butler.
Otis’s grandfather came to Oregon in 1849 and was the first postmaster in Portland. Dr.
Butler graduated from Willamette Medical College in Portland and started his practice with
Dr. T. J. Lee in Independence in 1887. In 1890 Butler studied surgery in London, New
York and Paris. His first private practice was located in the First National Bank building
on the second floor in downtown Independence. The Butler’s residence also served as an
office in addition to the downtown office. The first telegraph and car in Independence were
said to be owned by the Butlers. The Bulter residence was on a large lot surrounded by
fruit trees which were a product of Otis’s love of grafting. Bulter was also an avid hunter
and fisherman. Ardella Butler out-lived her by husband twenty-eight years. The residence
remained in the Butler family until 1954 when it was sold and turned into the Elliot
Apartments. It is currently a private residence.

k57
ADDRESS: 410 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAX LOT: 12500
Non-Contributing
OWNER: Carmen and Don Parmenter LOT: 3,4
Farnstrom Mortuary, Inc.
410 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18 :
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Northwest Regional
YEAR BUILT: 1965 USE: Funerary

ALTERATIONS: None
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DESCRIPTION: This one story mortuary is L shaped in plan and has a bellcast gable roof
covered with composition shingles. Vertical board siding sheaths the exterior. The
windows are fixed pane. There is an attached garage on the west end of the building which
faces south on the corner of Monmouth Street and South Fourth. It is in good condition.

The first mortuary located on the site was operated by the Keeney Brothers until 1929
when it was sold to the Smiths and Bauns. The present building was built by by the
Parmenters in 1965. The business was sold to the Farmstroms in 1978.

158
ADDRESS: 230 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 12300
OWNER: Maurice and Starla LOT: 2
Famstrom
460 Monmouth
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca 1930 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has a gable roof with an
intersecting front gable and composition shingles. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. The
windows are six over six double hung wood sash. The metal front door is a later addition.
The building faces east on South Fourth Street and is in good condition.

Bill Raimey occupied the building at one time. Raimey delivered groceries for Calbreath’s
Grocery Store on S. Main Street.

159
ADDRESS: 413 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 12200
OWNER: Jay Hollowell LOT: 12
P.O. Box 403
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Moderate
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DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence has a modified T shaped plan and
an intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding
finished with capped cornerboards sheaths the exterior. Imbricated shingles decorate the
gable ends. A concrete block foundation supports the building. The windows are one over
one double hung wood sash in pairs capped with a projecting comice. There are two
entryways with panelled doors and projecting hip roof porticos. One entry has a panelled
friezeboard and stained glass transom light. There is a decorative corbelled chimney pot.

A rectangular bay has been removed from the front elevation and a second floor added to
the west wing, c. 1920. The building faces north on the comner of ”C” Street and South
Fourth Street.

The building was occupied from 1895 to 1910 by Ed Owen and his family. The Owens
moved to Independence in 1890 and married Anna Mackey in Toledo, Oregon. Owens
was a prominent business person in Independence and had a Card and Billiards Hall on
"C” Street. Mary Chappell owned the building after Owen’s until 1927 when it was sold to
Marie Ruef who occupied the building until the late 1950’s.

160
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 12400
OWNER: Polk County LOT: 1/2 Lt.1 and 2
850 Main Street
Dallas, OR 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: American Renaissance
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
161a
ADDRESS: 150 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 13000
OWNER: School District 13] LOT: 1-5,8;1-8
1600 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 19
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE:
YEAR BUILT: 1926 USE: Educational

ALTERATIONS: Moderate
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DESCRIPTION: This two story school has a modified "H” plan, and is covered with a
multi-hipped and gabled roof with exposed rafters. The building is constructed of brick in
a stretcher bond pattern. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
twelve over twelve double hung wood sash. There are multi-paned arched window
openings on the second story. There is a terra cotta omament between the window bays.
The recessed entry door has vertical panels and a transom light. The gymnasium recently
constructed on the northwest corner of the block to the west of the school building is
associated with the school. The building faces east on one and one half blocks of South
Fourth Street, and is in excellent condition.

The present Independence Elementary School is the site for a former school building which
was constructed in 1891. In 1925-26 the Oregon Normal School built the existing building
fora cost of $117,361 The building was used as a training school facility until it was
converted into a elementary school. A two room addition to the building was made in

1959.
161b
ADDRESS: 150 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 13100
Non-Contributing
OWNER: School District 13] LOT: 5-8
1600 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 19
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1980; 1988 USE: Educational
ALTERATIONS: None

There are three structures located on this lot which are auxiliary buildings to the
Independence Elementary School. The building on the north portion of the lot is a new
gymnasium which is a high one story, gabled roof structure. T-1-11 sheathes the exterior.
A concrete foundation supports the building. The other two buildings are located on the
south end of the parcel and are low roofed gable buildings clad with vinyle siding and
plywood. The buildings are supported on concrete block pier foundations. The buildings
are in good condition.
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161c
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAXLOT: 500
OWNER: School District 13] LOT: 1-4

1600 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 22
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA '
ALTERATIONS: NA
162
ADDRESS: 88 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 13500
OWNER: Milton and Karen Shuman LOT: 4

1208 S. Main Street

Dallas, OR 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 20
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1902 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with a gable dormer and projecting gable entry. The roofing material is
composition shingle. The exterior is covered with thin weatherboard siding and shingles
on the gable ends. There is a wide belt course and exposed rafters and brackets along the
roofline. The front entry porch has been glassed in. The building faces east on the corner
of South Fourth Street and "B” Street and is in good condition.

There is a two car garage to the west of the residence. The building is covered with a
gable roof and has wide eaves with exposed rafters and multi-pane fixed windows.
Shiplap siding clads the exterior. The garage doors are comprised of multi-paned windows
on the top portion of the doors and panels on the lower half.

The building was constructed by the Mott family in 1902. Floyd Robinson occupied the
building in the 1920’s. The residence was owned by Byron Rudell in the mid-1950’s.
Rudell was the owner of the Sunset Hops Yards in the Independence area.
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163
ADDRESS: 66 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 13400
OWNER: Mabel Smith and LOT: 3

Billie Kay Herrell, Agt.

66 S. 4th Street

Independence, OR 97351 _
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 20
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1923 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a multi-planed
gable roof with brackets and a notched bargeboard, which is covered with composition
shingles. Patterned shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. The windows are tripled one over
one double hung wood sash and fixed pane with projecting cornices. There is decorative
lattice work on the gable ends. The fixed pane window is a later addition. The building
faces east on South Fourth Street and is in good condition.

The building was constructed by C.B. Smith in 1923. Smith was in the real estate
business and had an office in downtown Independence. Tom and Mabel Smith moved into
the residence in 1925. The Smith’s owned Smith’s Grocery Store on Main Street in

Independence.
164
ADDRESS: 40 S. 4th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 13300
OWNER: Craig K. Wakkure and LOT: 2

Connie J. Beals

40. S. 4th Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 20
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1904 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan. It has a
hip roof with a projecting front gable and partial returns. The exterior is sided with wide
shiplap siding with cornerboards and shingles in the gable ends. A post and beam
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
with a projecting cornice. Leaded glass windows embellish the front elevation. The
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wraparound porch has jigsawn brackets and turned posts. The shed roof dormers on the
north and south elevation are later additions. The building faces east on South Fourth
Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was occupied by Ray Howard in the 1940’s. Howard was the chief of police
in Independence for many years.

165
ADDRESS:
CLASSIFICATION:

OWNER:

ASSESSOR MAP:
PLAT:

YEAR BUILT:
ALTERATIONS:

432 "A” Street

Non-Compatible
Non-Contributing
Alison and Robert Murray

432 "A" Street

Independence, OR 97351

84 21CD
Thorps Addition
Ca.1970

Minor

TAX LOT:

Minimal Tract
Residential

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof.
Vertical T-11 siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building.
The windows are sliding glass. The building faces south on ”A” Street and is in good.

condition.

166

ADDRESS:
CLASSIFICATION:
OWNER:

ASSESSOR MAP:
PLAT:

YEAR BUILT:
ALTERATIONS:

46 Walnut Street
Primary
Gail Keith and

Mildred Pickering

66 Walnut

Independence, OR 97351

84 21CD
Thorp’s Addition
Ca. 1885
Moderate

TAX LOT:

GARAGE:

Vemacular
Residential
Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has a gable roof with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
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with fixed sash on the first floor, front elevation. There is a shed roof porch with peeled
log supports and railing. There have been a variety of materials used to reside the residence
over the years. The windows have also been altered. There have been several additions to
the rear of the structure. The building faces east on North Walnut Street and is in fair
condition.

There is a contributing detached one car garage associated with the structure. The building
is covered with a gable roof and clad with shiplap siding. The swinging garage doors have
fixed pane windows with four lights.

The original owners of this building was the Cressey family. W.E Cressey was bomn in
New Hampshire, September 23, 1846. Cressey moved to Oregon in 1881 and settled in
Independence in 1883. He was a scholar, a linguist, accomplished violinist and school
teacher. Cressey’s first wife died in 1886 and in 1889 he married Elinhu Tumer of Rock
Island, Ill. Elinhu was a member of the Presbyterian Church.

167
ADDRESS: 66 Walnut Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 6700
Contributing
OWNER: Mildred E. Pickering LOT: 3
66 Walnut Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has a gable roof with composition shingles. Wide shiplap siding with
cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. The gabled
porch on the front elevation has been enclosed and the fenestration has been altered. The
building faces east on North Walnut Street and is in excellent condition.

An early occupant of the building was the Sylvester family. Mr. Sylvester was a druggist
and owned his own store in downtown Independence in the 1930’s.
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168
ADDRESS: 88 Walnut Street
, CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 6800
Contributing
OWNER: Adolph and Ethel Riha LOT: 4
88 Walnut Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 21CD BLOCK: 13
PLAT: Thorp's Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1886 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan with additions.
It is covered with a gable roof with gable dormers and composition shingles. Narrow
shiplap siding with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are multi-light fixed pane and six over six double hung wood sash
on the south elevation. There is a hip roof porch with plain posts and a solid balustrade.
The roof was lowered in 1972 and the fenestration altered. The building faces east on the
corner of North Walnut Street and North Butler Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was owned by the Kurre family in the early 1900’s. Claude Kurre was born
January 14, 1880 in Missouri and came to Oregon in 1884. He lived in Independence until
1925 when he moved to Cottage Grove.

169
ADDRESS: 465 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 12900
OWNER: Charles Franklin LOT: 7,8

465 "C’ Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is asymmetrical in plan and is covered with a
hip roof with intersecting gables and a partial returns. Imbricated shingles decorate the
gable ends. Weatherboard siding with comerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete block
foundation supports the building. The windows are narrow one over one double hung
wood sash capped with a projecting cornice. There is a rectangular bay window with a hip
roof on the front elevation. The front door is panelled. A shed roof front porch with
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battered supports and a solid balustrade projects from the main volume of the residence.
The front porch was added about 1915. The building faces north on ”"C” Street and is in
excellent condition.

There is a detached garage associated with the residence.
An early occupant of the building were Mary Chappell Minnie Hilderbrand. Dr. Beal, the

town chiropractor, resided in the dwelling in the 1920’s.Another long time resident of the
building was Dick Stapleton.

170
ADDRESS: 483-485 "C" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 12800
Contributing
OWNER: Esther Walker LOT: 7.8
Richard S. and Doris Case
P.O. Box 404
Aqoura, CA. 91301
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has an intersecting
hip roof covered with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the exterior.

A concrete and brick foundation supports the residence. The windows are one over one
double hung wood sash and Chicago windows. There is a rectangular bay window with a
shed roof. The hip roof front porch has a projecting gable, plain posts and a solid
balustrade. The front porch is partially enclosed and wraps around the side of the
residence. The rear porch has battered porch supports and a tongue and groove balustrade.
Alterations include: enclosing the porch; a one story rear addition, a battered end wall
chimney and replaced sidelights, ¢.1920. The building faces north on the comer of ”C”
Street and South Fifth Street and is in good condition.

The building was constructed by J. D. Irvine in 1890. J.D. was a merchant and had his
store in the Craven building located at 226 S. Main Street. Charlie Irvin was a prominent
citizen of Independence and was co-owner of the Farmer’s State Bank which was located at
250 S. Main Street.
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171
ADDRESS: 488 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 12700
Contributing
OWNER: Michael and Betty Martin LOE: 56
488 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has a gable roof with gable dormers. The roof is covered with composition
shingles. Wide weatherboard siding and brick sheath the exterior. The windows are
paired one over one and three over one double hung wood sash. The gable ends and
dormers have boxed cornices with partial returns. The rear elevation porch has a hip roof
supported by slender, turned, columns. Brick veneer has been added to the gable end and
some windows have been replaced. The building faces south on the corner of Monmouth
Street and South Fifth Street and is in fair condition.

This building was originally constructed by Charles Mattison who built two other
residences on Monmouth Street. Mattison was born in Oswego, N.Y. in 1848. He married
Elnora Wilson in 1874 and relocated to Oregon in 1878. He farmed on 140 acres directly
across from Independence on the east side of the Willamette. The Mattison’s owned two
businesses in downtown Independence. Charles Mattison was on the city council and was
active in the Elks club and the Odd Fellows. Elnora belonged to various organizations
including the Rebekas, the Degree Circle, the Fraternal Union , the Pythian Sisters and the
Yeomans. Charles and Elnora remained in the residence until 1918 when it was sold to
Grover and Nola Mattison. Grover was a hop farmer in Marion County. Barbara Mattison
Martin was born in the house which is currently owned by Barbara’s son and daughter in
law.

172

ADDRESS: 460 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 12600
Contributing

OWNER: Maurie and Starla Farnstrom LOT: 5,6

460 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 18
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PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1905 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and is
covered with a gable roof of composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one
double hung aluminum sash and fixed pane. The building has been resided and the
windows have been altered. A false diamond pattern is present in the front windows.
Alterations include the installation of aluminium siding, addition of a picture window in the
front elevation and modification of the roof line. The building faces south on Monmouth
Street and is in good condition.

There is a one story garage with a gable roof| sided with weatherboard and an attached
workshop associated with the structure.

This building was originally constructed by Charles Mattison who built two other
residences on Monmouth Street. Mattison was born in Oswego, N.Y. in 1848. He married
Elnora Wilson in 1874 and relocated to Oregon in 1878. He farmed on 140 acres directly
across from Independence side of the Willamette. The Mattison’s owned two businesses in
downtown Independence. Charles Mattison was on the city council and was active in the
Elks club and the Odd Fellows. Elnora belonged to various organizations including the
Rebekas, the Degree Circle, the Fraternal Union , the Pythian Sisters and the Yeomans.
The residence was occupied by Anne Owen ca. 1940 until her death in 1959.

173
ADDRESS: 461 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 12000
OWNER: Lloyd and Doug Birks LOT: 7,8

1703 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 17
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Eastlake
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This two and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan. It has a
multi-gable roof with wide eaves, covered with wood shakes. Shiplap siding and .
decorative shingles on the gable ends sheath the exterior. A brick pier foundation supports
the building. The windows are paired one over one double hung wood sash. There are
rectangular bay windows on the east and west elevations. The front porch is covered by a
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hip roof and pedimented gable. It is supported by tumed posts and spindlework brackets
in a wagon wheel motif. The frieze is panelled and there are spindlework eave brackets.
The building has been reroofed and the chimney replaced. The residence faces north on
Monmouth Street and is in fair condition.

The building was originally owned by Mr. Baldwin in 1895. Claude Skinner occupied the
building in the late 1920s. Skinner operated the stemwheeler which ran up and down the
Willamette River.

174
ADDRESS: 487 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 12100
Contributing
OWNER: Elizabeth Ritchey LOT: 8
487 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 17
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1915 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan. It has a hip roof with hip
roof dormers which is covered with composition shingles. Fire retardant shingles sheath
the exterior. The building has wide overhanging eaves. A concrete foundation supports
the building. The windows are fixed pane, some with four horizontal divisions. There is a
recessed entry. There is an attached garage to the south. The building was extensively
altered in the 1940’s from a two stories to one story. The building faces north on the
corner of Monmouth and South Fifth Street and is in good condition.

Tom and Betty Rirchey were occupants in the 1940’s and altered the residence extensively.
Tom was a mail carrier in Independence.

175

ADDRESS: 545 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 2100
OWNER: Bruce and Kay Johnson LOT: 1

545 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24
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PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1913 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan. It hasa gable
roof with gable dormers covered with composition shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding
sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
twelve over one double hung wood sash with projecting cornices. Aluminum storm
windows have been added to the exterior of the building. The gable dormers have nine
over one double hung wood sash windows. Sidelights flank the front door. There is a
projecting gabled entry way on the main elevation. An attached garage is situated to the
south at the back of the residence. A shed addition is attached to the west end of the
garage. The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in excellent condition.

An early resident of the building was Betty Denton. The residence was later used as the
parsonage for the Methodist Church which stood on the corner until the early 1960’s.

176
ADDRESS: 520, 530 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAX LOT: 1300
Non-Contributing
OWNER: Ken Trosper LOT: 4
PO Box 303
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1970 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story duplex is rectangular in plan. It has a flat roof with a
horizontal eave board capped with metal. Vertical shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. The
building has hollow concrete block support walls. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are fixed pane. The building faces south on the comer of
Monmouth Street and South Fifth Street and is in fair condition.

177
ADDRESS: 260 S. 5th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 1200

OWNER: Robert and Clarabe Connelly LOT: 3
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Jeffrey and Debbie Norman
260 S. 5th Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. There are boxed eaves with a partial
return. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A rock faced concrete block
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash
and fixed pane. The front porch has a rock faced concrete block balustrade and square
posts with paired boxed piers. The building has been resided, a window added to the front
gable end, and two porch posts have been replaced with wrought iron supports. The
building faces east on South Fifth Street and is in good condition.

An early resident of the building was Sidae Walker, a local hop farmer. Melford Nelson, a
teacher, occupied the building in the late 1930’s and 1940’s.

178
ADDRESS: 240 S. 5th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 1100
OWNER: Assembly of God Church LOT: 2

P.O. Box 67

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Vacant
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
steeply pitched gable roof covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding sheaths the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are aluminum
sliders. There is a small gabled entry way. There is an addition on the north elevation and
all the windows have been altered. The building faces east on South Fifth Street and is in
poor condition.
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179

ADDRESS: 210 S. 5th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1101
Contributing

OWNER: Assembly of God Church LOT: 1, /2Lt 2
P.O. Box 67
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23

PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1950 USE: Religious

ALTERATIONS: Moderate

180

ADDRESS: 544 "C” Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 600

OWNER: Alma Vidala Oliveros LOT: 1/3 Lt.3 and 4

544 "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 22

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1919 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor '

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with decorative brackets and exposed rafters. The roof material is composition
shingle. Weatherboard siding and decorative shingles on the gable ends sheath the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one
double hung wood sash with a divided upper sash and projecting cornice, aluminum sliders
and fixed pane. There is a glassed-in front porch which extends the length of the front
elevation. Several windows have been altered. The building faces south on "C” Street
and is in good condition.

The building was occupied by Paul Robinson in the early 1930s. Robinson was a teacher
at Independence High School for many years. The Howard family were residents in the
1950s.

181
ADDRESS: 558 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 700
OWNER: : Katie and Kleinman Kilfoil LOT: 5-8
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558 "C” Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 22

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan. It has a
hip roof with intersecting gables with partial returns and is covered with composition
shingles. The exterior is sheathed with shiplap siding and the gable peak on the east
elevation has decorative shingles. A wooden watertable caps the concrete block
foundation. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash in pairs, with a
continuous belt course at the heads, cornerblocks, and decorative surrounds. There is a
horizontal panel docr with a transom light. The porch wraps around the east elevation and
is covered with a hip roof and pedimented gable supported by turned porch posts and a
tumned balustrade. There are quarter round sunbursts at the gable ends, frieze brackets and
a decorative chimney pot on top of the roof. A wood shed with shiplap siding is associated
with the residence. The building faces south on "C” Street and is in excellent condition.

The building was occupied by Dr. Hewitt around 1900. A later resident of the building
was Keith Reicht in 1941.

182
ADDRESS: 576 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 800
Contributing
OWNER: State of Oregon LOT: 5
Joe and Alice Guffey
450 SE Lacreole Dr.#65
Dallas, OR 97338
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 22
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1915 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof covered with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding covers the
exterior. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed pane. A porch
with a brick foundation covers the length of the front elevation. There is an addition to the
north elevation. The building faces south on "C” Street and is in good condition.

The building was once occupied by Percy Dickenson, a rural mail carrier for the area.
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183
ADDRESS: 115 S. 6th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 900
OWNER: Anne Popoff LOT: 8

115 S. 6th Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 22
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Cal910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is square in plan and has a gable
roof with paired gable dormers cut into the roof line. The roof is covered with composition
shingles. The dormers and eaves have brackets. Shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung
wood sash with decorative diamond patterns. There is a rectangular bay window with a
shed roof on the south elevation. The partially enclosed front porch runs the length of the
front elevation. There is an attached carport and garage to the south. The building faces
west on South Sixth Street.

The building was occupied by Dr. Bennett prior to the 1940's. Ann Popoff purchased the
residence from Bennett and still occupies the building.

184
ADDRESS: 592 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1000
Contributing
OWNER: Nancy T. Bischel LOT: 5
592 "C” Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 22
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1950 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is irregular in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof covered with composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior.
A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung
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aluminum sash. There is a circular window next to the entrance on the main elevation. The
building faces south on the corner of "C” Street and South Sixth Street and is in good

condition.
185
ADDRESS: 555 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 2000
Contributing
OWNER: Charles and Bonnie Peter LOT: 8
1165 High Street SE '
Salem, OR 97302
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1940 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has a hip roof covered
with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are two over two double hung wood sash
with horizontal divisions. The front door has nine lights. There is an attached one car
garage with a hip roof. The building faces north on "C” Street and is in good condition.
There is an alley to the east.

186
ADDRESS: 565 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 1900
Contributing
OWNER: Juan and Bertha Carrillo LOT: 8
565 "C" Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1943 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof with composition shingles. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior with vertical
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siding around the entrance. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows
are two over two double hung wood sash with aluminum storm windows. There is an
attached one car garage to the west. The building faces north on ”C” Street and is in fair

condition.
187
ADDRESS: 589 "C" Street
CLASSIFICATON: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1801
Contributing
OWNER: State of Oregon/ LOT: 1/4 Lts. 7 and 8
Ben Wilson Center, Inc.
P.O. Box 65
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Northwest Regional
YEAR BUILT: 1981 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is irregular in plan and is covered with both a
hip roof and an intersecting front gable and shed roof. Vertical and horizontal siding sheath
the exterior with diagonal siding on the gable ends. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are fixed pane and aluminum sliders. There is a panelled front
door. A two car garage with a gable roof is attached to the west side. The building faces
north on "C” Street and is in good condition.

188
ADDRESS: 593 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 1800
OWNER: Elmore G. Agena LOT: 1/4 Lts. 7 and 8
Donald and Judith Watson
593 "C” Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 18
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: English Cottage
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1927 USE: . Residential
ALTERATIONS: None GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
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jerkinhead roof with paired gable dormers with rolled eaves. There is a projecting gable
entry with rolled eaves and shed roof dormers on the south elevation. The roof material is
composition shingle. The exterior is stucco and a concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are zight over one double hung wood sash with multi-light
casement on either side. There is a blind rectangular bay on the south elevation. The
gabled entry has an arched opening and massive piers. The building faces north on the
cormner of ”C” Street and South Sixth Street and is in good condition.

There is a contributing garage connected to the residence by a breezeway. The one car
garage is covered by a jerkinshead rolled roof sheathed with red composition shingles. The
structure is finished with stucco and has a tri-paneled garage door with multi-paned fixed
windows on the upper portion of the doors.

The residence was constructed by Kenneth Williams in 1928. Williams owned a dry goods
store in Independence which was located at 184 S. Main Street in the Old Fraternal Hall.
Later occupants included Jr. and Maxine Hartman, Barbara Martin and El Agena.

189
ADDRESS: 590 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1700
Contributing
OWNER: Alice Layton LOT: 5
Claudia and Layton Bennett
590 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 1943 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a hip roof with
composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are six over one double wood hung sash
and fixed pane. The shed roof entry porch is supported by slender fluted columns. There
is a carport attached to the north elevation. The building faces south on the comer of
Monmouth Street and South Sixth Street and is in good condition.
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190
ADDRESS: 580 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1600
Contributing
OWNER: John and Cynthia Benson LOT: 5
580 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 1943 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
composition shingles. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are fixed pane. The building faces south on
Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

191
ADDRESS: 570 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 1500
Contributing
OWNER: James and Phyllis Kozisek LOT: 5
570 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 1943 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a hip roof with
composition shingles. Vinyl siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports
the building. The house has aluminum sliding windows and fixed pane windows with
aluminum frames. There is an enclosed front entry porch with a hip roof which projects
from the main elevation. There is an attached garage to the east and a shed addition to the
rear. The building has been resided. The building faces south on Monmouth Street and is
in good condition.
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192
ADDRESS: 560 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 1400
Contributing
OWNER: David and Chery Parmenter LOT: S
560 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 23
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1950 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
composition shingles. Vinyl weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete and
concrete block foundation supports the building. The windows are paired one over one
double hung wood sash with shutters and fixed pane. The porch has wrought iron porch
supports. The building faces south on Monmouth Street and is in good condition. There is
an alley to the east.

193
ADDRESS: 555 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 3200
OWNER: Vivian L. Hansen and LOT: 7,8

Paul Duchien

555 Monmouth

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has a catslide roof covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding ending
in comerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are one over one and four over four double hung wood sash with a projecting
cornice. There is a rectangular bay on the east elevation and a transom light over the
entrance. The hip roof porch has square posts and a solid balustrade. The porch was
altered in 1892, the windows have been altered and an addition was made to the east _
elevation c. 1950. There is an attached woodshed with board and batten siding associated
with the residence. The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in fair condition.
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The building is reported to be one of the oldest structures on Monmouth Street. The
residence was built by William Jones in 1885 and was then sold to Thomas McKinley. In
1943 the building was purchased by Henry Meyers. Another resident included Vivian
Trosper Hanson, a seamstress.

194
ADDRESS: 565 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 3100
Contributing
OWNER: Merrill and Jessie Webb LOT: 8
565 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1975 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has an intersecting gable
roof covered with wood shakes. Vertical channel siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The house has aluminum sliding windows and fixed
pane windows. There is a recessed porch with square posts. There is an attached garage.
The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

195
ADDRESS: 581 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION:  Secondary TAXLOT: 3000
OWNER: Norman and Patricia Lohser LOT: 8

581 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
front facing gable with purlins, exposed rafters. The roof is covered with composition
shingles. There are shed roof dormers. Narrow weatherboard siding and shingles on the
upper one half story sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The
windows are six over one double hung wood sash and casement windows at the attic level.
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There is diagonal wood trim above the windows. The porch has brick stairs and a brick
floor. There is a one story multi-paned sun room on the rear elevation. The chimney has
been recently added. The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in good
condition.

There is a one car garage with a gable roof and weatherboard siding to the east of the
residence. -

The building was occupied by Judge Harding from the 1940’s to the 1960’s. Harding was
a justice of the peace and worked in the Valsetz Railroad Depot.

196
ADDRESS: 593 Monmouth street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 2900
OWNER: Kathleen Poole LOT: 8
915 Margaret
Monmouth, OR 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1913 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Minor GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is square in plan and has an
intersecting gable roof with gable dormers and exposed rafters. It is covered with
composition shingles. Thin weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are paired twelve over one double hung
wood sash with projecting cornices and a four over one double hung wood sash triple
window. There is a gable roof porch with square posts and a solid balustrade on the main
elevation. The building faces north on the comer of Monmouth Street and South Sixth
Street and is in good condition.

There is a contributing detached one car garage to the south associated with the residence.
The building is covered with a gable roof and clad with weatherboard siding. Brackets
embellish the gable end.

Early residents of the building were Clair and Edna Irvine in 1917. Clair worked in the
Farmer’s State Bank located on Main Street. The building was later occupied by Clair's
son and daughter-in-law, Bob and Ruth Irvine.
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197 _
ADDRESS: 615 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6300
OWNER: Robin Brandt, David Fish, LOT: |

and Thomas R. Wilson

615 Monmouth Street

; Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28 BB BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Italianate
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is square in plan with a rear addition. It has a
low pitched hip roof covered with composition shingles. The addition has a gable roof,
Wide shiplap siding with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation
supports the building. The windows are elongated one over one double hung wood sash
with a projecting cornice. There are six over six and four over four double hung wood
sash windows on the back porch. The front door has a transom light and the side door is
glazed and panelled. There is a decorated frieze along the roofline and paired brackets at
the eaves. The front porch has been removed and the rear porch rebuilt. The building
faces north on the corner of Monmouth Street and South Sixth Street and is in excellent
condition.

This building was originally constructed by Charles Mattison who built two other
residences at 460 and 488 Monmouth Street. Mattison was born in Oswego, N.Y. in
1848. He married Elnora Wilson in 1874 and relocated to Oregon in 1878. He farmed on
140 acres directly across from Independence on the east side of the Willamette. The
Mattison’s owned two businesses in downtown Independence. Charles Mattison was on
the city council and was active in the Elks club and the Odd Fellows. Elnora belonged to
various organizations including the Rebekas, the Degree Circle, the Fraternal Union , the
Pythian Sisters and the Yeomans. The Mattisons occupied the building until 1921.

198

ADDRESS: 645 Monmouth Street

CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAXLOT: 6301
Non-Contributing

OWNER: Horace and Eunice Weston LOT: 1

645 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
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YEAR BUILT: 1959 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is L shaped in plan and has an intersecting hip
roof. Board and batten siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the
building. The windows are aluminum sliders and fixed pane. There is a recessed carport
attached to the residence. The building faces north on Monmouth Street and is in good

condition.
199
ADDRESS: 286 S. 6th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 3600
OWNER: Russell and Ida Betts LOT: 4

286 S. 6th Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1915 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is L shaped in plan. It has a gable
roof with a wide barge board and brackets covered with composition shingles. Narrow
weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. Wood shingles cover the concrete foundation.
The windows are one over one double hung wood sash with aluminum storm windows.
The front porch has large boxed columns, a tie beam and a solid balustrade. There is an
enclosed porch on the south elevation. There is a beltcourse above the first story windows.
A stair railing, and a chimney have been added. The building faces east on the corner of
South Sixth Street and Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

The building was occupied by George Wood in the 1930’s. Wood was a blacksmith by
trade and served as fire chief for several years.

200

ADDRESS: 266 S. 6th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 3500
OWNER: Zimmerman Hannelore, etal LOT: 3

Rt 2, Box 30-BB
Philomath, OR 97370
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
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PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a jerkinhead roof
covered with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. There are
purlins on the gable end and an arched entry hood over the front door. The pipe columns
on the front steps are a new addition. The building faces east on South Sixth Street and is
in good condition.

The building was occupied by George Woods, fire chief in Independence during the 1920s

and 1930s.
201
ADDRESS: 244 S. 6th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 3400
OWNER: Lynda Werline LOT: 2

244 S. 6th Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: 1937 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan and has a
gable roof with a swept gable entry way. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A
concrete foudnation supports the building. The windows are paired three over one double
hung wood sash with shutters and fixed pane. There is an arched entry way. The fixed
pane window on the front elevation is a later addition. The building faces east on South
Sixth Street and is in good condition.

The building was constructed by the Charboneux family. The Charboneux owned a
grocery store in downtown Independence. Omabelle Mc Bee , a teacher, lived in the
residence in the 1940’s and John Werline, a barber, also occupied the building.

202
ADDRESS: 212 S. 6th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary: TAXLOT: 3300

OWNER: Bemard and Kay Urell EOT: l
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212 S. 6th Street
Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28

PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan. It has a
gable roof with one central shed dormer and is covered with composition shingles. Shiplap
siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
one over one double hung wood sash with aluminum storm windows. The porch has
boxed columns with capitals and a solid balustrade. There is a historic shed addition on the
rear elevation which is attached to a small one story gable building. The building faces east
on the corner of South Sixth Street and "C” Street and is in good condition.

There is a two car garage with panelled doors, a gable roof and shiplap siding on the west
end of the property.

The building was occupied in the late 1920's and 1930's by Virgil M. De Coaster. De
Coaster was the owner of a hop yard in Marion County across the Willamerte River.
Martin Genntemann, a dairyman, moved into the residence sometime after 1941.

203
ADDRESS: 669 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 3900
Contributing
OWNER: Delayne & Margret Paulsen LOT: 8
669 "C" Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1955 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
an intersecting front gable. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior with roman brick
surrounding the entrance. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are
fixed pane. The building faces north on the corner of "C” Street and South Seventh Street.
There is a park located diagonally to the west. The building is in good condition.
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204
ADDRESS: 686 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 3800
Contributing
OWNER: Clarence King LOT: )
660 Monmouth
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and is covered with a hip
roof of composition shingles and exposed rafters. Vinyl weatherboard siding sheaths the
exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the building. The windows are metal
sliders and fixed pane. There is a recessed side entry. The building has been resided and
the windows altered. The building faces south on the corner of Monmouth Street and
South Seventh Street and is in good condition.

The building was occupied in the 1950’s and 1960’s by Grace Cuthbert.

205
ADDRESS: 660 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAX LOT: 3700
Contributing
OWNER: Clarence and Diana King LOT: 5
660 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351 :
ASSESSOR MAP; 84 28BB BLOCK: 28
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca.1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is irregular in plan. It is covered by a mansard
roof with a gable dormer and composition shingles. Weatherboard siding sheaths the
exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are fixed pane.
There is a rectangular bay window on the main elevation. This residence has had major
alterations. The windows have been changed and there is an addition to the east elevation,
c. 1950. The building faces south on Monmouth Street and is in fair condition. There is
an alley to the east.
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There is a two car detached garage to the north associated with the residence. The garage is
covered with a gable roof and is clad with vinyl horizontal siding.

206
ADDRESS: 675 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 6800
OWNER: Gerald and Betty Morlan, LOT: 7,8
Geanne Fraley, Agt.
675 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Craftman
YEAR BUILT: 1914 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a multi-gable
roof with wide overhanging eaves and composition shingles. The weatherboard siding on
the first story and shingles on the second story are separated by a belt course. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are six over one double hung wood sash.
The entrance has leaded glass and sidelights with a medallion motif. The gabled entry.
porch is supported by square wooden posts which rest on brick pedestals. The porch has
curvilinear brackets and projecting rafters. There is a porte cochere on the west elevation
below a sleeping porch with french doors. The carport is a later addition and the sun
porches on the southwest comer have been enclosed. The building faces north on the
corner of Monmouth Street and South Seventh Street and is in excellent condition.

A contributing small guest house constructed after 1925 is located southeast of the house.

This building was constructed in 1914 by Kersey and Ruth Eldridge. Kersey, a prominent
businessperson in Independence, owned the local creamery from 1899 to 1922. The
creamery was a very profitable business throughout the northwest. Eldridge came to
Oregon in 1897 from Utah and started a creamery in Newberg. In 1899 Eldridge moved to
Independence and started another creamery. The creamery was very successful and in
connection with the Independence plant he organized a business in the town of Jefferson,
Marion County. The plant in Independence had a capacity of 25,000 gallons of milk and
made one thousand pounds of butter a day. Eldridge was very civic minded and from 1912
to 1915, he served as mayor. He was a member of the Independent Odd Fellows, the
Woodman of the World and the Ancient Order of United Workmen. The Eldridges
occupied the residence until they moved to Portland in 1922. J.G.and Lottie McIntosh
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lived in the building during the 1920's. McIntosh was in real estate. The building is on the
National Register of Historic Places.

207
ADDRESS: 388 S. 7th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary: TAXLOT: 7200
OWNER: Ruth Yoder LOT: 4

Pablo and Guadalupe Ramirez

388 S. Tth Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT; Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan. It has a gable
roof with an intersecting front gable and a gable dormer. The roof is covered with
composition shingles. The roof has exposed rafters and brackets on the gable end. Wide
weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the building.
The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed pane with leaded glass
transoms on the front elevation. The front porch posts have been replaced and a wrought
iron balustrade added. There is a garage addition and new sliding glass doors on the north
elevation. The attached garage has vertical siding, a gable roof and an attached carport.
The building faces east on the comer of South Seventh Street and ”"D” Street and is in fair
condition.

The building was occupied in the 1930’s by Glen Smith, a Postmaster in Independence.

208
ADDRESS: 362 S. 7th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 7100
OWNER: George and Alice Reddell LOT: 3
688 S. Main Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Minor
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DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is square in plan with additions and has an
intersecting hip roof with a front gable which is covered with wood shingles. Narrow
weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A wooden watertable caps the concrete
foundation. The windows are three over one double hung wood sash with a projecting
comice. There is a wide bargeboard with notched ends, exposed rafters and purlins under
the front gable. The front door is new. The building faces east on South Seventh Street
and is in good condition.

There is a one car garage with weatherboard siding and a gable roof with a flat roof carport
in front.

The building was occupied by W.T. House who was the Jjanitor at the Independence
Elementary School in the 1940's.

209
ADDRESS: 336 S. 7th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 7000
OWNER: John and Cheryl Dawson LOT: 2

APO PSC #1

Box 20332

San Francisco, CA 96230
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is square in plan with additions. It hasan
intersecting hip and gable roof covered with composition shingles. The eaves are boxed

.and have a partial return. Board and batten siding sheath the exterior. A concrete block
foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash.
There is a rectangular bay window with paired one over one double hung wood sash
windows on the front elevation. There is a shed roof addition to the west. The building
faces east on South Seventh Street and is in poor condition.

210

ADDRESS: 314 S. 7th Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 6900
OWNER: Harold Hilderbrand LOT: 1, 2

212 N. Picture Street



NPS Form 10800 OM8 Approval No. 10240018
(@-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __’ Page _128

Independence, OR 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2

PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with
additions and has an intersecting gable roof with a projecting gable entry, covered with
composition shingles. Narrow weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are paired three over one and four over
one double hung wood sash and fixed casement. There is a brick chimney with decorative
pattems on the front elevation. The building faces east on the corner of South Seventh
Street and Monmouth Street and is in good condition.

There is a detached one car garage to the west of the residence. The building is covered
with a gable roof and covered with weatherboard siding.

The building was built by Pearl Hedge in 1925. Hedge was a hop farmer who lived at this
location until his death around 1940.

211
ADDRESS: 710 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6201
OWNER: Sheridan Thompson LOT: NA

1930 SE Stone Street

Corvallis, OR. 97333
ASSESSOR MAP; 84 28 BB BLOCK: NA
PLAT: Henry Hill's DLC #45 STYLE: Eastlake
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is asymmetrical in plan and has a
truncated hip roof with intersecting gables and composition shingles. Wide shiplap siding
with cornerboards sheaths the exterior. There is a decorative shingle belt coursing and
shingles on the gable ends. A brick foundation supports the building. The windows are
one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is a polygonal bay
window on the front elevation. The two story porch with turned posts is situated at the
comer of intersecting roof forms and is covered with a gable roof. There is a soldier
pattern between the sash and watertable. The interior brick chimney has a corbelled
chimney pot. Spindlework has been removed from the porch and gable ends and the
fenestration altered. The residence faces south on the comer of Monmouth Street and
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South Seventh Street and is in good condition.

Early occupants of this building were the Hedges, a well known early Independence family
active in the hops industry. Trude Davidson , sister of Pearl Hedge lived in the building
for many years.

212
ADDRESS: 234 S. Tth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 6100
Contributing
OWNER: Terry Strand LOT: N/A
Robert and Linda Taylor
234 S. 7th Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP;: 84 28BB BLOCK: N/A
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Queen Anne
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is irregular in plan and has an
multi-planed roof. Weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete block foundation
supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and fixed
pane. There is a shed roof entry porch. Major alterations have been made to the roof and
building form; the windows have also been altered. The building faces east on South
Seventh Street and is in good condition.

213
ADDRESS: 214 S. 7th Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 6000
OWNER: Timothy and Janet Cardin LOT: N/A

214 S. Seventh Street

Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: N/A
PLAT: Henry Hill's DLC #45 STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1904 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence has a modified L shaped plan. It has a gable
roof with partial return and is covered with composition shingles. Shiplap siding and
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shingles in the gable end sheath the exterior. A concrete block foundation supports the
building. The windows are paired one over one double hung wood sash with a projecting
cornice. The rear door is panelled and glazed. The eaves are bracketed and there are stick
style details. The shed roof porch has square posts and a solid balustrade. A rectangular
bay window appears to have been removed from the north elevation and replaced with
windows which have decorative surrounds, ¢. 1930-1940. The rear addition may have
been a separate structure which was moved into place. The building faces east on the
corner of South Seventh Street and "C” Street and is in excellent condition.

There is a weatherboard sided two car garage with six over six double hung wood sash
windows associated with the structure. The structure is covered with a gable roof.

The building was constructed by the Fergusen family in 1905.

214
ADDRESS: 729 "C” Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 6001
OWNER: Ronald and Debra Brown LOT: NA

729 "C” Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: NA
PLAT: Henry Hill's DLC No. 45 STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1390 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is rectangular in plan with an
extension. There is a gable roof and a catslide roof over the extension. The gable dormers
have multi-light pane windows. Narrow shiplap siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
block foundation supports the building. The windows are one over one double hung wood
sash capped with a projecting comice. There are six over six double hung wood sash
windows on the second floor of the west elevation. The two front doors have unusual
glass decoration and projecting comice surrounds. The hip roof porch extends across the
front elevation and has square posts supported by a solid balustrade. The dormers and
front porch are later additions from the bungalow era. The building faces north on ”C”
Street and is adjacent to Ash Creek. The building is in excellent condition.
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215
ADDRESS: 770 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non- TAXLOT: 6200
Contributing
OWNER: Robert Klinskey LOT: NA
430 Boyd Lane
Monmouth, OR. 97361
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: NA
PLAT: Henry Hill's DLC#45 STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1895 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is rectangular in plan with additions. It has a
hip roof with wide eaves and composition shingles. Aluminum siding has replaced the
original siding. A concrete foundation supports the building. The windows are paired and
tripled one over one double hung wood sash. There is a polygonal bay window on the east
elevation. Six over six double hung wood sash windows are located in the addition which
has wide shiplap siding and a gable roof. The other addition has shiplap siding and a hip
roof. The chimney has been altered; french doors and a gabled entrance have been added to
the house. The building faces south on Monmouth Street, adjacent to Ash Creek, and is in
good condition.

The building was occupied by the Davidson family for many years. The Davidsons were
an important local hop farming family. Elmer Barnhart occupied the building in the 1930s.
Bamhart was a lawyer in Independence and established his practice in 1926. Prior to is
career as a lawyer Barnhart taught school and then did his post graduate work at the
University of London. He was elected District Attomney of Polk County in 1930 and 1934
and served as Mayor of Independence from 1946 to 1949.

216
ADDRESS: 765 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 7300
OWNER: Samuel & Hann Zimmerman LOT: 7,8
Jack & Vicki Wrey
P.O. Box 122
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Hill's Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1904 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Moderate
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DESCRIPTION: This two story residence is square in plan and has a hip roof with
composition shingles. Decorative weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are multi-light fixed in a bay. The
building has a frieze board with raised panels and brackets at the eaves. The wraparound
porch has been enclosed. The building is currently undergoing major renovation. The
building faces north on Monmouth Street. There is an alley to the east and Ash Creek to
the west.

The building was occupied by the Lewis family around 1913-14. Evon Olson resided in
the building in the 1930's.

217
ADDRESS: 770 "D Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 7301
OWNER: Robert and Laura Archer LOT: 3-6

770 ”D” Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 2
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Stick Style
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1890 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This two story building is irregular in plan and has a hip roof with -
intersecting gables. The gable ends are clad with fishscale shingles and the south gable is
embellished with lunette shaped multi-light window. The upper stories are sheathed with
wide shiplap siding finished with comerboards. Concrete blocks support the building.
The windows are one over one double hung wood sash and are capped by a projecting
window cornices. The front porch extends across the front elevation and is covered by a
hip roof with a pedimented gable. Boxed porch posts, on top of a low enclosed porch rail,
support the roof. The building was moved to its present location on "D” street ca. 1950.
Ash Creek is directly to the west and the building faces south on ”D” Street. The residence
is in excellent condition.

The building was originally the parsonage for the first Presbyterian Church. The
parsonage was moved to its present location in the early 1950’s.

218
ADDRESS: 841 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAXLOT: 7400
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OWNER: James and Frances Cosgrove LOT: 1-4
841 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR. 97351

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 3

PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1918 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is a modified T shaped in plan. It
has an intersecting gable roof with composition shingles. Narrow shiplap siding and
shingles in the gable end sheath the exterior. A cast stone foundation supports the
building. The windows are wide one over one double hung wood sash and there is a
polygonal bay window on the east elevation. There is a recessed porch with a projecting
gabled entry supported by plain posts, on the north elevation. An addition has been made
to the south elevation. The building faces north on Monmouth Street, about 100 feet from
Ash Creek, and is in good condition.

B.F. Swope, an attorney occupied the building from the 1930’s to the early 1940’s. The
building was occupied in the 1940s by Frank Ellis, operator of a Palace Tavern on Main

Street .
219
ADDRESS: 867 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAXLOT: 7600
Contributing
OWNER: Eugene and RoseAnne O'Day  LOT: 8
867 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Hill’'s Town STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: 1948 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate GARAGE: Contributing

DESCRIPTION: This one story residence is rectangular in plan and has a gable roof with
composition shingles. Wide weatherboard siding sheaths the exterior. A concrete
foundation supports the building. The windows are two over two double hung wood sash
and fixed pane. There is brickwork around the projecting gabled front entry. There is a
tapered brick chimney. The windows have been altered on the east elevation. The building
faces north on Monmouth Street and is in good condition. There is an alley to the east.

There is a contributing shed roof one car garage with vertical board siding located in the
alley.
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220
ADDRESS: 887 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 7500
OWNER: Andrew and Betty Lou LOT: 6,7,8,
Newberg
887 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 3
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Gothic Revival
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1880 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan. It has an
intersecting gable roof with a central gable and composition shingles. Narrow shiplap
siding with cornerboards and wide bargeboards sheath the exterior. The windows are one
over one double hung wood sash with a projecting cornice. There is a wrap around hip
roof porch with a decorative frieze, brackets and turned posts. The front porch has been
altered and a door replaced with a window in the central gable. The windows on the front
facade have been shortened, a polygonal bay window added to the west elevation and
shutters added. The building faces north on the comer of Monmouth and South Ninth
Street and is in good condition.

There is a carriage house now used as a garage associated with the structure.

The building was constructed by the John E.Davidson family in 1880. Davidson was born
in Barron County, Kentucky in 1823 and moved to Oregon from Illinois in 1850.
Davidson, along with a partner, have been credited with building the first business house in
Independence. After returning from the Cayuse War, Davidson received his medical
diploma from Willamette University in 1868. Davidson sold a portion of his Donation
Land Claim to Francis and Caroline Patterson in 1881 and Patterson platted Patterson’s
Addition to Independence in 1881. The building has had many subsequent owners over
the years including Alfred Flickinger, 1896-1901; E. M. and Ellis Young, 1901-1908; the
Dawes family, 1908-1943; John and Faith Black, 1942-1943: Cecil and Maxine

Black, 1943-1953; Elmer Albert Katter,1953-1960; Ray Strong Jr. 1960-1968; August
Pope, 1968-1969; Leslie and Marion Kelly, 1969-1978 and Andrew and Betty Lou
Newberg, 1978- present. The building is currently listed on the National Historic Register
of Historic Places.
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221
ADDRESS: 917 Monmouth Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAXLOT: 1400
OWNER: Thomas and Arlett Fischer LOT: 1,2
917 Monmouth Street
Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 29AA BLOCK: 1
PLAT: Patterson’s Addition STYLE: Vemacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1900 USE: Commercial/Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and one half story residence is T shaped in plan with additions
and has a multi-gable roof with composition shingles. Composition shingles with
cornerboards sheath the exterior. A concrete foundation supports the residence. The
windows are paired one over one double hung wood sash and rectangular bay windows on
the east and north elevations. The window surrounds have been altered, the siding is new,
and a stained glass window has been added. The building faces north on the comer of
Monmouth Street and South Ninth Street and is in good condition.

The building was occupied in the 1930s by Bill Berry. Berry was a painter and paper
hanger in Independence.

222
ADDRESS: City Park; 7th and "C” Streets
CLASSIFICATION:  Primary TAXLOT: 5500; 5501
OWNER: City of Independence LOT: NA

240 Monmouth Street

Independence, OR. 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: NA
PLAT: Henry Hill’'s DLC No. 45 STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: 1896 USE: Park
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: The Park encompasses a city block and is located on the Northwest
comer of Seventh and "C” Streets. The park is heavily planted with Oak and some fir
trees. The northern portion of the park is more open in nature and is the site of the
children’s play equipment and the location of a earlier gazebo. The park is bordered on the
west and north by Ash Creek, the east by Seventh Street and to the south by "C” Street.
There is a gravelled parking lot associated with park to the south. '

The land for the park was purchased from Mrs. Dorcas Whiting on August 4th, 1896 by
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the City. The City originally wanted to purchase the property for $555.57 on a note dated
May 12, 1896, but Mrs. Whiting wanted cash for the property. The city secured a loan for
the land in August of the same year and purchased the park site. The park has been a
gathering place for the City’s residents for many years.
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223
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 11900
OWNER: Elizabeth Richey LOTs NA
487 Monmouth
Independence, Or 97251
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BA BLOCK: 17
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
ADDRESS: 383 S. S5th
CLASSIFICATION: Historic Non-— TAX LOT: 11800
Contributing LOTs S % &’ on south side
OWNER: Edward % Cheryl Carrillo of lot &
383 Fifth Street
Independence, Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 Z8BA BLOCK: 17
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1820 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Major

DESCRIPTION: Located at the NE corner of South Sth % D, this Ca. 1890
T-plan Gothic house was modi fied by taking off the upper story during the
1340’s. The woriginal chimneys and windows have all been remcoved and
replaced. It now has a hip roof with composition shingles and fixed
windows containing from 1 to 9 lights. It has very wide eaves and a
continuous concrete foundation. There is a shed roofed parch on the west
elevation and a bump out to the sinale car garage on the south elevation.
This house is in good condition.

This house has a small mother—in-law house at the NE corner of the lot. It
was the original garage and has been enlarged and a concrete block chimney
added. The windows are double hung sash with & lights over six and alsc
stationery 12 light. It has a partial continuous concrete foundation.

This house is hidden by large established shrubbery and trees including a

very large walnut tree. This house is in good condition.
225
ADDRESS: 4€7 D Street

CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 3300
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LOT: E half of 7 & 8
OWNER = Pete Kazakoff ET AL
PO Box 5416
Salem, Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: 16
PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacul ar
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1887 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This 19th century vernacular T-plan house has intersecting
gables with composition roof. The windows are double hung single light.
It has a center gable chimney as well as an exterior chimney on the east
elevation. It has weatherboard siding. It appears that it has had no
alterations and is an excellent example of a building type common to the
area. This house was purchased from Henry and Martha Hill who were early
pioneers and plotted 2 areas upon which most of downtown Independence is
sited. The alterations include the addition of front porch and side porch
Enclosed. The house is in good condition.

226
ADDRESS: 483 D. Street
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 23500
LOT: W half of 8

OWNER = Fatricia Miller

489 D Street

Independence, Or 9735
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: 1€
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 18393 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor, window

DESCRIPTION: This is a multi-leveled single gabled house with composition
roof and center gable brick chimney. It has double hung sash windows with
3 vertical lights over 1 light in pairs and singles as well as several
large fixed windows. It has wide ship-laps siding and a continuous
concrete foundation. It appears to have a basement and it has a small
gable overhang with arched entry to match the arched screen and front door.

The house is in good condition.

This house has a matching one car garage. There are two very large
European Weeping Birch trees in the west right of way.

This house was cwned by Chester and Frushia Sloper during the 1940's and he
was partner and operated Slope Bros & Cockle Hardware.
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ADDRESS: 435 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 32400
OWNEF:: Garth % Lenare Eliassen LOT: West half of 7
712 E Jacksan Street
Monmouth, Or 27261
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 Z8BD BLOCK: 1€
FLAT: Hill’s Tawn STYLE: Vernacular
YEAF. BUILT: Ca. 1336 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTICN: This is a rectangular house with center gable, has a shingle
roof, corbel chimney and featuring round balls at the ends of gables and
both entrance porches. It has narrow ship-lap siding with double hung 2
light over one sash windows and one stationary window on the west
elevation. Thare is a continucus concrete foundation. A separate garage
is constructed in the same style. The front entrance to the house has a
steeply pitched roof with the front door offset to the west side. The only
alteration appears to be a stationary window replacing a south side
entrance door. The house is in good condition.

Ross and Leona Oberson who were part owners of a local dairy lived here.

228
ADDRESS: 463 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: ~ Secondary TAX LOT: 3200
OWNEFR: : Ona Weddle LOT: &
462 S Sth
Independence, COr 37235
ASSESSOR MAF': 8% ZEBD LOCK 1€
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1330 USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This is a single stary bungalow with many craftsman details
evident on the front porch and eaves. The eaves are very wide. It has a
single gable with composition roof and has a replaced chimney. It has
double hung single light windows on the west elevation. It has an addition
to the east elevation that en:zlosed the parch. It has a continucous
concrete foundaticn. The house ‘e in good condition.

There is an L-shaped garage with twa types of siding, both weather board of
different widths.

This is one «f the many properties owned by Burvris Estes.
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229
ADDRESS: 4€0 E Street
CLASSIFICATIC: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 3000
Contributing LOT: Part of Lot S
OWNER: Mary DeForrest
460 E Street
Independence, Or 37351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28EBED BLOCK: 16
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: 1247 USE: FResidential
ALTERATIONS: Windows, aluminum siding

Forch enclosed

DESCRIPTION: This haouse is rectangular shaped plan with double gables. It
has composition shingle roof with double brick chimney. It has
weatherboard siding covered with aluminum siding in the mid 1970’s. It has
original wood shutters and the windows are double hung two over two light
with the excepticn of ane replaced with fixed pane. The front parch has
been enclosed. It has continuous concrete foundation. There is an
attached single car garage. This house was built for Ray Marris. It is in
excellent condition.

2
ADDRESS: - 485 £ Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Non—Compatible TAX LOT: 2100
Non—Contributing LOT: S
OWNER : Simzna Landerocs
485 S Sth
Independence, 0Or 2735%
ASSESSOR MAP: 34 28BD BLEC%s 16
FLAT: Hill’s Taown STYLE: Vernacul ar
YEAR BUILT: 197 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This is a cne story home with a central gable. The roof is
composition shingles and has very wide overhanging eaves on the front and
back. There is a shed roof on the south elevation that covers a carport.
The windows are large vertical sliding aluminum. The siding is T-111 and
the house sits on a continuous concrete foundation. The house is in
excellent condition.

e
-

ADDRESS: 475 & 475 1/ E Sireet
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OWNER : John P. Hartline LOT: 8

475 South E Street
Independence, Or 97351

ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: B
PLAT: Hill’s Addition to

Hill’s Town STYLE: Eastlake
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This house sets on a large quarter of a block corner lot at
Sth and E. This asymmetric one and half story house is multi gabled with
gable ornaments and composition shingles. The windows are elongated double
hung sash with architrave molding. The gables on the north elevation
feature round headed windows. There is a bay window on the north elevation
with flared walls. There are imbricated shingles, eave brackets, and
cannonball panels. The front porch has carved brackets with 2 X 2 frieze
and turned posts. The vertical panel front door has unusual flash glass
panel. The foundation is brick, which was added in 1984.

The associated brick garage was remodeled recently on the north elevaticn,
and had been used by the Hoffman family to sell flour from their mill as
well as fruits and vegetable.

Mr Hoffman was a mining engineer who worked out of state mainly in Alaska.
During his frequent absences, Mrs. Hoffman would travel by steambcat to
Fortland where she remained for the whole opera season. She was a noted
record collector and at the time of her death, reportedly had all the opera
records available.

She had the first grand pianc in Independence. Both Mr and Mrs Hof fman
were highly educated.

Mrs. Hoffman was a native plant horticulturist and designed and planted
their yard which originally was the entire half block. The perimeter hedge
and trees are believed to have been planted by Mrs. Hoffman.

Associated with this property is the Independence-Monmouth Railway Track
which ran directly in front of this house on its journey westward from
Monmouth, Or. during the early 1900's. The original curbing for this train
only exists in this location.

Alterations include brick foundation, shed style dormer of west elevation
and enclosed porch on east elevation. The house is currently being
restored and is in good condition.
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273N
ADDRESS: S67 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 2400
Contributing LOT: ()
OWNER: John % Billie Woods
S67 S Sth
Independence, Or 37351
ASSESSOF MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: ]
PLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 19482 USE: Fesidential
ALTEREATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This residence is in T-plan with an intersecting gable and
composition roaf. There is an attached single car garage which has been
~enverted intc living space and a car port added directly in front of
original garage. The house has a continusus concrete foundation and a
variety of aluminum windows both fixed anc vertical. The siding is wide
weather board. This house is in excellent condition.

This house was built by Charles Stryker as his family residence and is one
of four similar houses in thic area using recycled cedar lumber from Camp
Adair.

233
ADDRESS: 444 F Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 300
Contributing LOT: E 66 1/2° of
OWNER: Esther % Faul Meyer Lot S
444 F Street
Independence, Or 27351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: -1
FPLAT: Hill’s Addition io
Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 1949 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minaor

DESCRIFTION: This one story residence is L-shape in plan. It has a hip
roof of compositicn shingles. The windcws are a variety of stationary
single hung and one round pori hole window. The exterior siding is cedar
weatherboard and the foundaticn is continuous concrete. It has an attached
garage on the rorth elevation. The building faces scuth on F Sireet and is
in good condition. The twe large pine trees are original planting from
Mrs. Hoffman. This kouse was build by Charles Stryker and was szl2 to Dick
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Taylor who was one of the owners of Taylors Drug Store in downtown
Independence. This house is in good condition.

XA

s
ADDRESS: 496 F Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: E&40C0
Contributing LOT: W 82 Lot S
OWNER: Ken Larsaon
4396 F Street
Independence, Or 9735
ASSESES0R MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: B
PLAT: Hill's Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 1948 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate, Garage Remodeled

DESCRIPTION: This house sets on the NE corner of Sth & F facing on F
Street. It is a cne story, L-shaped plan with intersecting gable and roof
covered with cedar shakes. It has weatherboard siding with large brick
chimney at east elevation. There is a metalbestos chimney alsc. The
attached garage has been enclosed to form a family room. The windows are
stationary eight light. It has a continuous cancrete foundation. Ken
Larson, who owned the Texaco Service Station is the current owner. This is
another house built by Charles Stryker and is in excellent condition.

238
ADDREES: 485 F Street
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 7400
Contributing LOT: 8
OWNER = Dorcthy Case
485 F Street
Independence, 0Or 272351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BD BLOCK: 7 d
FLAT: Hill's Additiaon to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Fanch
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1990 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONE: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This ranch style house has a composition shingle roof with
single gable with intersecting gable for attached double garage. There are
wlde eaves, typical of ranch style houses built during the 1950’s. It has
standard vertical sliding windows of varicus sizec and rests on a
convinuous concrete foundation. It is located at the corner of Sth & F.
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On the south elevation there are two very large catalpa trees in the right
of way which appear to be original landscaping of the previous house, which
was destroyed by fire. The house is in good condition.

e
—_—

ADDRESS: 635 S Sth

CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: 73200
Contributing LOT:z: 7

OWNER : Russell Chappell

€35 S Sth
Independence, Or 97351

ASSESSOR MAF: 84 ZEBD BLOCK: 7
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to

Hill’s Taown STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1310 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This single gable one story residence has a tile roof without
any chimney. The windows are double hung sash one over one light. It has
weatherboard siding which has been covered with asbestos shingles. This
house has a continuous concrete foundation except under the front porch.
This house has a basement. The front porch is hip roofed and has been
enclosed and has four 12 light stationary windows. The steps to the porch
are concrete. The house is in good condition.

— -

-
ADDRESE: €45 5 Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 7200
Contributing LOT: S
OWNER: Stephen Hinsvark
645 S Sth
Independence, 0Or 373S1
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 ZEBBD BLOCK: 7
LAT: Hill’s Additicn to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1350 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Added on garage

DESCRIFTION: This house has a central gable with an intersecting gable
aver the small front porch and an intersecting gable on the north
elevation. The roof has wide eaves with simple craftsman style brackets.
There is a very large brick chimney on the north elevation. On the south
elevation there is an attached single car garage with a flat roof. There
are decorative brick planters oo the west elevation, and the house is in
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good condition.

272
—

ADDRESS:
CLASSIFICATION:
OWNER::

ASSESSOR MAFP:
FLAT:

YEAR BUILT:
ALTERATIONS:

DESCRIPTION:

bungalow built in Independence.
intersecting gable roocf with composition shingles.
exposed rafterc.

casement.

The concrete block foundation has T-111 siding.
enclosed to make a utility and storage room.
built-in planters on the sides.

has many built-ins and leadecd gla

€87 S Sth

Secondary

Rainier Credit Company
Twila Shirley, Agent
303 S Cascade Avenue
Colorado Springs, Co
84 28BD

Hill's Addition to
Hill's Town

1912

Minor

TAX LOT:
LAOT:

BLOCK:

STYLE:
USE:

7100

7

Bungal ow
Residential

This small one story home is believed to be the first
It is rectangular in plan with an
It has wide eaves with

The chimney is brick and the windows are fixed pane and

the NE corner of S Sth & G streets.

Mike % Rosetta Wooley lived in this he
at Henry Hill Grade School, 1

noted for her beautiful flower gardens.

2
—d

ADDRESS:
CLASSIFICATION:

OWNER:
ASSESSOR MAF:
FPLAT:

YEAR BUILT:
ALTERATIONS:

62 E "G" Street

ss doors.

The mission style front door features an unusual opening window.

The back porch has been

The front brick porch has

suse for many years.
ocated one block away.

This house is in good condition and still
It faces west and is located on

He was a janitor

Rossetta Wooley was

Historical Non- TAX LOT: 2700
Contributing LOT: S % 6
Sam % Edithk Drexler

S62 "G" Street

Independence, Or 97351

84 28BC BLOCK: &

Hill’s Additicn to

Hill’s Town STYLE: Eastlake
Ca. 1830 USE: Fesidential
Window surrounds, siding covered

by singles. Tymganum at entrance -overed

with T-111.

Balustrade replaced by

X & planks
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DESCRIFPTION: This large story and a half home is in a modified L-plan. It
has intersecting gable and a shed roof over the rear extension. The racf
is composition singles and there is a central chimney. The original siding
nas been covered with asbestos siding. The central window surrounds appear
to have been altered and all windows are double hung one aver one. The
house has a continuous concrete foundaticn. This house is in goocd
condition.

This house was moved to its present location after World War II to make
room for the current city hall.

John Bohannon, an early owner, was the city’s first watchman and City
Marshall. He alsc owned and operated a sash and door factory arcund the
turn of the century.

240
ADDRESS: S68 E "G" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: ZE00
Contributing LOT: 7 % 8
OWNER = Dean % Cleo Stevenson
S68 "G" Street
Independence, Or 397351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BC BLOCK: 7
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAF BUILT: Ca. 1210 USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This turn-of-the-century home has a hip roof with composition
singles. Although no brackets or other trim details remain cocther than the
very wide eaves, it supports the hallmarks of an Italianate house. The
windows are double hung one over one light and has a newer brick chimney.
The original weatherboard siding kas been covered with aluminum siding and
the front porch has been anclosed. It now has windows of four lights in
pairs and triples. It has an original garage with weatherboard siding but
has a new replacement docr. This house is in excellent condition.

Dane Purvine, who was a noted contractor in Independence during the early
1300's and built the Spurling Block on South Main and numercus other
historic landmarks, lived in this house.

241
ADDRESS: €84 S Sth
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CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: 2500
Contributing LOT: 3, 4

OWNER = Laura Jean Stryker
PO Box 25
Independence, Or 97351

ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK: E

FLAT: Hill’s Addition to (Foursquare/Craftsman)
Hill’s Town STYLE: American Bacsic

YEAR BUILT: 1904 USE: Residential

ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIFTION: This two story house is square in shape with hip roof,
composition shingles and small gablet on east and west elevaticns. The
second story windows are all original double hung cone over one. The gr ound
floor windows have been mostly replaced with stationary windows. It has
had cedar shingles added tc cover the exterior of the lower floor and the
front and side wrap around porches have been enclosed. The cedar shingles
on the second floor have been removed to expose the original fish scale
shingles. The foundation is concrete block. This residence occupies a
prominent position on the northwest corner of Sth and G streets. This
house is currently being restored and is in fair condition.

The large maples on the east and south side are believed to be part of the
original Sth and side street plantings of maple trees in %
the century.

This house was built by Charles Macauley who was a local car
built the house for his widowed sister Nell Macauley GBraves =
boarding house. It has remained in the same family sincs it was built.
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24z
ADDRESS: EEE 5 Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 2501
Contributing LOT: 3
OWNER: Delbert % Shirley Mosier
656 S5 Sth
Independence, Or 373S
ASSESS0OR MAF: 84 ZEBC BLOCK: &
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Ranch
YEAFR BUILT: Ca. 1397S USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIFTION: This T-plan house has a composition shingle roof with
metalbestos chimney in the center. There are a variety of fixed and
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vertical sliding aluminum windows. The attached single car garage is on
the east elevation. There is a continuous concrete foundation. This house
is in excellent condition.

243
ADDREESS: €36 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: 1400
Contributing LOT: 2
OWNER: Lucy Wallace
636 S Sth
Independence, Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 Z28BRC BLOCK: &
FLAT: Hill’s Additicon to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Gothic Revival
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1905 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This house is a T-plan Gothic Revival and is a twin to the
house located at €14 S Sth. They were originally owned and built by the
same person. It has composition shingle roof with a center gabled corbel
brick chimney. The original weatherboard siding has been covered with an
asbestos and pressed beet siding. The windows have been replaced with a
wide variety of fixed pane aluminum windows. There are three original
double sash one over one windows still remaining. There is an over-sized
elongated 1 1/2 story single care garage. It has the original weatherboard
siding and has six light window in single and pairs. It has concrete block
foundation. The condition of this house is fair.

244
ADDREES: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 2800
LDTs NA

OWNER: Clarence Irving TR

1555 Kent Street NW

Salem, Or 373204
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BC BLOCK: 16
FLAT: Hill’'s Addition tao

Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
245

ADDRESS: o999 E "F" Street
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CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 3100
OWNER: Max & Hazel Taylor Lot: E part of 7 & 8
1192 16th Street SE
Salem, Or 97202

ASSESS0OR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK: 164
PLAT: Hill’s Additicon to

Hill’s Town STYLE: Dutch Calonial
YEAE BUILT: 1915 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This is one and a half story home that is symmetrical both
front to back and side to side. It has a central gable running front to
back with dormers of both the north and south elevations. There is a one
story shed roof on the north elevation and matching shed roof forms the
porch on the front elevation. The original center brick chimney has been
replaced by a metalbetos chimney. It has a concrete block foundation. The
windows are single hung one over one. Until recently this house was in
very poor condition but is currently undergoing renovation.

This is the only Dutch Colonial style house in Independence. It was built
by Dane Purvine, a contractor of note in the Independence area (he built
the Spurling Building at 114 S Main Street, the Southern addition to the
Masonic Lodge at 201 S Main Street and the George Kutch house at 760 S
Main; all in the City of Independence National Register District
Nomination). When Mr. Purvine built this house it was a cause of
consternation in the neighborhood. Pecople felt it was a barn, and
therefore fit for animal but not human habitation.

For many years this home was occupied by the Guild family. Mrs. (Lois?
Guild was THE LIBRARIAN for the City of Independence for many years. She
ran a "very tight ship" and took no nonsense from anyone. She loved
flowers and had many in their yard, including many specimen plants.

246
ADDRESS: €14 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 2300
OWNEFR : Anna L Mallard/Ann Durley LOT: 1
€14 S Sth
Independence, Or 9725
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK: &
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Gothic Revival
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 13CS USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate, Shed roocf addition

on north elevation
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DESCRIPTION: This one and a half story Gothic Revival features a T-plan
with an intersecting gable roof with composition shingle roof. There is a
corbelled brick chimney at the west elevation. North and South elevations
have single story shed style roofs that make the lower floor rectangular.
The windows are double hung one over one with architrave maldings. The
siding is wide ship-lap with rake and corner boards. There is a water
table and the foundation is concrete block. The frant porch has a hip roof
and small square posts with decorative brackets. There is an associated
matching building with gabled roof, ship-lap siding and matching frieze and
corner boards located adjacent to the house on the north elevation. This
house cccupies a prominent position at the SW corner of Sth & F and is in
excellent condition. There are two large maple trees on the north right of
way that appear to be part of an early Z0th century planting. This house
and the house to the immediate south are identical and once were owned and
build by the same person. The house is in excellent conditicn and a white
picket fence has been recently added. It is in keeping with the style and
time period of this house and neighborhocod. An early resident of this
nouse was the McKinney family and Mr. McKinney was a janitor at Henry Hill
Grade School for many years.

247

ADDRESS: S82 E "F" Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: €400

OWNER: Austin Cole ET AL LOT: E 1/2 of W 1/2
FO Box 737 of S & &
Dallas, Or 9732

ASEESSOR MAP: 84 28BC BLOCK: S

FLAT: Hill'’s Addition to
Hill'=s Town STYLE: Bungalow

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 13¢8 USE: Fesidential

ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This house has an intersecting gable roof has composition
shingles and a center gable corbelled brick chimney. The wide eaves ares
supported by simple brackets. The gables are decorated with fancy butt
shingles. The siding is horizontal beadboard. The windows are double hung
sash with one aver one light. The enclosed parch on the NE elevation has
one stationary window and the cthers are double hung sash. The foundation
is continuous concrete. This house is in excellent condition.

There is an unattached carport with a matching gable. It is sided with
pPlywood with widely spaced battens.

This house was owned for many years by Elmer and Hazel Addison. The Faul
Sterling family alsc lived here at one time. He was the Southern FPacific
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agent for the Independence station.

248
ADDRESS: NA
CLASSIFICATION: Vacant TAX LOT: 1800
OWNER = David Loera LOT: NA
73287 Fetty John Road S
Salem, Or 373202
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK: S
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: NA
YEAR BUILT: NA USE: NA
ALTERATIONS: NA
249
ADDRESS: S60 E F Street
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 1801
OWNER: David % Kathleen Stewart LOT: East 1/2 of S & €
SE0 F Street
Independence, Or 9735
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK: 1S
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacul ar
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1820 USE: Fesidentia:l
ALTERATIONS: Moderate

DESCRIPTION: This one and a half story home has intersecting gablzz which
form an "L" shaped plan. It has a compaosition shingle rocf and a bric!
chimney in the center of both gables. There are wide cverhanging eaves
supported by paired decorative brackets. The siding is very wide
weatherboard. The windows have architrave molding and are double hung one
over one light. On the south elevation there is a bracketed top over paired
double sash one over one light windows, with panelling underneath. The
hip-roofed front porch has square columns and various wood trim. The house
1s on a continuous concrete foundation and has a water table. The house is
in fair condition. There is an early twentieth century single car garage

with no foundation and in poor condition.

250

ADDRESS: o340 E F Street

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT:

OWNER:: Allan B Posey % AL LOT: Eeginning at NW

Stanley % Joan Jones of Lot 4, E 747,
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S20 N Sacre Lane S E6’, W 747, N 74’
Monmouth, Or 97351 to P.0O.B.
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC STYLE: Vernacular
FLAT: Hill’s Town BLOCK: =)
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This L plan house with composition shingle roof and has
intersecting gable on the north elevation and Jerkinhead gables at both
ends.

The foundation is continuous concrete and there is both a center chimney
and an exterior brick chimney. There are eight light stationary window and
the siding is shiplap wideboard siding. The house is in good condition.

d
ADDRESS: SBE S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Compatible Non- TAX LOT: 1&00C
Contributing LOT: Fart of 4
OWNER: Vera Johnsan
Constance Holm
Robert Meier % R Meier (agent)
144397 Bluegrass Lane N
Sisters, Or 37795
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 2Z8BC BLOCK: o
LAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Minimal Tract
YEAR BUILT: 13482 JSE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This house has a composition shingle roof with central gable
and two intersecting gables. There is a single car garage attached on the
east elevation. There are a variety of fixed glass and casement windows.
The foundation is continuous concrete and a large brick chimney on the west
rear elevation. This house was another in a series built by Charles
Stryker and is in good condition.

—~e
Ll

ADDRESS: 258 5§ Sth

CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 1500

OWNER: Hazel Elda Byers LOT: 3
88 § Sth

Independence, Or 272S!
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOC!:

4]
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FLAT: Hill’s Addition %o

Hill’s Town STYLE: Modi fied Craftsman
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1908 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Moderate on W elevation

including shed addition
which adds utility, new
bath, and new rear entrance

DESCRIPTION: This is a two story residence that is rectangular in plan
~i1th shed style dormers symmetrical on north and south elevations. It has
a composition gabled roof, with two chimneys, the windows are single and
paired double hung one over one light with architrave maolding. The shed
roofed porch has chamfered posts.

This house has been in the same family continuously including the current
owner, ancd 1t represents four generations of cne family.

The house was built by Cyrus Purvine and a Mr. Stansbury. Cyrus was a
farmer and this was their townhouse.

There is old shrubbery that appears to be original landscaping. There is
alsoc a matching garage with stationary windows with six lights.

The house faces north and has concrete block foundation.

Lol —fon ]

o
ADDRESS: S36 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 1400
OWNER: Melvin Hoover LOT: =2

Raymond Carter ET AL, Agent

336 S Sth

Independence, 0Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCE : 3]
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to

Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor, Shutters

DESCRIPTION: This is a 1 1/2 story house with a multi—-gabled roof with
composition shingles. It is rectangular in shape with dormer additicn on
the north elevation. It has very wide sheltering eaves and jerkinhead
gables on the north and east elevaticns. These gables are also on the east
elevation of the single car garage. The windows are double hung, six over
one, mostly paired or tripled with architrave molding=. The siding is
weatherboard with approximately six inches exposed. Ii has a long concrete
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block foundation. This house is in good condition and is being restored by
current owners.

The large maple tree appears to be one of a two block series of early
plantings on South Sth.

This house was used as the Baptist Church parsonage for approximately 40
years.

254
ADDRESS: Do "E" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non-— TAX LOT: 13CO
Contributing LOT: W 1/2 Lot 1
OWNER = Rogelis % Maria Garcia
S35 E "E" Street
Independence, Or 9735
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BC BLOCK: S
FLAT: Hill’s Addition to
Hill?’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1320 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This is a single story T-plan residence that has a shed roof
intersecting with the central hip gable. The roof is composition shingles
and has a central chimney. The siding is mostly narrow ship-lap but also
has used other styles of siding for additions and alterations. The windows
are a variety of wood and aluminum and & combination of horizontal,
vertical and stationary. IT has a continuous concrete and cement block
foundation. There is a shed attazhed to the rear of the house that iz in
poor condition. Although this house has had numercus additions and
alterations it is in good shape.

Rl —¢ —d

e nd
ADDRESS: 512 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 120C
OWNER:: Lois Fischer LOT: E 1/2 Lot 1
136395 Fishback Road
Monmouth, Or 27261
ASSESSCRE MAF: 84 28BC ELOCE: 15
FLAT: Hill’s Adcition to
Hill’s Town STYLE: Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1910 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Mincr

DESCRIPTION: This diminutive cne story home, sitting an the carner aof Sth
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and E, is a modified T-plan with composition shingles and jerkinhead gables
an the north and south elevations and across the front porch. It has
continuous concrete foundation and has had asbestos sheet siding added.

The windows are double with three vertical lights over one, either single
or paired. The porch features an arch entry and turned columns. It has a
matching single car garage with a replaced metal garage door. The house is
in fair condition.

W.G. Grant was a well known local contractor who owned this house during
the 13830’s.

-~
o

ADDRESS: o940 E "E" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: <400C
Contributing LOT: Beginning at SW
OWNEE: Maria % Rubin Arismendiz corner of Lot 4
5S40 E Street running along the
Independence, 0Or 97351 alley, N 99, S <297,
E 80 to the P.0.B.
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 28BC BLOCK : 25
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1920 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This house has been altered significantly over the years. It
is now a single story house with rectangular gable and composition shingle
roof. There is a new brick center chimney. It has been re—-sided with
undulating asbestos shingle. The windows have been replaced with a variety
of aluminum, including double hung one over aone light and large aluminum
sliding. There is a continuous concrete foundation. On the east elevation
there has been a shed addition with T—-111 siding. The porch has a gable
overhang with ornamental wrought iron railings. The attached one car
garage has been enclosed. It is in very good condition.

297
ADDRESS: 490 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: 300
Contributing LOT:z 4 % 8 1/2 of 3
OWNER: ASA B Robinson ET AL
Steven % Deborah Donaldson, Agent
490 S Sth

Independence, Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 Z8BLC BLOCK: 25
T+

PLAT: Hill’s Tow STYLE: alianate
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YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1887 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This one story L shaped house has intersecting gables and a
composition roof that is truncated in the center. The two center gable
chimneys have been replaced by a concrete block chimney on the exterior of
the south elevation. A continuous concrete foundation is found on the east
elevation. The house faces east and is located on the corner of Sth % F.

Major alterations include a nonconforming garage added to the north
elevation, removal of the front porch, removal of bay windows, replacement
of all windows with a wide variety of stationary windows, and enclosure of
the back porch. There still remains most of the original brackets, the
upper fish scale shingles and flash glass in the gable window. This house
is in very paor condition.

This house was owned by Thomas Felley who was a farmer on cne of the local
hop farms.

258
ADDRESS: 446 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 200
OWNER: Joseph Raymond Zeyen Jr LOT: 24 9
446 S Sth
Independence, Or S732S
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 Z8BC BLCCE: 25
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Cueen Anne Vernacular
YEAR BUILT: 189S5 USE: FResidential
ALTERATIONS: Maoderate

DESCRIPTION: This T-plan Queen Anne Vernacular two story residence was
built in 1835 for Orville A Kramer. It has intersecting gable roof with
composition shingles. The windows include double hung single light sash and
stationary. The front center bay window features flash glass and has =
shed roof and brackets. There is also flash glass in one of the front
doors. In the gabless and on the first floor aluminum siding has been added
over the original shiplap, but the staggered butt shingles all remain on
the second story. There is a partial basement with walls of stones covered
on the exterior with tar paper. The front porch has been altered slightly.

The condition of the house is good. Wooden water table caps the
foundation. This house is in good condition.

Orville Kramer owned a mens haberdashery and alsc =old eye glasses and
Jewelry.
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259
ADDRESS: 414 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Secondary TAX LOT: 100
OWNER: Frank & Margaret 0Ojeda LOT: 1
414 S Sth
Independence, Or 97351
ASSESSOR MAF: 81 Z28BC BLOCK: 29
FLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Craftsman Bungalow
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 13907 USE: Residential
ALTERATIONS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: The compoasition shingle roof has a center gable with wide
eaves and gabled blind dormers and a chimney on the north elevation. It
has purlines brackets and barge boards. The siding is alternating ship-lap
and beveled. It features a cast stone foundation with the cast stones
carried across the east elevation and featured in the porch. The windows
are double hung and fixed sash. There is a detached garage built in the
same style with a cast stone foundation and siding of alternating shiplap
and beveled. There has been a carport added toc the front of this garage.
Both the house and garage are in good condition. There has been a rear
addition.

This house was built by C.A. McLaughin who was a noted hop farmer and
president of the First Naticnal Bank of Independence, now known as Key
Bank. His wife was Lola Fluke and on her death he donated the money to
build the Presbyterian Church in her MEMIT Y.

Z2E0
ADDREES: 930 E "D" Street
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non-— TAX LOT: 2500
Contributing LOT: Beginning at SW
OWNER: Tony Zandol corner of Lot 4
Etephen &% Melanie Pfaff, Agent
S30 D Street
Independence, Or 927351
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 Z8EB BLOCK: 29
LAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1320 USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This is an older cne story house that has had major
remodeling done. It has a multi-gabled roof with shed addition on its
north elevation. It has composition shingles and is deccrated with round
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balls in gable ends. The siding has been covered by narrow bocards and
batten. There is a wide variety of narrow vertical fixed pane windows in
pairs, triplets, and quadruples. It has a concrete block foundation with
real brick used to trim to foundation on gabled porch. There is decorative
narrow board trim on the porch and a metalbestos chimney on the north
replacing an old brick chimney. There is a small gabled addition on the
east elevation. This house is in good condition.

This house was at one time owned by A.L. & Ivey B. Thomas who alsc owned
the A.L. Thomas Hardware Store on S Main in downtown Independence.

261

ADDRESS: <16 E "D" Street

CLASSIFICATION: Non-Compatible TAX LOT: 12500
Non-Contributing LOT: Fart of Lot 4, SW

OWNER: Barry Collins ET AL corner of Lot 4, E
S16€ S "D" Street 33, N 667, W 557,
Independence, Or 37351 € 667 to F.O.B.

ASSESSOR MAP: 84 28BB BLOCK: 24

PLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Fanch

YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1970 USE: Fesidential

ALTERATIONS: None

DESCRIPTION: This single story house has a composition roof with elevated
center section. There is no chimney. It has T-111 siding and has stardar
aluminum vertical sliding windows, continuous concrete foundation and
attached one car garage. The parch has 4 X 4 posts with Z X 4 usad as
railings and angular bracing. There is a old large walnut tree in the NE
corner of the lot. This home i= in good condition.

262
ADDRESS: 362 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Primary TAX LOT: 2300
OWNEFR: Kenneth E Larsan
Stepher Ffaff, Agent LOT: 3
S20C D Street
Independence, Gr 272351
ASSESSOR MAF: 84 Z8BBE BLOCK: 24
PLAT: Hill’s Tcwn STYLE: Vernacular Farm House
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1885 USE: Residential
ALTERATICNS: Minor

DESCRIPTION: This 1 1/2 story, 13th century vernacular farmhouse is L-

shaped in plan with gable with hip roofed wWings. it has compositicon
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shingle roof, double hung one over one sash windows with architrave molding
and ship—-lap siding with rake and corner boards. There are shutters which
have been added. The house is in good condition. There is a mother-in-law
house attached to a single car garage. The house has a continuous concrete
foundation and is in good shape. The garage is in very poor condition. An
early remodeling enclosed a back entrance to create a pantry.

The landscape includes large deciducus and conifer trees.

This house was owned during the 1890’s by F.A. Fatterson who earlier had
platted Patterson’s Addition.

263
ADDRESS: 336 S Sth
CLASSIFICATION: Historical Non- TAX LOT: ZZ00
Contributing
OWNER: Carmen % Donna Farmenter LOT: -
FO Box 68
Independence, 0Or 372S
ASSESSOR MAP: 84 Z8BE BLOCK: 23
FPLAT: Hill’s Town STYLE: Altered
YEAR BUILT: Ca. 1925 USE: Fesidential
ALTERATIONS: Ma jor

DESCRIPTION: This is a single story house with a single central gable.
The roof is composition shingle and there is a large exteriocr brick

fireplace on the south elevation. The original siding has been replacad
with aluminum siding and the windows are all fixed single light in a
variety of sizes. The front porch has ornamental wrought iron. There is

an elevated continuocus concrete foundation. Surrounding the side and back
yard is a short wide board picket fence. There is an oversized two car
garage with T-111 siding. The house has been so extensively remadeled that
it has lost its historic character but is in excellent condition.



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[Inationally [ statewide [X]tocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [X |A DB E]C [CJo

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA []B [Jc [Jo [Je [JF [Je

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture 1869-1904
Agriculture 1905-1940
Commerce/Trade

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
sAdvisory only - Not nominated under B) ' .
Significant Person Architect/Builder Dane Puryine,
Francis A. Patterson, H. Hirshenberg, Char i
William Craven, Henry Hill and J.S. Cooper 4
architects

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

See Continuation Sheet.

[x]see continuation sheet
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"A Brief History of the First Baptist." Unpublished typescript, n.d.,
Heritage Museum Collection.

“A Brief History of the Independence Methodist Church." Unpublished typescript,
1962, Methodist Church Collection.

"Historic Independence Interior House Tour." Pamphlet, Independence Historic
Preservation Commission, 28 September, 1986.

"Historic Independence Interior House Tour." Pamphlet, Independence Historic
Preservation Commission, 27 September, 1987.

IX] See continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS):

Dpreiiminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested [X] state historic preservation office
E]previously listed in the National Register ["]other State agency
[ ] previously determined eligible by the National Register []Federal agency
E]designated a National Historic Landmark [x] Local government
Drecorded by Historic American Buildings DUniversity
Survey # [:] Other
[:]recorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record #

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property _approximately 98.7 acres Monmouth, Oregon  1:24000

UTM References

A 1,0 (4/8,5/4,9,0] (4,9/6,6]|6,5,0] B [1,0] (418,5(4,9,0] [4,9]6,5]6,3, 0
Zone  Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

c 1,0] (4]/8,4]5,2,0] [4,916,5|6,3,0] p|[1,0] |4]8,4][5,2,0] |4,9/6,6[6,5 0

E] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description  The nominated area of the Independence Historic District is

comprised of approximately 98.7 acres, Sections 21, 44, 45, Township 8S, Range 4W,
Willamette Meridian, Polk County, Oregon. It is more particularly described as
follows:

[X] see continuation sheet

Boundary Justification ~ The Independence Historic District encompasses a visually and his-
torically coherent aggregation of residential and commercial buildings. The east boundary
is defined by Main Street, which parallels the topographic barrier of the Willamette
River. The north and west bounds are demarcated by distinct changes in topography and
land use. On the south, residential properties comparable in date with those of the

core area taper off to an irregular, thinning edge which extends two distinct, or

strong fingers of continuity along South Main [_]see continuation sheet

Street and along South Fifth Street.

11. Form Prepared By

namehitie Kimberly Demuth and Sally Donovan, Northwest Heritage Property Assocs, Portland, OR
organization _for the City of Independence date _July 1, 1988
street & number _P.0. Box 7 telephone _(5 =

city or town Independence state _Oregon zip code _97351
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The town of Independence, located on the west bank of the Willamette River in Polk
County, Oregon, was known as the "Hop Capital of the World” from the late 1890’s to the
1940’s. The Independence Historic District is significant under criterion A for it's
association with the hop growing industry which provided the economic base for the
development of the community. The district is also significant under criterion C for the
numerous extant commercial and residential buildings which date from the primary and
secondary historic periods of development. The theme areas which relate to the district are
Agriculture and Commerce and Trade. Independence was historically surrounded by
thousands of acres of hops, which produced at that time the highest percentage of hops
grown in Oregon. The small Willamette Valley community was transformed into a bustling
city-like atmosphere during the annual hop harvest. Thousands of people from throughout
the state made the journey to the Independence area to work in the hop fields. The hop
industry brought more revenue to the town in a shorter period of time than any other crop
produced. Much of the growth that occurred in Independence during the primary and
secondary periods of development was a direct result of the prosperous hop industry.
Independence retains much of it’s early character; a majority of buildings date from the
1880’s to the 1920’s. The high concentration of commercial and residential buildings from
the primary and secondary historic periods reflect the vitality of Independence when it was
known throughout the United States as the "Hop Capitoi of the World.”

HISTORIC OVERVIEW
Independence and the surrounding area was originally occupied by the Kalapoonian
Indians. The Kalapoonians were semi-nomadic hunters and gatherers who were attracted to

the abundant food supply along the fertile shores of the Willamette River.! The river also
served as a major transportation route for the natives. It was not until the advent of the
Euro-Americans that permanent settlement of the area began.
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Prior to 1841, the only Euro-Americans to venture into the Independence area were
transient trappers and explorers. The 1841 census estimated the total population of the
Willamette Valley at approximately 400. The highest concentration of the population was

in the Mill Creek and French Prairie area of Marion County.2 By 1849 the Territorial
Census estimated the population of Polk Co. at 1,174, a substantial growth in an eight year
period. Growth in the area occurred due to many factors: the discovery of gold in
California, the availability of fertile soil in the Willamette Valley and the promise of a mild

climate and the passage of the Donation Land Claim Act of 1850.3 This was the beginning
of the great western migration, which brought many settlers into the Willamette Valley.

"NORTH INDEPENDENCE”

Elvin A. Thorp arrived in the Independence area in 1845 and staked a claim north of Ash
Creek in June of that year. He platted a small townsite which later became known as
"Thorp’s Town of Independence” or the "Original Town of Independence”. Thorp and his
family came to Oregon from Council Bluffs, lowa by a wagon train lead by his father, The
party left the midwest in May 1844 and arrived in the Oregon in 1845. Elvin Thorp staked
his claim on land north of the present site of downtown Independence. His land was
bordered on the south by Ash Creek and on the east by the Donation Land Claim of C.P.
Cook. Thorp staked his claim six months prior to the establishment of Polk County. In
June of 1845, Thorp petitioned the United States Government to lay out a small township

called Independence. Thorp received the patent for the town in February of 1866.4 He
knew the importance of the town’s proximity to the Willamette River as a strategic
transportation route for shipping goods up and down the Willamette River. He thus
secured a road easement through C.P. Cook’s Donation Land Claim so he could access the
valuable waterfront and dock space. This helped to promote the town’s development.

The town was reportedly named after Independence, Missouri, by an early pioneer, Mrs.
Thomas Burbank, who lived several miles to the southwest. Independence, Mo. was not
only the starting place for the Oregon Trail but is reported to have been a home to Thorp at
one time. He was said to have consented to name the town with the stipulation that the

Burbanks move to the town and build a store.> This was a common practice to encourage
settlement in a new plat. By the mid-1850's, "Thorp's Town of Independence” or "Old
Town” had services such as a sawmill, brick kiln, blacksmith shop, livery stable, a ferry
system which ran across the Willamette, a general merchandise store, warehouses and boat

docks and a post office (established April 3, 1852).6 The small town prospered as a key
shipping point of goods and supplies for the California gold rush and was situated in a
strategic location for the transportation of goods and produce shipped up and down the
Willamette Valley. The town'’s success ended abruptly after the flood of 1861. A rainy fall-
and an unusually warm December melted the snow pack in the mountains causing a flood
in December of that year, which left the town devastated. The flood destroyed "Thorp's
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Town of Independence”, inudating the entire area. The residents were apprehensive about
rebuilding the town on the original location, thus plans for a new town of Independence
started to formulate.

HENRY HILL’S TOWN OF INDEPENDENCE

Henry Hill arrived in the Independence area in 1847. On November 14th of that year, he
claimed a one square mile Donation Land Claim south of Ash Creek on the west bank of
the Willamette River and opened a log cabin store. Hill subsequently left for the California
gold fields only to return within the year to improve on his Donation Land Claim. After the
1861 flood, many residents of the area wanted Hill to plat a new town south of the Thorp's
original plat which was on higher, flatter ground. In 1867 Hill platted about 40 acres for a
town site which became known as Henry Hill's Town of Independence. Hill promoted the
new town by giving away two lots to people who wanted to build homes, two lots each to

the Methodist and Presbyterian churches, and a lot to a livery stable.” Hill's town was laid
out in a grid; Main Street connected with Thorp’s main thoroughfare, Indian Grave Street.
From Main Street west, the blocks were laid out from 2nd to 9th streets. From north to
south, the streets were lettered from "A” to "'I” streets with Monmouth street between "C”
and "D” streets. Hill's Town was filed June 3rd, 1878 and was recorded March 17, 1879.

By February 26, 1885 Thorp’s and Hill's Towns of Independence were incorporated.8
The following decade of the 1880’s brought prosperity and growth to the small valley
community.

1880°’s AND 1890’S

A majority of the downtown buildings in Independence were built in the 1880's and
1890’s. After Henry Hill officially platted his town of Independence in 1878, the area
grew rapidly. Its proximity to the river and its central location in the Willamette Valley
established Independence as a central shipping point for goods brought up and down the

Willamette River. The population of the town grew from 700 in 1880 to 1,200 in 1890.9
The town became more accessible due to the introduction of the railroad in the early
1880’s. The O. and C. Westside Railroad was completed to Corvallis in 1880 and in 1886
the Western Railroad completed a line down Second Street in Independence. A small
independent railroad was completed August 26, 1890, connecting the towns of
Independence and Monmouth. A ferry system was also completed across the Willamette
River August 14, 1885 making the farms on the east side of the Willamette more

accessible.!0 There were additional technological advances which occurred during this
time that attributed to the town's growth. The city water works was completed in 1890-91,
the Telephone and Telegram was introduced in 1892 and electric lights illuminated the town
on September 20, 1890. Many of the downtown buildings were constructed during this -
time period. The Opera House was built in 1888, the Cooper Building in 1889, the
Independence Bank in 1889, and the City Hall in 1889. The March 29, 1890 West Shore
Magazine featured an article on the prosperous town of Independence stating that "The
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town, with it's highly cultivated and beautiful surroundings, has long been the center of
one of the most productive agricultural districts in Oregon. The farmers from a wide extent
of country come to do their trading.” The article further states of the small valley
community that "Independence, on account of the opportunities for trade, it has long
enjoyed, is one of the most opulent of the small towns to be found in the Willamette Valley.
It claims a population of about 1,200, and possesses sixteen brick business houses. Its
merchants are prosperous, and carry large stocks of goods to meet the demands of the large

number of farmers who come to do their trading.”! ! The town grew as a central shipping
point of the valley with various shipping companies locating their warehouses and wharves
on the waterfront of Independence. The town also had a very active Board of Trade which
was organized in the 1880’s.

1905 -1940

The population of Independence remained at 1,200 people from approximately 1890 until
1902. The 1905 Polk’s Business Directory lists the population of Independence at 1,800,
an increase of 500 people from the 1902 directory. The population remained relatively
stable at 1,800 until the Depression of the 1930’s drove many people from the area. The
increase population ca. 1905 was primarily due to many technological advances and the
prosperity of the hop industry. With the introduction of the automobile the emphasis on
the railroad and river as means of transportation began to lessen. The first automobile

appeared in the Independence in 1907 and it was owned by Dr. Otis Butler.!'2 With the
introduction of the automobile came the need for a better road system, which was
stimulated by Oregon’s "Good Road Movement”. The process of paving the main streets
of Independence began after the turn of the century. By 1912 six streets were paved
including Main Street. In 1909 the bridge across Ash Creek, to the north of the downtown
area, was widened and a new bridge was built to accommodate the automobile traffic. The
Valley and Siletz Railroad was incorporated in 1912. By 1918 the railroad was in
operation, further increasing the areas accessibility. The railroad primarily carried timber,
hops and passengers. By 1915 the 1909 bridge across Ash Creek was outdated and a new

steel bridge was constructed.!3 After WWI, during the 1920’s, many new facilities were
introduced in the area. During this time the first hospital was opened by George and
Martha Knott in 1921; the Independence Elementary School was constructed in 1925; and
the Independence City Library was opened in 1929. The new prosperity of Independence
was primarily due to the revenue of the hop industry which was the major crop in the area
from the turn of the century to the 1940's.

THE HOP INDUSTRY

Independence was known as the "Hop Capital of the World” from the late 1890’s to the -
1940’s. Hops were planted in Polk County in the late 1860's. The climate and soil of the
rich river bottom land made the area surrounding Independence ideal for growing hops.
Hop production in Polk County. increased in the 1880’s and 1890's; by 1893 two
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thousand acres were planted in hops. Although the rich farmlands of Polk County
produced wheat and other grain cereals, by 1889 Polk County was producing more hops

than any other county in Oregon.!4 At the turn of the century the farmers in Polk County
had organized a Hop Grower's Fire Relief Association to help grower’s in the area. The
total number of acres planted with hops swelled to 17,500 by the turn of the century. The
town of Independence was surrounded by thousands of acres of hops by the early 1900’s.
Some of the largest hops farms in the world were located in the area. A 1913 article in the
Oregonian states that "with in five miles of the city there amounted to 22,000 bales, which
at an average weight of 190 pounds to the bale makes a total of 4,275,00 pounds. Taking
a total of 22 cents a pound will give a total of $940,500.00 which will come into the city
this year from this one crop. Good hops land can be bought on reasonable terms, so
reasonable, in fact, that it is possible to pay for it within a few years. Some yards have

paid for themselves in two years, but this is the case only when the market is at its best.” !5

The total acres planted with hops in the United States was 43,653 acres in 1915.16 Oregon
harvested approximately 20,000 acres of hops that year and The Independence area

harvested approximately one fourth of the total Oregon harvest.!7 By 1925 the United
States’ total hop harvest was on the decline, but Oregon was still harvesting 13,000 acres

out of the total 20,350 United States acres.!S3 By 1935 Oregon’s hop harvested had
increased to 26,000 acres out of the total 39,000 acres of hop planted in the United

States.!9 The Independence area became the largest hop growing area in Oregon, with
hops planted within a five acres radius of the town. .

A 1939 promotional brochure on Independence states of the hop industry, "From early
spring till the end of September the yards are the scene of intense activity. The hops are
trained to grow upon trellises and form a green that is beautiful, romantic and a wonderful

testimony to the richness of the soil.”20 Thousands of acres of hops were planted
surrounding Independence which gave the town a special ambience. The hop plant was a
perennial and had a life expectancy of fifteen to twenty-five years. The hops grew on
string trellises supported on wooden poles which were historically six to ten feet high. The
hop leaves were dark green in color and the buds grew in clusters and were a lighter green.
During the winter months the hop yards were groomed and repaired in preparation for the
growing season. The hops started to grow in the early spring and were harvested in mid-
August to mid-September. The hops historically were picked by hand and put into baskets
in the field. They were then transfered into burlap bags and sent to the hop dryers. After
the hop was dried, it was baled and sent to market. Later, in the 1940’s and 1950’s,
machines began replacing hand labor, altering earlier harvest practices. During the hop
harvest many people from around the state migrated to Independence for seasonal work in -
the fields.
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The hop industry transformed the small valley community of Independence in the summer
month to an active river town. The population of the town increased 5,000 to 10,000
people in the early part of the twentieth century during the hop picking season. By the
1940’s an estimated 25,000 people flocked into the Independence area during the late

summer months.2! The people came from all over Oregon, some returning annually to the
area. The town provided the supplies and services for the pickers that came to the area to
work in the hop fields which greatly increased the revenue of the town. An article in the
1904 West Side Enterprise Newspaper reported that, ”For the past ten days, they (pickers)
have been pouring in by team and train loads. All last week along the principle roads
centering in Independence were almost continuous procession of teams bearing hoppickers
afield and clouds of dust enveloped the much travelled highway. All last week, trains ran
behind time because of the unusual number of hoppickers and hoppickers baggage to
handle and at many times there was congestion of traffic on Independence streets and at the
ferry crossing. As many as sixty-five teams have been counted at one time between

Paddock’s Store and Wilson's grocery, a space of scarcely a block.”22 People came from
all over the state in the summer to help with the hops harvest, bringing their families and
possessions. The E. Clemens Horst Company was the "largest single hop field in the

world” in 1934, planting 500 to 750 acres to hops.23 The farm was located north of
Independence and was later renamed the Green Villa Farms. The Horsts hired as many as

3,000 workers to help at harvest time.24 The larger hop farms such as Horsts had small
cabins built for the workers and the farms were transformed into small towns in

themselves. Along with the housing facilities the camps often had grocery stores,

restuarants, taverns and dance halls. A camp sheriff was also often employed by the farms
during the peak seasons to guard against unruly behavior. Recreational activities after long
picking days included boxing matches, games, and dances, and the camps were always
filled with music. There was also an annual Hop's Festival which was held at the site of
the Riverview Park which included the selection of a Hop queen. Many workers brought
their families and belongings to the camps. Mothers and their babies were a common sight
in the fields and in the camps. The same families often came back year after year to harvest

the hops.

The hop pickers increased the annual revenue of Independence substantially and
transformed the town into a bustling "city-like” atmosphere. Workers would get paid by
tickets; the tickets would be punched according to the quantity of hops they picked each
day. These tickets could be used either as exchanged for cash or traded for food or
merchandise at the local stores. At the end of the harvest season the merchants would
exchange the tickets they collected from the workers for cash from the hop farmers. The
hops industry put more money into the economy of Independence than any other crop -
grown in the area. In the early 1940's a local resident, Dee Taylor{deceased), remembers
that the main street was so crowded with people that ” you couldn't even walk down the
sidewalks, people had to walk in the streets to get somewhere and avoid the throngs that
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crowded the sidewalks.”25 Taylor's Drug Store, which is still a local gathering place,
located on the corner of Monmouth and Main Streets, was open in the peak summer season
from 7am to 11pm, seven days a week and had a continual flow of customers throughout
the day.

By the late 1940’s, after WWII, the hop industry in the Independence area began to
dwindle and by the 1950s only a few hop farms were still in operation. The decline of the
hop industry in the area was due to a number of reasons. New technology in the
production of beer lessened the amount of hops needed in the brewing. Also the
competition from foreign markets after the War lead to the decrease in United States hop
production. One local resident cited that women were also the cause of the decline of the
hop industry. Apparently, the "wartime scene brought a lot of women into the taverns
which caused the death of the local industry because the women liked a more mellow taste
causing the brewers to use fewer hops and eventually lead to a change in the variety of

hops that grew better in the Yakima Valley in Washington.”26 A disease called Downey
mildew also caused a problem for the local growers in the 1940’s which didn’t effect the

hop growers in Washington.27 By 1953 Oregon was only planting 6,800 acres of hops
out of 28,000 total U.S. acres compared to the peak season in 1935 in which 26,000 were

planted.28

ARCHITECTURE

Independence has a blend of commercial and residential buildings which reflect the primary
and secondary historic periods. A substantial number of the buildings remain in the city
from the primary building phases, especially in the downtown. The commercial buildings
are lasting reminders of the wealth and prosperity of the small Willamette Valley farming
community. Many of the commercial structures are constructed of masonry from a local
brickyard. Some of the downtown buildings that remain intact from the primary historic
period are: the first bank building in Independence (211 S. Main Street), the Old Fraternal
Hall (194 S. Main Street), the J.S. Cooper Building (206 S. Main Street), the Craven
Building (216 S. Main Street), Taylor's Drug Store (296 S. Main Street), the Masonic
Lodge (301-319 S. Main Street), the First National Bank of Independence (302 S. Main
Street), and the Opera House (268 S. Main Street). Ten out of twenty-three commercial
buildings on Main Street date from the primary period and are contributing buildings.
Although the first story storefronts of the buildings are usually modified, the buildings
retain their historic character through scale, material and detail. The commercial buildings
from the secondary historic period are generally more modest concrete or brick building
and usually replaced earlier wooden false front buildings. The hop warehouses located at
Second and "D” Street are the only extant utilitarian buildings which directly relate to the -
hop industry in Independence.
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The residential buildings in Independence include structures from the primary and
secondary historic periods. These buildings reflect the early settlement pattern of the town.
The earlier residential buildings in the area were originally on larger tracts of land. As the
town grew, property owners began to sell off parcels of their land for people to build on.
The result of this growth is a combination of buildings dating from the primary and
secondary building period and a variety of architectual styles. Monmouth Street, and S.
Main Street, are major arterials of the district and it's residences reflect the prominence of
the owners.

Many of the owners of the historic homes throughout the district owned or operated
businesses in commercial buildings still extant in downtown Independence. J.S. Cooper,
who resided in a prominent Craftsman style home at 224 S. Third Street, owned the J.S.
Cooper Building in downtown at 206 S. Main Street. The Bungalow style building at 363
Monmouth Street was occupied by William Craven. Craven owned the Craven Building at
226 S. Main and had a stationary and confectionary store in the building around the turn of
the century. E.F. Whiteaker owned a furniture store at 144 S. Main Street and lived in a
residence at 363 "C" and at 389 "C” Streets. William Cockle owned Sloper Brothers and
Cockle Hardware in downtown and resided at 814 S. Main Street. There are many other
noteworthy residences in the district that were associated with the hops industry; Arch
Sloper, who resided at 838 S. Main, in a Craftsman style home, was one of the leading
hop growers in the area. He designed and patented a variety of hop equipment.

S.B.Walker resided at 158 S. Second Street in a Queen Anne style home. He was a hop
grower in the area, who held large acreages, and his hop office was located at 174 "C”
Street. Walker also owned a furniture store at 154 S. Main Street. The residence at 357
"B" Street was occupied by D.P. Mc Carthy. He operated and owned a hop farm on the
east side of the Willamette River. The Hedge family was also very active in the hop
industry in Independence and lived at 710 Monmouth Street.

There are many public buildings included in the district that are from the primary and
secondary building periods. The churches in the district include the Christian Church,
located at 350 "A” Street (1886), the Methodist Church at 330 Monmouth (1874), the First
Baptist Church at 112 S. Third Street(1888), and Calvary Presbyterian Church located at
413 "D” Street(1928). The Independence Public School (150 S. 4th Street, 1926) and the
Independence Library (311 Monmouth Street, 1929) were built in the secondary historic
period and contribute to the overall character of the district.



NPS Form 10-800-a OMS Approvel No. 1024-0018
(8-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __8  Page __9

l Jane Morrison and Julie Pinger, "City of Independence Historic
Resource Inventory. 1984-85," (Independence, City of Independence, 1984-85),

p4.)

- Ibid.. p. 4
3 Ibid. p. 5
4

Sidney Newton, Earlv Historv of Independence, Oregon. (Independence:
Sidney Newton. 1971), p 2.

b} Historv of Polk Countv, (Monmouth, OR: County Historical Society, 1987)
p. 17

6 Lewis McArthur, Oregon Geographic Name, (Portland: Oregon Historical
Society, OR, 1974), p 380

7 Historv of Polk Countv, p 17.

8 Ibid., p 18

9 Jane Morrison and Julie Pinger, "City of Independence Historic

Resource Inventory.” p 9
10 Ibid., p. 9.

1 “Independence, Oregon'" West Shore Magazine vol. 16, March 29, 1980,
p 399,

12 Sun Enterprise. "History of Independence.” Independence City Library,
no date

13 . Earlv Historv of Independence, p 112




NPS Form 10-000-e OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __8  Page _ 10

14 "Independence, Oregon,” West Shore Magazine p. 399

15 Oregonian, 14 December 1913

16 US. Department of Agriculture, Statistical Reporting Services no. 469,
Hops bv State 1915-1969, (Washingto D.C., 1971). p. 3.

17 Ibid. p S

18 Ibid., pp. 3and 5
19 Ibid., pp. 3and5
20 "Independence Oregon.” Independence Chamber of Commerce

brochure, 1939

21 Craig Lockwood. "Hops - The Crop that Made Independence Famous,"
located at Independence Historical Society, no date, p. 17

22 Ibid., p 17
23 Ibid.. p 18
24 Ibid., p 18
25 Ibid., p 20
26 Ibid.. p 20
27 Ibid.. p 20

28 Hops bv State 1915-1969, pp. 3 and 5




OMB Approval No. 10240018
NPS Form 10-900-a
(8-28)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 9 Page 1

Books, Articles and Manuscripts (cont.)

History of Polk Co.. Polk Co. Historical Society, Monmouth, Or, 1987.

Holmes, Frank. "History, Methods and Costs of Production, and Financing of Pacific
Coast Hops.” School of Banking, Rutgers University, 1947.

"Independence Oregon.” Independence Chamber of Commerce brochure, 1939.

"Independence, Oregon.” West Shore Magazine, vol. 16: 399. Portland, Oregon, March
29,1890.

Lockwood, Craig. "Hops- The Crop that Made Independence Famous.” Independence
Historical Museum, Independence, OR.

McArthur, Lewis. Oregon Geographic Names. Oregon Historical Society:
Portland, Oregon, 1974.

McArthur, Scott. "History of Lyons Lodge #29”. Unpublished typescript, n.d.

Morrison, Jane and Pinger, Julie. "City of Independence Historic Resource Inventory,
1984-85.” City of Independence, 1984-85.

Newton, Sidney. Early History of Independence. Oregon. Independence, Oregon 1971.

Portrait and Biographical Record of Willamette Valley. Oregon. Chapman Publishing
Company: Chicago, 1903.

U.S. Department of Agriculture, Statistical Reporting Services no. 469. Hops by State,
1915-1969. Washington, D. C., June 1971.

Newspapers

Capital Journal."Historical Background of Independence Church Read at Anniversarial.”
10 October 1934. '

- "Independence, Thriving Willamette Valley City Hop Center.” 18
December 1934, section 3, p. 16.




NPS Form 10-000-a OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018
(6-8%)

United .States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __9 Page 2

. "Independence Bank Has 51st Birthday.” 2 March 1940, p. 2.

. 6 November, 1956
. "Old Buildings New Lease on Life.” 6 July 1978, p.16.

Oregon Joumnal. "Oregon’s Annual Hops Harvest.” 27 October 1946.
Oregon Statesman. "James S. Cooper Passes Beyond.” 5 July 1923.

. "Pioneer Passes in Polk County.” 23 December 1926, p.4

Oregonian. 14 December 1913.

Sun Enterprise. "New Library Building and Equipment Ready for Open House This
Afternoon.” 25 October 1929.

. 17 June 1987.

. Newberg, Betty Lou. "Historic Independence.” 3 February 1988, p.
7a.

. 27 April 1988, p. 6a.

. Newberg, Betty Lou. "Historic Independence.” 1988
Westside. 2 May 1890.

National Historic Register Nominations

Donovan, Sally. "Kirk House.” National Register of Historic Places Nomination, March
1986.

Newberg, Betty Lou and Julie Koler, "Independence National Bank.” National Register
of Historic Places Nomination, March 15, 1986.

Newberg, Betty Lou and Julie Koler. "J.A. Wheeler.” National Register of Historic
Places Nomination, March 14, 1986

Newberg, Betty Lou and Julie Koler. "Methodist Church.” National Register of Historic
Places Nomination, March 15,1986. :



NPS Form 10-000-a
(8-26)

United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet

Section number _9 __ Page __3

Newberg, Betty Lou. "Kersey C. Eldridge House.” National Register of Historic Places
Nomination, August 1987.

Newberg, Betty Lou. "The John and Mary Davidson House.” National Register of
Historic Places Nomination, August 15, 1984.

Photographs

"General View of Independence,” West Shore Magazine, no. 13: 616, Portland, OR,
August 1887.

Oregon Historical Society Photography Collection, Oregon Historical Society, Portland,
OR.

Photography Collection, Independence Historical Museum, Independence, OR.
Photography Collection, Independence Historical Museum, Independence, OR.

Private Collection, Barbara Martin, family photo album, Independence, OR.

Interviews - Independence, OR

January - June 1988

Margret Kelley Marvel Lamb
Phillis Stuwe Lorene Newton
Herb Nelson Anna Fisher
Betty Allen Art Ward

Fay Mort Millie Kelley
Jean Ellen Thibeau Barbara Martin
Dean Smith Robyn Puccetti
Barbara Smith Betty Newberg
Tom Girard Marg Taylor
Cliff Hardin Bill Nix

Ken Byers Lloyd Coffman

Leona Gooch
Francis and Georgia Holt

Shirley and Hent Bauersfeld
Allen Opplinger

Edria Hagerman Fran and Harold Engbolm
Dean Craven John Pfaff
Gwen Slade Joyce Kirk, St. Paul, Oregon



NPS Form 10-000-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(0-88)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 9 Page 4

Other

Polk County Assessor’s and Surveyor’s Office, Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, OR.
Polk County Deeds and Records, Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, OR.

Polk’s Oregon and Washington Gazetteer, E.L. Polk and Co., Seattle-Portland, 1886,
18838, 1889-9C, 1891-90, 1902, 1903-04, 1905, 1919-20, 1932, 1959.

Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; 1884, 1888, 1892, 1902, 1913, 1925.



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approvel No. 1024-0018
(o-08)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number _10 _ Page __1

Beginning at the northeast corner of Lot 1, fractional Block 3 of the
Henry Hills Original Plat of Independence, Book 12, Page 306, as recorded
in the Polk County Deeds and Records, Polk County, Oregon; thence south
76 feet on a line parallel to Main Street; thence east 3 feet on a line
parallel to 'C' Street; thence south 13 feet on a line parallel to Main
Street; thence east 28 feet on a line parallel to 'C' Street; thence
south 18 feet on a line parallel to Main Street; thence east 72 feet
on a line parallel to 'C' Street; thence south 233.5 feet on a line
parallel to Main Street; thence west 70 feet on a 1line parallel to
Monmouth Street; thence south 48 feet on a line parallel to Main Street;
thence west 98 feet on a line parallel to Monmouth Street; thence south
216 feet, thence east 83 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 4, fractional
Block 4; thence south to the northeast corner of Lot 1, fractional Block
6; thence west 86 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 1, fractional
Block 6; thence south to the southwest corner of Lot 4, fractional Block
6; thence east to the southeast corner of Lot 4, fractional Block 6;
thence south 1290 feet on a line parallel to Main Street to a point
at the southeast corner of fractional Block 9, Hills Addition to
Independence, Book 1, Page 38, 39, Polk County Deeds and Records, Polk
County, Oregon; thence west 146 feet on a line parallel to 'I' Street;
thence north 114 feet along the west side of Main Street; thence west
to the southwest corner of Lot 2, Block 20; thence north to the northwest
corner of Lot 1, Block 1; thence west to the northeast corner of Lot
8, Block 2; thence north to the southeast corner of Lot 5, Block 7 of
Henry Hills Original Plat of Independence, thence east to the southeast
corner of Lot 4, Block 7; thence north 66 feet to the northeast corner
of Lot 4, Block 7; thence west to the southeast corner of Lot 6, Block
7; thence north to the northeast corner of Lot 6, Block 7; thence west
to the northwest corner of Lot 6, Block 7; thence south 50 feet along
the east side of Third Street; thence west to the southwest corner of
Lot 3, Block 14; thence south to the northeast corner of Lot 1, Block
3 of Hills Addition to Independence, thence west along the south side
of 'E' street to the northeast corner of Lot 8, Block 4; thence south
on a line parallel to Fifth Street to the northeast corner of Lot 5,
Block 7; thence west on a line parallel to 'G' Street 74 feet; thence
south on a line parallel to Fifth Street 66 feet; thence west 463.5
feet on the north side of 'G' Street; thence north on a line parallel
to Sixth Street, thence east on a line parallel to 'E' Street 174.5
feet to the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block 5; thence north on a line
parallel to Fifth Street to the southwest corner of Lot 2, Block 24;
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thence south 32 feet on a line parallel to Sixth Street; thence west
75 feet on a line parallel to 'D' Street; thence north 32 feet along
the east side of Sixth Street; thence west 165 feet on a line parallel
to 'D' Street; thence north 20 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 6,
Block 1, Pattersons 1st Addition to Independence, Book 13, Page 625,
in Polk County Deeds and Records, Polk County, Oregon; thence west to
the southwest corner of Lot 7, Block 1; thence south 203 feet along
the east side of Seventh Street; thence west to the northwest corner
of Lot 8, Block 5; thence north 66 feet to the southwest corner of Lot
5, Block 2; thence west to the southeast corner of Lot 5, Block 3; thence
north to the northeast corner of Lot 5, Block 3; thence west 214.5 feet
on a line parallel to 'D' Street; thence north 20 feet along the west
side of Ninth Street; thence west 74.25 feet on a line parallel to 'D'
Street; thence north 198 feet on a line parallel to Ninth Street; thence
east 557.75 feet along the north side of Monmouth Street to a point
on the west side of Ash Creek; thence north 264 feet along the west
side of Ash Creek to a point on the south side of 'C' Street; thence
north 66 feet on a line parallel to Seventh Street; thence west 78.2
feet on a Tine parallel to Monmouth Street; thence north 264 feet on
a line parallel to Seventh Street; thence east 378.5 feet on a line
parallel to 'B' Street; thence south 264 feet along the east side of
Seventh Street; thence east 313.5 feet along the north side of 'C' Street;
thence north 330 feet to the southeast corner of Lot 4, Block 30; thence
east to the southeast corner of Lot 5, Block 20; thence north to the
northeast corner of Lot 7, Block 20; thence east to the northeast corner
of Lot 2, Block 20; thence north to the southwest corner of Lot 1, Block
14, Thorps Addition to Independence, Book 12, Page 239, Polk County
Deeds and Records, Polk County, Oregon; thence east 492 feet along the
north side of Butler Street; thence south to the southwest corner of
Lot 7, Block 7; thence east 112 feet to the northeast corner of Lot
8, Block 7; thence south 150.6 feet on a line parallel to Second Street;
thence west 32 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 1, Block 10; thence
south to the northwest corner of Lot 3, Block 10; thence west 163.5
feet to the northwest corner of Lot 6, Block 10; thence south to the
southwest corner of Lot 5, Block 10; thence east along the north side
of 'B' Street to the southwest corner of Lot 4, fractional Block 1;
thence south along the east side of Main Street to the southwest corner
of Lot 4, fractional Block 2; thence east 85 feet along the north side
of 'C' Street; thence south 66 feet to the northeast corner of Lot 1,
fractional Block 3, and to the point of beginning.
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Address

211 S. Main Street
215 S. Main Street
223 S. Main Street
227 S. Main Street
235 S. Main Street
Vacant

259 S. Main Street
265 S. Main Street
289 S. Main Street

301-319 S. Main Street

413 S. Main Street
435 S. Main Street
Vacant

485 S. Main Street
Vacant

Vacant

Vacant

838 S. Main Street
814 S. Main Street
786 S. Main Street
760 S. Main Street
115 "G" Street
688 S. Main Street
644 S. Main Street
614 S. Main Street
S88 S. Main Street
S64 S. Main Street
Vacant

S10 S. Main Street
478 S. Main Street
434 S. Main Street
414 S. Main Street
386 S. Main Street
370 S. Main Street
302 S. Main Street

148 Monmouth Street

296 S. Main Street
284 S. Main Street

Tax Lot

1400
1500
1600
1700
1800
1902
1903
2000
2101
2200
200
300
400
500
800
900
1000
13600
13500
9300
9200
9000
8700
8600
8500
3900
3800
3700
3600
300
200
100
4300
4200
3700
2900
2800
2700

Map No.

84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AB
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 AC
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
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39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
D2
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
7
78

Address

268 S. Main Street
250 S. Main Street
240 S. Main Street
226 S. Main Street
206 S. Main Street
194 S. Main Street
184 S. Main Street
174 S. Main Street
154 S. Main Street
144 S. Main Street
114 S. Main Street
109 S. Second Street
159 S. Second Street
150-158 "C" Street
164 "C" Street

170 "C" Street

174 "C" Street

155 "C" Street
165-185 "C" Street
269 S. Second Street
155 S. "C" Street
Vacant

283 S. Second Street
178 Monmouth Street
168 Monmouth Street
175 Monmouth Street
317-329 S. Second Street
150 "D" Street (rear)
Vacant

150 "D" Street

163 "D" Street

Vacant

451 S. Second Street
461 S. Second Street
489 S. Second Street
Vacant

Hop Warehouses

203 Monmouth Street
240 Monmouth Street
Vacant

Tax Lot

2600
2500
2400
2300
2200
1500
1400
1300
1200
1100
1000
2100
2000
1600
1700
1800
1900
3601
3500
3401
3600
3602
3400
3100
3200
4800
4700
4600
4500
4400
700

800

600

500

400

900

901

4900
5800
5700

Map No.

84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
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79
80
81
82
83
84a
84b
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117

Address

216 S. Second Street
Vacant

158 S. Second Street
Vacant

116 S. Second Street
261 "B" Street

111 S. Third Street
135 S. Third Street
284 "C" Street

264 "C" Street

255 "C" Street
263-269 "C" Street
287 "C" Street

265 S. Third Street
Vacant

260-290 Monmouth Street
256 Monmouth Street
261 Monmouth Street
275 Monmouth Street
285 Monmouth Street
360 S. Third Street
340 S. Third Street
311 Monmouth Street
341 Monmouth Street
330 Monmouth Street
260 S. Third Street
224 S. Third Street
190 S. Third Street
160 S. Third Street
138 S. Third Street
112 S. Third Street
86 S. Third Street

62 S. Third Street
364 1/2 "B" Street

32 S. Third Street

24 S. Third Street

16 S. Third Street

41 S. Third Street
289 "A" Street

15 Log Cabin Street

Tax Lot

5600
6700
6600
6500
6400
7100
7100
7000
6900
6800
6300
6200
6100
6002
6000
6001
5900
5400
5501
5500
10800
10600
10601
10700
10102
10000
9900
9400
9300
9200
9100
8500
8400
8300
8200
8100
8000
7800
7900
3800

Map No.

84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 21 CD
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No.

118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129a
129b
130
151
1.32
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156

Address

16 Log Cabin Street
46 Log Cabin Street
70 Log Cabin Street
92 Log Cabin Street
85 Walnut Street
71 Walnut Street
37 Walnut Street
350 "A" Street

357 "A" Street

15 S. Fourth Street
Vacant

41 S. Fourth Street

386 "B" Street
358 "B" Street
357 "B" Street
385 "B" Street
388 "C" Street
360 "C" Street
363 "C" Street
389 "C" Street

386 Monmouth Street
Vacant

363 Monmouth Street
389 Monmouth Street
365 S. Fourth Street
Vacant

363 "D" Street

389 "D" Street

461 S. Fourth Street
485 S. Fourth Street
368 "E" Street

482 S. Fourth Street
440 "E" Street

458 S. Fourth Street
436 S. Fourth Street
413 "D” Street

446 "D" Street

386 S. Fourth Street
364 S. Fourth Street
411 Monmouth Street

Tax Lot

5700
5800
5900
6000
6100
6200
6300
6400
8900
9000
8800
8700
8700
8600
9800
9700
9600
9500
10500
10400
10300
10200
11200
11300
11100
11000
2300
2400
2200
2100
2000
2800
2900
2700
2600
2500
11700
11600
11500
11400

Map No.

84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
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84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BD
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
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157
158
159
160
161a
161b
161c
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
L7S
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194

Address

410 Monmouth Street
230 S. Fourth Street
413 "C" Street

Vacant

150 S. Fourth Street
150 S. Fourth Street
Vacant

88 S. Fourth Street

66 S. Fourth Street

40 S. Fourth Street
432 "A" Street

46 Walnut Street

66 Walnut Street

88 Walnut Street

465 "C" Street
483-485 "C" Street
488 Monmouth Street
460 Monmouth Street
461 Monmouth Street
487 Monmouth Street
S45 Monmouth Street
5S20-530 Monmouth Street
260 S. Fifth Street
240 S. Fifth Street
210 S. Fifth Street
S44 "C" Street

S5SS58 “C" Street

576 “C" Street

115 S. Sixth Street

592 "C" Street
555 "C" Street
S65 "C" Street
S89 "C" Street
593 "C" Street

S90 Monmouth Street
S80 Monmouth Street
S70 Monmouth Street
S60 Monmouth Street
SSS Monmouth Street
S6S5 Monmouth Street

Tax Lot

12500
12300
12200
12400
13000
13100
500
13500
13400
13300
6500
6600
6700
6800
12900
12800
12700
12600
12000
12100
2100
1300
1200
1100
1101
600
700
800
900
1000
2000
1900
1801
1800
1700
1600
1500
1400
3200
3100

Map No.

84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 21 CD
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BA
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
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195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222

Address

581 Monmouth Street
593 Monmouth Street
615 Monmouth Street
645 Monmouth Street
286 S. Sixth Street
266 S. Sixth Street
244 S. Sixth Street
212 S. Sixth Street
669 "C" Street

686 Monmouth Street
660 Monmouth Street
675 Monmouth Street
388 S. Seventh Street
362 S. Seventh Street
336 S. Seventh Street
314 S. Seventh Street
710 Monmouth Street
234 S. Seventh Street
214 S. Seventh Street
729 "C" Street

770 Monmouth Street
765 Monmouth Street
770 "D" Street

841 Monmouth Street
867 Monmouth Street
887 Monmouth Street
917 Monmouth Street

Pioneer Park - 7th and "C"

Tax Lot

3000
2900
6300
6301
3600
3500
3400
3300
3900
3800
3700
6800
7200
7100
7000
6900
6201
6100
6000
6001
6200
7300
7301
7400
7600
7500
1400

5500, 5501

Map No.

84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 28 BB
84 29 AA
84 28 BB
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224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
243
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
=57
258

—~e
o

260
261
262

263

Address

Vacant

383 5. Fifth Street
467 "D" Street

483 "D" Street

435 S. Fifth Street
4632 S. Fifth Street
460 "E" Street

485 S. Fifth Street
475 "E" Street

SE7 5. Fifth Street
444 "F" Street

496 "F" Street

485 "F" Street

635 S. Fifth Street
645 S. Fifth Street
687 S. Fifth Street
962 "G" Street

SE8 "G" Street

€84 5. Fifth Street
666 S. Fifth Street
636 S. Fifth Etreet
Vacant

995 "F" Street

614 S. Fifth Street
982 "F" Street
Vacant

S60 "F" Street

2990 "F" Street

S86 S. Fifth Street
S398 S. Fifth Street
36 S. Fifth Street
S35 "E" Street

512 S. Fifth Street
540 "E" Street

420 S. Fifth Street
446 5. Fifth Street
414 S. Fifth Street

S30 "D" Street

S16 "D" Street

262 5. Fifth Street

336 S. Fifth Street

Tax Lot

11300
11800
3300
3300
2400
3200
3000
3100
65600
6500
6300
65400
7400
7300
7200
7100
2700
2600
2500
2501
2400

2100
2300
1200
1800
1801
1700
1800
iS00
1400
1300
1200
400

200

=200

100

2500
2800
2300

2200

Map No.

84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
34
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
84
g4
84
84
24
84
8%
84
84

84 2

84
a4

v
e
28
~
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28
=8
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28
28
28
28
Z28
28

Foe
e
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—
=¥
=
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e
-
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BD
BD
BD
BD
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BC
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
EVALUATION/RETURN SHEET

REQUESTED ACTION: NOMINATION

PROPERTY Independence Historic District
NAME:

MULTIPLE
NAME:

STATE & COUNTY: OREGON, Polk

DATE RECEIVED: 1/18/89 DATE OF PENDING LIST: 2/01/89
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City of Independence RECEIVED

P. 0. BOX 7, INDEPENDENCE, OREGON 97351 DCT2 A1388
(503) 8381212

STATE PARKS DIVISION

“Where Rolled The Wagon Train”

22 Oct 88

Ms. Elizabeth Potter

Coordinator, National Register Nominations
State Historic Preservation Office

525 Trade Street SE

Salem, OR 97310

Dear Ms. Potter;

I want to give my enthusiastic support to the Independence National
Historic District n;mination. I am a city councilor and have been working
toward the goal of a National Register District for years. My involvement
began with the Ad Hoc Commission which really got this ball rolling. Currently

I serve on our Historic Preservation Commission as vice-chair.

I truly believe in the future of Independence being firmly linked to
its history and its preservation and marketing. Our economic vitality is
to a great extent dependent upon our success in promoting the richness of
our cultural heritage. Growth through preservation and rehabilitation is
anticipated by many in both our downtown commercial core and our colorful

residential sector.

We support this nomination wholeheartedly as an integral step in the
process delineated in our Historic Preservation Ordinance #11L43. I personally
recommend the inclusion of the 'Fifth Street addition' to the original
nomination. It is a rich section of town, well researched by several residents

of the area, and a valuable part of our historic heritage.

Please pass this letter on to the Advisory Committee on Historic

Preservation.

Sincerely, .

N, Covrnee

Michael Cairns
City Councilor



NEIL GOLDSCHMIDT
GOVERNOR

73410-807

Department of Transportation

STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICE

Parks and Recreation Division
525 TRADE STREET SE, SALEM, OREGON 97310

January 13, 1989

Carol D. Shull, Chief of Registration JAN 181989
National Register of Historic Places NATIUNAL
National Park Service REGISTER

P.0. Box 37127
Washington, D.C. 20013-7127

Dear Ms. Shull:
On the recommendation of the Oregon State Advisory Committee on

Historic Preservation, I hereby nominate the following properties
to the National Register of Historic Places.

St. Elizabeth Hospital (Old) Independence Historic District
Baker Independence

Baker County, Oregon Polk County, Oregon
Elliott, Marion Reed, House Sherman, Eleanor, House
Prineville Monmouth

Crook County, Oregon Polk County, Oregon

Barker, S. B., Building St. Pierre, Edward W., House
Condon Salem vicinity

Gilliam County, Oregon Polk County, Oregon

Watson, John N. & Cornelia, House Gaston, Joseph, House
Lakeview Portland

Lake County, Oregon Multnomah County

If questions concerning these nominations arise, we welcome you to
be in touch with Elisabeth Potter, who can be reached at the
following number: 503/378-5001.

Thank you, as always, for your consideration of our affairs.
Si ely,

& etk

David G. Talbot
State Historic Preservation Officer
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TOEPENDENCE
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STELLA (BAGLEY)
DUNCKEL

Stella Dunckel was born October 28, 1888
at Airlie, Polk County Oregon, to Jasper and
Mary (Withrow) Bagley and was the great-
granddaughter of Sarah King and Rowland
Chambers, pioneers of 1845, They were part
of the 200 families who followed Stephen
Meek, the guide of that wagon train which was
supposed o take a short cut from Fort Boise
to The Dalles but instead became lost in the
trackless desert country of central Oregon.
Sarah was the daughter of Nahum King, who
later settled Kings Valley and lent his name to
much of that area. She died on that tortuous
trail at the age of 22. She lies in the only
marked grave with the name “S. Chambers,
September 3, 1845, scratched in native
stone. She left a young son and daughter. The
glrl, Margaret, nearly three at the time was to

¢ Stella’s grandmother. Margaret married
Orthellow Bagley in 1859 and they became
the parents of Stella’s father, Jasper.

Edward and Stella Dunckel wedding

Stella was an only child. She grew upin Air-
lie and went to school there. She married
Edward Athye Dunckel June 15, 1915 and
since then has lived in Independence, Polk
County, Oregon. When she married Edward
he owned ‘The Independence Laundry and
Dry Cleaners’ and the nearby Dunckel Apart-
ments. They had 2 children, Edward J., gom
August 3, 1916 and Ray Athye, born July 14,
1918. She helped her husband and later her
sons in the laundry. Her husband, Edward,
died in January | 9%. After World WarlI Ray
bought his brother’s share and owned and

operated the laundry and dry cleaners until
his death in March, 198 1. He also served sev-
eral terms as Mayor of Independence.
Edward J. moved to McMinnville, Oregon,
about 1945,

Stella will be 95 years old October 28
(1983). She lives alone in the house where she
has lived since 1920, across the street from
her daughter-in-law, Violet (Locke) Dunckel.
A warm and loving lady, she has 6 grandchil-
dren; Matthew Dunckel, Molly Pam.cll, Nan-
cy Hicks and Deana Bergman, children of
Edward and Darlene Dunckel; and Kalh(
Hudspeth, Kellic Wood and Kris Dunckel,
the children of Ray and Violet Dunckel, in
addition to 11 grcal-'grandchlldren. She cro-
chets lovely afghans for these grandchildren.
She has been a member of the First Christian
Church of Monmouth for many years.

This was 3 years ago. Stella lived to be 98 —
celebrating with 2 birthday dinners in her
honor! Stella died peacefully of heart failure
after spending one week in Salem Memorial
Hospital, November 9, 1986. She is buried
beside her parents, at English Cemetery,
Monmouth, Oregon, only a few miles from
where she lived her life. Dorothy Locke Jacob-
son

The Dunckels, from History of Polk County, Oregon, pages 97-98.




PIONEER PASSES
IN POLK COUNTY

PATTEPNON (CAME 1O
OREGOYN '*\‘, 1K

" oy — e e

| (T

Father of Governov-tclect; Mvmlwri
of Ntate Leglslnture for
Two Terns

e ———

-~

I°. A, Patterson, tuther of Gov-
arnor-eclect I. 1,. Pattorgon, passgod
away nt his home In lndmwndom'nl
yeslerduy afternoon, December 22,
at T p.om., followinye o lengthy
Hinoss.

Ho wan born in SC Clafre coun-
ty, Illnols on October 1, 1835, be
g of Scoteh anceslry, When 17
yoears of ago he hoard the call of
the Weut and traveled (o Callfor-
ula,  Shortly afterwuard hie enmo
to Oregon and mado o brief ntop
I Povtland.  Prom thora he went
to Corvallin and then (o Kings
Vulley.

On October 3, 18643, he wau
uhited in marringe to Carollne

Tutum, daoughter of Richurd Tn-

twm, one of the early Oraxgaon
plonears.  In 1866 thoy moved 1o
Polk county and santtled on n farm
Jdoeatodd on the hanks  of  the
Rickeanll river,  JT.aater he pur-
chiwnd o furm noar Independenco,
wharo the family roslded for many
YOIry,

Mru, Patlernon  passed away
Koma monthas ago at thele homein

Indenondoncn

K Wl Healoh aneealry. Wley 11
yoars pl age he henrd the aull ot
ihe Weat and traveled to Calitor-
nla.  Shortly afterward he ¢sme
19 Oreken and mygde o brief ptop
I Portludd, rom thoro ha went
to Corvalln pud then to Klaga
Valley,

On October A, 1864, he was
united In marrlage (o Curoline
Tutum, duughter of Richurd o
tam, one of the eurly Oragon
plonears,  In 1866 they moved (o
Polk comnty and sottled on n farm
lacated  on the  hanks  of  the
Rickrenll rviver.  Later he  pur-
chised w furm near Indepandence,
where the famfly reslded for many
Vs,

Mra,  Patterson  powed  awny
fomae monthe ago at thelr homao In
]ndn[w.n«lmgcu.

Mr, Patterson was always active
In community and gtate atfairs,
taking n lUvely interest in politics.
In 1880 he was olectad ag o repre-
sentutive to the Oregon legigliature
from Polk county, He was re-
elected In 1882 and served his con-
atitnents well,  He remalned woll
and petive up ountil the last {1l-
NEK,

He was a member of Lyon lodge
Noo 29 A1 and AL M. and also
Independonce Chaptep No. 25 of
R, A, M,

F. A. Patterson, from The Oregon Statesman, December 23, 1926.




CHARLES MATTISON

Charles Mattison was born in Oswego, New
York in 1848, later moving to Michigan
where he was in the lumber business. On .lguly
24th, 1874, he married Elnora Sophia Wilson
at Coral, Michigan. They had six children:
Clifford, Lola, Jessie, William, Grover and
Bertha. The Mattisons moved to Oregon in
1878, locating directly across the Willamette
River from Independence where he farmed
140 acres. He purchased property in down-
town Independence, building three homes on
Monmoulg Street, all of which are still stand-
ing in 1987, They are located at 460 Mon-
mouth Street, 488 Monmouth Streetand 615
Monmouth Street. They also owned two busi-
ness buildings on S. Main Street. He was on
the City Council and belonged to the Elks and
the Odd Fellows. Elnora was active in
Rebekas, Degree Circle, Fraternal Union,
Pythian Sisters and Yeoman.

GROVER AND NOLA
MATTISON

Grover Mattison was the son of Charles
and Elnora Mattison who migrated to Oregon
from Michigan in 1878 and lived across the
river on their hop ranch. Grover was born in
1887 and raised in Independence. He gradu-
ated from the local Grade school and the
Independence High School.

21 5 gl
>
. B

Charles Mattison and Family

Grover married Nola Owen Feb. 3, in Van-
couver, Wash., and they lived a short time in
Camas, Washington where he worked in the
shipyard. They were married in the Presbyte-
rian Manse by Rev. Grimes. After the wed-
dmiand a short honeymoon they moved to
Cathlamet where he worked for his brother-
in-law Dole Pomeroy in the logging camp.
They later moved gack to Independence
where Grover went to work for the Standard
Oil Co. and was with them for several years
delivering fuel to the local area as well as the
Kings Valley area and Suver, Airlie district.
When he left the Standard Oil Co. he went in
partners with Dole Pomeroy in the Indepen-
dence Garage and they soon had the school
bus contract which they held for several years.
They also bought a Hop farm in Marion Co.
and worked it until they left the Garage.
Grover kept the Hop yard and Dole went to

Nola Mattison

The Mattisons, from History of Polk County, page 157.




FRANCIS A. PATTERSON a well known
and highly esteemed resident of Independence,
and a representative of the stock-raising and
farming interests of the state, as well as a
prominent factor in the political and legislative
affairs of Oregon, was born November 1, 1835,
in St. Clair county, 1lIl. His great-grandfather
came from Scotland to the new world, locating
in North Carolina, where his death occurred.
Iis grandfather, Greenberry Patterson, was born
in North Carolina and followed the shoemaker’s
trade in that state and later in Illinois, where
he also carried on farming. His death occurred
i St. Clair county, Ill, in 1852.

Herbert Patterson, his son, and the father of
Francis A., of this review, was born in North
Caralina, and with his parents moved to St.
Clawr county, Tll. In 1848 he conducted a gen-
cral merchandise store in Freeburg, Ill., and in
1851 removed to Lebanon, where he engaged in
the hotel business. In 1852 he crossed the
plains with ox-tcams. accompanied by his family.
The journey occupied six months, starting April
Ist and reaching Placerville, Cal., the last of
September, 1852. At this place he entered the
mines and achieved a fair degree of success. In
1858 he came to Oregon, locating in Hillsboro,
Washington county, where he engaged in
the general mercantile business, and there his
death occurred in 1886, at the age of seventy-
seven years. His wife was before her marriage
Jane McClintock, a native of Kentucky, and died
in Oregon at the age of eighty-three years.
Her father, Joseph McClintock, was a resident
of Kentucky, later of Illinois, and conducted a
tannery in St. Clair county, at which place his
death occurred. Unto Herbert and Jane (Mc-
Clintock) Patterson were born five children,
four sons and one daughter.

Francis A. Patterson was the third child in
his father's family. His early education was
acquired in the common schools of Illinois and
in McKinley College. In 1852 he crossed the
plains with his father and entered the mines of
California. In 1857 he located in Benton county,
Ore., and there engaged in farming. In 18061
he removed to Washington county, but returned
the same year to Benton county. In 1862 he
removed to Polk county, locating near Rick-
reall, where he purchased one hundred and sixty
acres of' land. In 1881 he sold this farm and
moved to Independence, purchasing a tract of
three hundred and twenty acres of land adjoin-
ing the city, and laid out two additions known
as Patterson’s addition and Patterson's second
addition tc Independence, situated on the west
side of the city. He has a farm of sixty acres
two and one-half miles south of Independence,
where he raises large numbers of sheep and
goats. He owns a nice residence in Independ-
ence, which he has rebuilt and remodeled,
making it a commodious and pleasant home, in
which he is now living retired, enjoying the
results of a life well spent.

Mr. Patterson was elected to the lower house
of the Oregon state legislature for the terms
of 1880 and 1882, and was appointed by the
speaker of the house as clairman of a committec

., to receive President Hayes and wife, on their

visit to Oregon. During this period he took an
active and important part in the legislation
which was enacted in the state, and his stanch
support of every measure intended for the good
of the people. won for him the hearty approval
of his constituents. Mr. Patterson was united
in marriage in Kings Valley, Benton county,
Ore., in 1859, to Caroline Tatum, who was born
in Missouri. Her father, Richard Tatum, a
native of Tennessee, was a blacksmith by trade.
He removed to Illinois and later to Cedar
county, Mo. In 1853 he removed to Oregon,
locating at Buena Vista, and later removed to
Kings Valley, settling on a donation claim of
three hundred and twenty acres. Subsequently

selling this farm he removed to Rickreall, Ore.,
where he died at the age of sixty-seven years,
having been actively engaged in farming for
many years. Unto Mr. and Mrs. F. A. Patter-
son have been born ten children: Isaac L., col-
lector of customs, of Portland, Ore.; Henry R.,
who is acting as weigher in the appraiser’s office
at Portland; George S., who is engaged in
mining in Sumpter, Ore.; Frank S., who is
proprietor of a hotel at Fassell, Gilliam county,
Ore.; William H., who is engaged in the whole-
sale and retail cigar and tobacco business in North
Yakima, Ore.; Pink C., now with W. P. Fuller
& Co., of Portland; Narcis, a clerk in a general
merchandise store of Leavenworth, Wash.;
Allen D., an emplove of the Southern Pacific
Railroad office at Portland; Dr. D. C. P., who
is a clerk in a drug store at Cottage Grove,
Ore.; and Maude L., who received her educa-
tion in the State Normal school of Monmouth,
and is now teaching in North Yakima.

Mr. Patterson is a member of the Blue Lodge
and Royal Arch Chapter and De Molay Com-
mandery No. 5. Ancient Free and Accepted
Masons. In politics he is an active Republican
and has served as school director in most of the
places where he has resided. He was the pro-
moter of the Independence & Monmouth Railway,
was its president for three years and held equal
shares with the ten original stockholders. Mr.
Patterson has been connected inseparably with
the growth and progress of the great state of
Oregon since he first took up his residence with-
in her borders, and his efforts have resulted both
advantageously to him personally and to the
state.

Francis A. Patterson, from Portrait and Biographical Record of the

Willamette Valley, Oregon, 1903, pp. 1195-96.




JANIES 5. GOOPER
IS 06D
Active Pioneer Eitizen Of

Independence Died in
Portland Sunday

Junieg 8helby Coaper, long a
resident of Independence, and who
came to Oregon In 1863, dled on
SBunday at the King Hill apart-
ments in Portlund at the age of
80 years., He had lved in Port-
land since January.

Mr, Cooper was for many years
actlve in business at Independence
whéerp he organized and headed
the First Natfonal bunk. He dls-
posed of his banking interests {n
1910 to engage in hop growing.

Active in Politics.

In 1888 Mr. Cooper was a del-
egate to the Republican natjounal
convention, which nomlinated Har-
rison for the presldency and he
always took & keen finterest fin
lacal and state politics. In 1805
lie represented Polk and Lincoln
countles iu the leglglature.

Born ip Lawrence county, Mia-
sourf, In 1841, Mr. Cooper chmae
‘o Oregon by way of San Fran-
clsca.  Accompanied by a slstar,
he left his home In Missour! in
1860 for the west with an ox
team. ‘- He wmettled on a caltle
ragch in California, later t8amed
|1gto. Nevada and afterwards came
uprth to Oregon, localing pear
Balem. Thare he farmed and at-

od MaMinnville college.

J. S. Cooper, from the Oregon Statesman, 5 July, 1921, page 3.




HENRY AND MARTHA HILL

On April 4, 1847, 1all cighteen year old
Henry Hill left St. Joseph, Mo in a wagon
train of some 100 wagons in company of his
older married sister and her husband, Emily
and Asa Burbank, bound for the Willamette
Valley.

Henry Hill Family

Born in Jefferson County, New York, Hen-
ry had moved with his parents to Ohio, then
Ilinois from whence he left for St. Joseph.
After a strenuous trip, including travel down
the Columbia River, he arrived in the area of
Independence November 14, 1847 where he
laid out his claim on the west bank of the Wil-
lamette, south of Ash Creek.

In 1848, he went to the California gold
fields but when he returned, he found others
had arrived in the interim and “annexed”
some of his claim, however he liked the loca-
tion, so continued to develop it although it
was only 540 acres.

He was married on July 14, 1851 to Martha
Ann Virgin who had traveled west with her
older sister Mrs. Nancy GolfT and husband
Samuel Ford Goff. They came by way of the
Applegate Trailand up tﬁrough southern Ore-

on.
% Martha was born in Kentucky and lived in
Missouri with her family until her parents
both died in 1846.

Mr. and Mrs. Hill began farming and rais-
ing stock which they continued all their lives,

gradually increasing their holdings to about a
thousand acres at the time of Mr. Hill's death
October 17, 1904. Henry was among the first
to grow hops in the area. He loved blooded
horses and built a race track on some of his
property, which track was located south of
present “I'" Street at third, fourth, and fifth
streets.

In 1876, Mr. Hill and his oldest son, LaDue
Hill visited his parents in [llinois, then went
on to the Centennial Exposition in Philadel-
phia from which he brought back new farming
methods, plants, and seeds. The railroad did
not come to Oregon at that time, so they rode
their horses to Winnemucca, Nevada where
they took the train east. The return trip by
horseback through the Cascades in late fall
was hazardous because of heavy snow.

Nine children were born to Mr. and Mrs.
Hill: Roseltha, who died at age nine while
attending boarding school in Dallas, Aurelia
Hill Burch, LaDue Reason, Elizabeth and
Lucy, both of whom died as toddlers, Nell
Hill Denlinger, Homer, Verd, and Garlin Hill
Cohrs. There were eleven grandchildren.

Henry and Martha Hill were actively inter-
ested in the community. He served on the ear-
ly school board; was appointed a commission-
er to locate a Polk go. Territorial Road;
served in the Oregon Militia during the Civil
War. After the disastrous 1861 flood, which
wiped out much of Independence, then locat-
ed north of Ash Creek, the citizens asked Mr.
Hill to platatown on his higher ground, which
he did. He gave land for stores, churches,
school, park. The “New Town™ grew rapidly
and was incorporated in 1878. In 1882, “Old
Town™, as it was known in the vernacular of
the day, was annexed.

Mr. and Mrs. Hill were warm and caring
people who sheltered many relatives and
friends in their large homes, and were known
as “Uncle” Henry and “Aunt” Martha by
many who were not relatives.

The Hills, from the History of Polk County, page 127.




HERMAN AND ODELIA
(DRENTER) SPERLING

Herman and Julieann Sperling and their
children: Gustave “Gus"”, Herman, August,
Charles, Albert and Lizzie came to Indepen-
dence, Oregon from North Dakota. They had
stopped for awhile in Harrisburg, Lane Coun-
ty, Oregon, before coming to Independence.

Sometime during 1910 to 1913, Gus and
Herman Sperling ran a mealt market and
slaughter house, located about one and a half
miles north of Independence.

August Sperling built a hotel in Indepen-
dence and named it “Lerona,” for his two
daughters, Leona and Ronena. Later he
moved to Portland.

Herman, Jr. married Odelia Drenter on
July 9, 1917 in Independence. To this union
was born: Phillip Drenter on March 24, 1918
in Salem, Oregon; and, Madeline Ethel on
October 13, 1921 in Salem.

In 1921, Herman, Jr. rented an 168 acre
farm in the Parker district from Percy Dickin-
son, who was a relative of Odelia. Dickinson
was a rural mail carrier at this time. The Sperl-
ings lived on this farm until 1947 when Her-
man was killed in an automobile accident in
October 1946. Odelia moved to Indepen-
dence and worked at The Adair Cafe for
years. Later she worked in the kitchen at the
Independence Elementary School. In 1950
she married Martin Gentemann, a retired far-
mgc_’rsal that time. Odelia died August 14,
| 5

Phillip and Madeline went to the Parker
Elementary School and Independence High
School. Phillip graduated in 1936 and worked
al the First National Bank at Independence
for six years. He married Delia Marjorie
Moreland on November |, 1941. Madeline
married Earl Gaines in 1941, they were
divorced and she married Leland Roth in
1950. Madeline worked at the Home Federal
Savings and Loan at Albany, Oregon for
many years. She retired in 1987. She did not
have any children.

Phillip and Delia had five children: Marjo-
ric Aurilla, who married Vestal Gamer in
1961; Marilyn Earlene, married Ronald
Boyer in 1964; Franklin Herman, married
Charlotte Collins in 1978; Wendell Phillip
married Sherry Curtis in 1972 and Kay Ann
married Bernard Bruce Vrell in 1966.

itlip assumed the farming responsibili-
tiesafter hisfather’sdeath in 1946. He contin-
ued renting the farm from Percy Dickinson
until 1958 when Dickinson died; then he pur-
chased the farm in 1960. Phillip also pur-

Sperlings, from the History of Polk County, 1987, page 219.




WILLIAM HENRY CRAVEN

For thirty-seven years a leading figure in business circles of Independence,
William Henry Craven has contributed his full share toward the development of
the town and is also well known through his public service, which has been of an
important character. He was born February 4, 1869, in Polk county, this state, and
his parents, John and Mary (Parker) Craven, were natives of Missouri. His
paternal grandparents crossed the plains in a covered wagon drawn by oxen and
setiled in Polk county when this section of Oregon was a wilderness. At an earlier
date David Parker and his family made the overland journey and also became
pioneers of Polk county, in which the daughter Mary was married to John Craven,
both making the trip to the minister’s home on horseback. Later Mr. and Mrs.
Craven moved to Tillamook county and there he established a dairy which he op-
erated successfully until his demise. .

William H. Craven spent his boyhood on the homestead in Polk county and re-
ceived a public school education. He learned the trade of harness-making and in
1890 opened a shop at Independence. For several years he successfully conducted
the business and about 1903 became the proprietor of a book and stationery store._
In order to meet the demands of the times he installed a soda fountain and also
sells candy and cigars. He is a courteous merchant, serving each patron to the best
of his ability, and his trade has constantly increased.

In 1891 Mr. Craven was married in Independence to Miss Alta Robinson, 2
daughter of T. W. Robinson, who migrated from Indiana to Oregon and was also
one of the early settlers of Polk county. For some time he engaged in farming and
later conducted a drug store in Independence. Mr. and Mrs. Craven have a family
of two children: Lucille, who is the wife of Richard Meyers, of Salem; and
Robert, who was graduated from the Oregon Agricultural College and is asso-
ciated with his father in business.

Mr. Craven gives his political allegiance to the democratic party and con-
scientiously discharges the duties and obligations of citizenship. He was elected
councilman and for two terms was mayor of Independence. He exerted every effort
in behalf of the municipality and during his administration much constructive work
was accomplished. He belongs to the Chamber of Comimerce and has held all of the
chairs in the local lodge of the Independent Order of Odd Fellows. Mr. Craven
was about ten years old when the first train passed through Independence and re-
members other events which have influenced the progress of this region. His life
has been governed by high principles and he is known and honored throughout the
county.

William Craven, from History of the Willamette Valley,
pages 466-467.




